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Address of the Chairman of the Board of Directors

Dear Shareholders,

I would like to present you the 2010 annual report of OJSC Enel OGK-5. 

The post crisis year of 2010, as well as the previous one, was not easy for the Company: we did our 

best to overcome the crisis consequences and stay one of the leaders; we optimized production 

and supported top-level corporate governance, as well as high labor and production safety criteria.

We significantly advanced in our priority areas: increase of reliability in production of capacity, 

technical upgrade and introduction of innovations and improvement of economic efficiency of 

operations. We continued to build a Company, which on the one hand, shall serve as a reliable 

support for economic growth and modernization of the country and on the other hand, shall meet 

expectations of shareholders and investors. In 2011, two combined cycle gas turbines with installed 

capacity of 410 MW will be launched in Nevinnomyssk and Sredneuralsk, significant modernization 

works on Reftinskaya GRES are in progress; the key values of the Company which are safety 

regulations and standards will not be neglected either. 

The previous year brought positive results; still a huge list of tasks and issues requires our close 

attention. In forthcoming 2011, we will have to cooperate with ministries and authorities of the 

country, make use of our positive work experience gained in other countries to improve the sector 

of our professional activities. We will still devote major efforts to optimize and modernize our 

operations.

In 2010, in spite of the economic turbulence of 2009, OJSC Enel OGK-5, being aware of urgency 

and importance of social responsibility of a large business, honored all social obligations taken. 

We provided assistance to orphanages and hospitals, we arranged events for citizens of the towns 

where we operate, and we held Open Plant Days to demonstrate our work. We continued providing 

supplementary pension to our former employees who had devoted many years of their lives to our 

power plants.

Occupational health and safety were special issues on the Company’s agenda last year; as, after all, 

the greatest value is a human life.

I can assure you that the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 will be committed to further 

development and maintaining the Company’s position on the market, the position of an energy 

market leader.

Address of the General Director

Dear Shareholders,

It is an honor and pleasure for me to present you the Enel OGK-5 performance results achieved in 

2010. The year confirmed the capability of our company to achieve the ambitious targets defined in 

our long-term business plan aimed at the Company’s constant growth and development.

The year of 2010 was marked by a solid increase in the main operating and financial indicators. Net 

power output by the Company’s generating facilities posted an almost 10% increase versus the 

previous year, from 39.1 up to 42.8 TWh, thanks to energy consumption recovery and high availability 

of the company’s power plants. Power sales stood at 46.9 TWh, up 7% compared to 2009, with almost 

67% of total sales going to the free market due to the ongoing liberalization process.

The power sales growth and the increase of the average power selling price led to a strong increase 

in the net revenues of the company, which  stood at 57,021 million RUR under Russian Accounting 

Standards, 31% higher than the 2009 figure. Continuous efforts of the Company in the area of fixed 

and variable costs optimization boosted the company’s profit on sales, which jumped up by 60% 

compared to the preceding year and amounted to 8,583 million RUR. Net profit in 2010 increased by 

more than two times versus 2009 and amounted to 5,826 million RUR. 

The company’s positive financial and operating performance shows the strength of our strategy and 

management model. Furthermore, we expect the ongoing market reform to continue along the 

announced lines in order to support improvement in company’s efficiency, thus securing return on 

capital expenditures and strategic investments. 

In 2010 we kept on being committed to implementation of the Company’s investment program, 

focused on construction of two new 410-MW CCGT plants at SGRES and NGRES, dry ash removal 

system and revamping of Unit 5 at RGRES. We also enhanced the implementation of the program on 

environmental modernization of the coal-fired units, introducing, for the first time in Russia, bag filters, 

which will be installed progressively on the RGRES units thus substantially reducing dust emissions.  

Furthermore in 2010 we successfully carried out the implementation of several improvement projects 

within our Company’s “Zenith” excellence program achieving about 979 million RUR contribution to 

EBIDTA growth vs. 2009 and 37% contribution to energy margin and fixed costs improvements. In 4Q 

2010 we launched a Zenith related incentive system to involve and motivate each employee to take 

part in the projects that will help bringing new technologies, best practices and methodologies thus 

contributing to achieve high financial and operating performance indicators. 

For the first time in Russia we performed a safety culture survey and an intra-corporate climate survey. 

We implemented the Company’s new SAP WISE information system which will allow us, as of 2011, to 

systematize, optimize and improve substantially the Company’s business processes.

Looking ahead, we will keep on ensuring safety, carrying on modernization and construction projects, 

environmental performance and improved operations, while granting a better profitability to our 

shareholders.

                                                                             Enrico Viale Chairman of the Board of Directors 

of OJSC Enel OGK-5

General Director 

of OJSC Enel OGK-5 

Dominique Fache

Address of company 
management to 
shareholders
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The Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 approved the 

revamping project for unit No. 5, Reftinskaya GRES.

OJSC Enel OGK-5 published production results for 2009: 

net power output of the Company’s power plants totaled 

39 112GWh.

OJSC Enel OGK-5 signed a long term loan agreement with 

the European Investment Bank for 250 million Euro for 

financing CCGT at Nevinnomysskaya GRES.

OJSC Enel OGK-5 was the first among generation 

companies to publish audited consolidated results under 

IFRS for 2009: EBITDA increased by 54% up to 7,7 bln. 

rubles.

OJSC Enel OGK-5 published the production results and 

non-audited financial results under IFRS for the first 

quarter of 2010: increase of capacity output by 15 %, 

increase of EBITDA by 41%.

On June 10, 2010, at the Annual General Meeting of the 

Company Shareholders, a new composition of the Board 

of Directors was elected.

On June 16, 2010, interest bearing documentary corporate 

papers of OJSC Enel OGK-5 of БO-15 series were included 

into the Quotation List “A” of the first level of CJSC “SE 

MICEX”.

On July 27, 2010, OJSC Enel OGK-5 redeemed interest 

bearing documentary corporate papers of БO-01 and 

БO-02 series 

On July 6, 2010 Enel held Investor’s Day in Russia and 

presented to the international community the middle-

term plans for development of the Russian assets of the 

Group.

OJSC Enel OGK-5 published the production results and 

non-audited financial results under IFRS for six months of 

2010: The EBITDA value exceeded RUR 5 billion.

A memorandum on partnership was signed between the 

Government of Sverdlovsk Oblast and OJSC Enel OGK-5.

On August 1, 2010, Enrico Viale was appointed General 

Director of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

OJSC Enel OGK-5 published interim consolidated financial 

results under IFRS   for the 1st half of 2010.

On October 14, 2010, the Board of Directors of OJSC 

Enel OGK-5 approved the resolution on termination of 

the Agreement with the registrar of the Company, OJSC 

“CMD”, and on initiation of the procedure for competitive 

selection of a new Company registrar.

OJSC Enel OGK-5 published production results and non-

audited financial results under IFRS for three quarters of 

2010: net output increase by 16 %, growth of  EBITDA by 

43%.

On December 14, 2010, the Board of Directors of OJSC 

Enel OGK-5 approved the resolution to approve CJSC 

“Computershare Registrar” as the Company Registrar and 

defined the terms for transfer of the Register to the new 

Registrar not later than on January 31, 2011.

Calendar of events 

February

March

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

Enel S.p.A. and INTER RAO UES signed a memorandum 

on partnership in the field of wind power and heat 

generation.



10 Enel   Annual report 2010 11

Company background Financial and economic 
performance of the 
companyOpen Joint Stock Company “The Fifth Power Generation Company” (JSC OGK-5) was established 

pursuant to Order No.113r dd. October 25, 2004, issued by the Executive Board of RAO “UES of 

Russia” within the framework of the “5+5” Strategy of RAO “UES of Russia” for 2003 – 2008. At its 

establishment, the charter capital of the Company was made up of the property of Reftinskaya 

GRES and Sredneuralskaya GRES, as well as shares of OJSC Konakovskaya GRES and OJSC 

Nevinnomysskaya GRES.

OJSC OGK-5 was registered by the Inspectorate of the Ministry for Taxation of Russia for the 

Leninsky District of the city of Yekaterinburg of the Sverdlovsk Oblast on the 27th of October 2007, 

certificate series 66 No.004053478, under the main state registration number 1046604013257.

On June 10, 2009, at the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company, a decision was 

made to rename OJSC OGK-5 to OJSC Enel OGK-5. The new name - Enel OGK-5 - determines the 

company's status as a participant of the Russian power energy market, and also emphasizes the 

affiliation of OJSC OGK-5 to Enel - a leading international utility operating in 40 countries and 

employing over 77.000 people. 

The Company is one of the largest wholesale generation companies in Russia. In accordance with 

the Charter of OJSC Enel OGK-5 the the Company main areas of operation are production of power 

and heat, supply (sale) of power and heat, receipt (purchase) of power and heat from the wholesale 

power (capacity) market.

The total installed capacity of power plants of the Company is 8 771,5 MW. This includes as follows:

>  Konakovskaya GRES – 2.500 MW (Tver Oblast, the Unified Energy System (UES) of Center);

>  Nevinnomysskaya GRES– 1.290 MW (Stavropol Krai, UES of South);

>  Reftinskaya GRES– 3.800 MW (the Sverdlovsk Oblast, UES of Urals);

>   Sredneuralskaya GRES – 1.182 MW (the Sverdlovsk Oblast, UES of Urals).

Installed capacity of the Company’s power plants

Power plant Unit of Measurement     2009     2010

Konakovskaya GRES MW 2 475 2 500

Nevinnomysskaya GRES MW 1 290 1 290

Reftinskaya GRES MW 3 800 3 800

Sredneuralskaya GRES MW 1 182 1 182

OJSC Enel OGK-5 MW 8 747 8 772

Analysis of financial performance in 
comparison with the previous period

Financial performance indicators of the Company 

Indicator 2009     2010

Net assets value of the issuer, thousand RUR 49 390 461 55 216 402

Debt to equity ratio, % 51,09 50,72

Short-term liabilities to equity ratio, % 17,80 18,66

Overdue debts, % 0 0

Accounts receivable turnover, times 4,56 6,38

Dividend payout ratio, % 0 0

Depreciation to revenues, % 6,82 5,89

In 2010 OJSC Enel OGK-5 completed the year with a strong 

set of result, thus continuing to demonstrate the growth 

of the key financial indicators. First of all, the Company 

posted the increase in operating revenue  which was 

mainly,driven by the growing revenue from power and 

capacity sales, which exceeded the previous year’s result 

by more than 30%.

Net assets value of OJSC Enel OGK-5 has been constantly 

increasing since the establishment of the Company and 

reached RUR 55,216 million by the end of the year (+12% 

compared to the previous year) due to the net profit for 

the year amounting to RUR 5,826 million

Profit and Loss

Indicator 2010     2009

Profit, thousand RUR 57 020 561 43 594 973

Gross profit, thousand RUR 9 309 997 6 094 629

Net profit (undistributed profit (uncovered loss)), thousand RUR 5 825 941 2 571 201

Return on equity, % 10,55 5,21

Return on assets, % 7,00 3,45

Net profit ratio, % 10,22 5,90

Cost to revenue ratio (sales), % 15,05 12,29

Capital turnover, times 0,78 0,66

Amount of uncovered loss, as of the balance sheet date, thousand RUR 0 0

Uncovered loss to grand total ratio, as of the balance sheet date, % 0 0
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Fixed assets value by groups as of 31.12.2010

Group of fixed assets 
Value at the beginning 

of the period Change of value 
Value at the end 

of the period Residual value
Depreciation at 

the beginning of the period Depreciation for the period
Depreciation at 

the end of the period

Machinery and equipment ( except for 
the office equipment) 23 005 612 898,01 4 425 801 481,59 27 431 414 379,60 17 828 755 126,37 7 120 809 235,11 2 481 850 018,12 9 602 659 253,23

Production and 
maintenance accessories 67 838 457,81 13 633 576,07 81 472 033,88 32 545 481,19 48 182 429,39 744 123,30 48 926 552,69

Buildings 12 799 837 711,19 394 429 851,06 13 194 267 562,25 11 622 766 072,84 1 275 104 727,76 296 396 761,65 1 571 501 489,41

Constructions 7 003 373 048,60 1 578 056 688,51 8 581 429 737,11 6 247 119 682,66 1 851 180 295,76 483 129 758,69 2 334 310 054,45

Transport 162 626 589,26 −3 322 721,49 159 303 867,77 79 122 539,26 68 192 801,99 11 988 526,52 80 181 328,51

Other types of fixed assets 62 787 691,48 −44 359 783,99 18 427 907,49 13 763 090,42
7 487 

114,00 −2 822 296,93 4 664 817,07

Land plots 95 410 598,42 43 924 867,28 139 335 465,70 139 335 465,70

Office equipment 106 114 640,61 8 180 552,31 114 295 192,92 29 131 434,95 68 223 082,65 16 940 675,32 85 163 757,97

There were no changes in composition of the immovable property with the value of more than 5% of the balance value 

of assets during the previous year. 

Revenue from operating activities amounted to RUR 

57,021 million, which is RUR 13 426 million more than for 

the previous year (+30.8%). Increase of revenues is mainly 

caused by increase of net output, market liberalization and 

increase of prices for power at the free market. Increase of 

output is mainly caused by increase of power demand due 

to better economic situation, low temperature in the first 

quarter of the year and enormously  hot weather in the 

summer period. 

Sales profit amounted to RUR 8,583 million that is 

increased by RUR 3,227 million compared to 2009 (+60%). 

This growth is mainly due to the improved commercial 

operation of the Company. In addition we should mention 

the positive impact of reducing fixed costs as a result of 

the implementation of efficiency programs, implemented 

at OJSC Enel OGK-5 in the second half of 2009. As to the 

operation, the Company has reduced the outage time 

of units and optimized the timing of maintenance and 

work processes. These factors had a decisive influence 

on the improvement of profitability of the Company in 

2009, further implementation of the efficiency programs 

of OJSC Enel OGK-5 in main areas in 2010 enabled to 

increase control over fixed costs which also had positive 

impact on the indicators of the Company. 

During the reporting period, OJSC Enel OGK-5 showed 

solid growth in revenues, gross profit and sales profit.

In 2009, despite the crisis, net income increased 

significantly, reaching RUR 2,571 billion (+65% compared 

to 2008). This fact demonstrates the increased efficiency 

of operations of OJSC Enel OGK-5 in general. Accordingly, 

the following profitability ratios also improved: return 

on equity, return on assets, net profit ratio, and cost to 

revenue. 

In 2010, the Company showed a more steady growth rate: 

net profit totaled 5,826 mln. rub. (+126,6 % compared to 

2009).

The Company has had no uncovered losses within the 

entire period of operation.



14 Enel   Annual report 2010 15

Analysis of Solvency and Credit Risk 
of the Company

Company’s Liquidity, Sufficiency 
of Equity and Working Capital
Value 2009 2010

Net working capital, RUR thousand 11 019 798 13 990 344

Net fixed assets index 1,27 1,27

Current liquidity ratio 1,37 1,28

Quick ratio 0,95 0,81

Equity-assets ratio 0,66 0,66

The Company is characterized by high solvency. Equity 

and reserves are almost twice higher than the amount 

of raised funds and more than five times higher than the 

amount of short-term liabilities. Moreover, the turnover 

of accounts receivable has increased which witnesses that 

the Company’s solvency has improved.

The credit risk, i.e. the risk of non-fulfillment of the 

Company’s liability with respect to loab providers at a 

low level. The overdue accounts receivable were absent 

during 2009 and 2010.

The net working capital of OJSC Enel OGK-5 in 2006-2007 

is positive which indicates the Company’s ability to repay 

the short-term debt at the expense of the net working 

capital. The reduction of the net working capital for 2008-

2010 is associated with the spending of the funds raised 

from IPO and entering debt capital markets for financing 

the Company’s investment program.

The current liquidity ratio indicates which part of the short-

term debt can be repaid by mobilizing working capital. 

The current liquidity ratio of the Company is close to the 

standard. During 2006-2010, this ratio stayed at sufficient 

level and characterizes the Company’s solvency as high.

The quick ratio characterizes the ability to repay short-

term liabilities with cash and receivables. The 2006-2010 

dynamics show that this ratio has been approaching the 

optimal value and demonstrates a high ability of the 

company to timely and quickly repay its outstanding 

amounts.

The equity-assets ratio shows the share of equity in 

the total assets of the enterprise. The value of this ratio 

satisfies the recommended value (≥ 0.5). During the whole 

period of company operations, the ratio is higher than the 

standard value and proves the financial stability of the 

Company.

Intangible assets value as of 31.12.2010

Group of Intangible assets
Historical (replacement) 

value, rubles
Amount of depreciation 

accrued, rub.

Programs, patents rights, trade marks “Automated maintenance 
planning system” 402 664,37 80 532,96

Total 402 664,37 80 532,96

Accounts receivable (RUR, thousand)

31.12.2009 31.12.2010

Accounts receivable (lonh-term) 2 207 487 832 169

Advances paid 166 291 550 176

Other debtors 2 041 196 281 993

   - Interest-free notes 74 000 74 000

   - other debtors 1 967 196 207 993

Accounts receivable (short- term) 7 354 948 8 103 485

Buyers and customers      3 152 379 3 335 138

Advances paid 1 272 279 1 264 267

Other debtors 2 930 290 3 504 080

Accounts receivable by the Company in 2010 decreased 

by 626.8 mln. rub., and 8 936 mln. rub totaled by the end 

of the year. Decrease of the accounts receivable is related 

with increase of bad debt provision recognized by the 

management of the Company as unlikely for recovery.

Accounts payable in 2010 increased compared to 2009 

and totaled 26 050 mln. rub. by the end of the year, 

which is mainly related to raising debt to finance the 

construction of the new capacities at Nevinnomysskaya 

GRES and Sredneuralskaya GRES.

The drawings under the long-term credit facilities with 

the RBS, EBRD and EIB banks were made in 2009-2010 

to finance the investment program implementation at 

NGRES and SuGRES. 

In June 2010, Series БO-15 commercial papers in the 

amount of RUR 4 billion were placed to fully refinance 

Series БO-1 and БO-2 commercial papers with maturity in 

July 2010.

Accounts payable (RUR, thousand)

31.12.2009 31.12.2010

Accounts payable (long-term) 15 070 635 15 751 418

Loans 5 153 728 4 009 042

credits 9 916 072 11 741 686

Suppliers and contractors 835 690

Accounts payable (short-term) 8 785 139 10 298 861

Bank credits 5 656 903

loans 4 208 560

Suppliers and contractors 3 115 462 3 095 520

Payroll liabilities 338 1 397

Payables to state and non-budget funds 15 40

Tax liabilities         790 633 335 796

Advances received     33 265 71 097

Other creditors   636 866 1 138 108
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Dividend History

Distribution of Profit Approved by the General Shareholders’ Meeting for 2005-2009 (RUR, thousand)

2005 
(Decision of the 
Annual General 

Shareholders’ 
Meeting dated 
June 24, 2006)

2006 
(Decision of the 
Annual General 

Shareholders’ 
Meeting dated 

July 01, 2007)

2007 
(Decision of the 
Annual General 

Shareholders’ 
Meeting dated 
May 28, 2008)

2008 
(Decision of the 
Annual General 

Shareholders’ 
Meeting dated 
June 10, 2009)

2009 
(Decision of the 
Annual General 

Shareholders’ 
Meeting dated 
June 10, 2010)

Retained profit (loss) over 
the accounting period 4 433 336 253 930 1 804 220 1 562 788 2 571 201

To be distributed between: 

Reserve fund 221 667 28 547 90 211 78 140 128 560

Accumulation fund 4 011 667 883 1 714 009 - -

Investments - - - 1 484 648 2 442 641

Dividends 200 002 224 500 - - -

Redemption of losses of previous years - - - - -

The Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting of JSC OGK-5 

dd. May 28, 2008, took the decision to pay no dividends 

for ordinary registered shares of the Company upon the 

results of the financial year 2007.

The Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting of JSC OGK-

5 dated of June 10, 2009, took the decision to pay no 

dividend for ordinary registered shares of the Company 

upon the results of the financial year 2008.

The Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting of OJSC Enel 

OGK-5 dated of June 10, 2010, took the decision to pay 

no dividend for ordinary registered shares of the Company 

upon the results of the financial year 2009.

The absence of dividend payments for financial years of 

2007-2009 is due to the implementation of an extensive 

investment program by the Company.

While performing accrual and payment of dividends OJSC Enel OGK-5 fulfills requirements of the Federal Law “On Joint 

Stock Companies» and the Charter of the Company.

Data on accrued dividends and report on its distribution upon the results of 2005-2009

Dividend distribution period 
Upon the results of the 

financial year 2005 

Upon the results 
of the first half of the 

financial year 2006 

Upon the results 
of the financial 

year 2006

Management body authorizing 
dividend distribution 

General Shareholders’ 
Meeting of JSC OGK-5 

General Shareholders’ 
Meeting of JSC OGK-5 

General Shareholders’ 
Meeting of JSC OGK-5 

Date of adoption of the decision on 
payment of dividends June 24, 2006 September 26, 2006 June 01, 2007

Type, type and category of shares 
Registered 

ordinary shares 
Registered 

ordinary shares 
Registered 

ordinary shares 

The amount of dividend accrued per one share, 
rubles 0,0066069 0,01047183 0,00634689

Total amount of monetary funds directed (accrued) 
at payment of dividend, rubles 200 002 000 317 000 000 224 500 000
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Disclosure 
of information
For the purpose of improvement of information attrac-

tiveness, transparency and information openness in June 

2005 the Board of Directors of the Company approved 

and registered with the Federal Service for Financial Mar-

kets of Russia the prospectus of securities of JSC OGK-5. 

Beginning from that moment JSC OGK-5 proceeded to 

disclosure of information about its financial and economic 

activity in form of the quarterly report of the issuer, notices 

on material facts, data influencing the value of securities, 

according to the procedure stipulated by the legislation of 

the Russian Federation.

Information about activity of the Сompany is disclosed on 

a regular basis and within the terms provided for by effec-

tive legislation of the Russian Federation in the news line 

of the information agency Interfax, periodicals accessible 

for most of shareholders of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Together with that, information about activity of the 

company is submitted to listing departments of stock ex-

changes RTS and MICEX as well as presented on the cor-

porate web site (http://www.ogk-5.com). On the site of 

the company news digests touching upon key events in 

OJSC Enel OGK-5 are updated with the maximum speed. 

For the purpose of determination of the main approaches 

and principles of disclosure of corporate information, ob-

servance of compulsory requirements being the ground 

for inclusion of shares in JSC OGK-5 into quotation lists of 

stock exchanges in autumn of 2005 the Board of Directors 

of the Company approved the Regulations on the infor-

mation policy of JSC OGK-5 and the Regulations on insider 

information of JSC OGK-5.

In relation to disclosed corporate information the Com-

pany follows the following basic principles:

> Guarantee of completeness and integrity of information 

disclosed 

> Efficiency of disclosure of information on all substantial 

facts concerning activity of the Company 

> Provision of high level of information security, related to 

state, official or commercial secret 

> Publicity and non-selectiveness of information disclo-

sure.

Observance of shareholders’ rights for attending General 

Meetings of Shareholders of OJSC Enel OGK-5 is one of the 

priority directions in the area of timely and full disclosure 

of information about activity of the company. Information 

notices on execution of General Meetings of Shareholders 

of OJSC Enel OGK-5 and relevant materials are provided 

for familiarization purpose to persons entitled to attend 

the General Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company strict-

ly in accordance with the requirement of the Federal Law 

“On Joint Stock Companies” and internal regulatory docu-

ments of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

More detailed information about activity and decisions 

taken by the General Shareholders’ Meeting, the Board 

of Directors and Committees of the Board of Directors of 

OJSC Enel OGK-5 as well as full texts of internal documents 

of the Company including those regulating operation of 

management and control bodies of the Company are pre-

sented in Internet on the corporate site of the Company: 

http://www.ogk-5.com.

Corporate 
governance rating
On November 19, 2010, Standard & Poor's Rating Agency 

confirmed the GAMMA rating of OJSC Enel OGK-5 “Analy-

sis and evaluation of the effectiveness of corporate gov-

ernance, accountability and management” at the level 

of GAMMA-6. Standard & Poor's Rating Agency first as-

signed a rating to the Company based on the GAMMA 

system on October 16, 2008.

 

Rating components:

Rating-2008 Rating-2009 Rating-2010

Influence of 
shareholders: 6+ 6+ 6+

Rights of 
shareholders: 7 7 7

Transparency, 
audit and risk 
management: 5 6 6+

Efficiency of work 
of the Board of 
Directors, strategic 
processes and 
initiatives: 5+ 6 6

Standard & Poor's Rating Agency pointed out a number of 

strengths of the Company, as well as a number of 

Management and 
control bodies of 
company 

OJSC Enel OGK-5 is a company meeting high international 

standards of corporate governance and paying significant 

attention to work with shareholders and investors while 

observing information disclosure requirements provided 

for by legislation.

The practice of corporate governance at the Company is 

established in accordance with the best world standards 

and recommendations fixed in the Code of Corporate 

Conduct of the Federal Service for Financial Markets as 

well as provisions of the Code of Corporate governance of 

OJSC Enel OGK-5 adopted by the Company in 2006

Principles of corporate governance

Accountability TransparencyFairness Responsibility

The Code provides 

for accountability of 

the Board of Directors 

of the Company to 

all shareholders in 

accordance with 

effective legislation 

and serves guidance for 

the Board of Directors 

within the framework 

of development of the 

strategy and execution 

of management and 

control of activity of 

executive bodies of the 

Company.

The Company obliges 

to protect rights of 

shareholders and ensure 

equal treatment of all 

shareholders. The Board 

of Directors provides 

all shareholders with 

the possibility to obtain 

efficient protection in 

case of violation of their 

rights.

The Company ensures 

timely disclosure of 

accurate information 

on all relevant facts 

concerning its activity 

(including financial 

position, social 

and environmental 

indicators, and results 

of business, ownership 

structure and structure 

of management of 

the Company) as well 

as free access to such 

information for all 

interested persons.

The Company 

recognizes the rights 

of all interested parties 

provided for by effective 

legislation and aims at 

cooperation with such 

parties for the purpose 

of its development 

and ensuring financial 

stability.  
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improvements in corporate governance between the two 

periods of assigning the rating (information is taken from 

the official report of Standard & Poor's Rating Agency on 

assignment of the corporate governance rating under the 

GAMMA system to OJSC Enel OGK-5), including:

>  Enel controlling shareholder has the necessary resourc-

es and motivation for OJSC Enel OGK-5 business develop-

ment. 

> The Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 plays an im-

portant role in the decision-making process: it sets the 

strategic directions and provides strict control over the 

work of the management. In spite of the fact that the rep-

resentatives of the controlling shareholder form the ma-

jority in the Board of Directors, they defer to the opinion of 

independent directors and demonstrate readiness to take 

decisions based on consensus.

> The level of financial transparency is generally high and 

keeps on improving. Since the end of 2009, the Company 

started publishing financial reporting under IFRS. The an-

nual financial reporting is published in the middle March, 

earlier than by other Russian generation companies. 

> Quality of internal audit procedure is generally high. 

The Internal Audit Department is formed of experienced 

employees and is not dependant on the executive man-

agement. The audit includes efficiency analysis of business 

and internal control procedures as well as control over ob-

servance of the corporate policies. 

GAMMA Rating of Standard & Poor's reflects the opinion 

on corporate governance practice of OJSC Enel OGK-5 

from the point of view of investor protection from possi-

ble loss of price or lost opportunity to create the cost due 

to insufficiencies in the corporate governance system. 

Assessment of the Company’s corporate governance prac-

tice and policy was fulfilled by the criteria developed by 

the Rating Company on the basis of a number of interna-

tional corporate governance codes, researches, practices 

of certain companies.

Management Bodies 
of the Company
The Management Bodies of the Company are: General 

Shareholders’ Meeting, Board of Directors, General Direc-

tor and Executive Board. There are consultative and advi-

sory bodies – Committees of the Board of Directors, which 

ensure fulfillment of functions of the Board of Directors on 

general management of the Company’s operations.

General shareholders’ meeting
The supreme Management Body of OJSC Enel OGK-5 

is the General Shareholders’ Meeting. The procedure 

for preparation and holding the General Shareholders’ 

meeting is defined by the Federal Law On Joint Stock 

Companies, by the Company Charter as well as by the 

Regulations on preparation and holding the Company 

General Shareholders’ Meeting.

The previous Annual General Shareholders’ meeting was 

held on June 10, 2010 and the following decisions were 

taken:

> The 2009 Annual report of the Company was approved.

> The annual accounting reporting, including the profit 

and loss statement (the accounts of profits and losses) of 

the Company following the results of 2009 was approved.

> The Company’s profit distribution following the results 

of 2009 was approved.

> A new composition of the Board of Directors of the 

Company was elected.

>  A new composition of the Company’s Audit Committee 

was elected.

> The Company Auditor was approved.

> A new edition of the Company Charter was approved.

> New editions of the Regulations on procedure for 

convocation and holding meetings of the Board of 

Directors were approved.

> The Power and Capacity Purchase and Sale Agreements 

between OJSC Enel OGK-5 and LLC Rusenergosbyt were 

approved as related-party transactions.

The board of directors of the 
company
The Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 carries out 

general management of the Company’s activities and acts 

within the framework of the competence and in accord-

ance with the procedure determined by the Federal Law 

On Joint Stock Companies, the Charter of the Company 

and the Regulations on the procedure for convention and 

holding meetings of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel 

OGK-5. 

The Board of Directors of the Company consists of 

11 members.

The Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 elected on June 10, 2009

 (worked until June 10, 2010)

Full name Work place and job position *

Dominique Fache Chairman of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5

Enrico Viale
Chief Operating Officer of ENEL in Russia

General Director of OJSC ENEL RUS

Marco Pierro Arcelli Head of the Business Development Department of International Division of Enel S.p.A.

Dmitry Sergeevich Akhanov Independent Director

Andrey Sergeyevich Kolyada

Leading specialist-expert of the Fuel-and-Energy and Coal Industry Group of the Administration 
of Infrastructural Industries and military industrial complex organizations of the Federal Agency 

for Public Property Management.

Renato Mastroianni Head of the Integration, Process Optimization and Security at Enel S.p.A.

Gerald Joseph Rohan Independent Director, General Director of Rohan Global Consulting, RBC

Carlo Tamburi Managing Director of Enel S.p.A. International Division

Maria Gennadievna Tikhonova

Head of the Corporate Governance and Economic Expertise Group of the Department for 
Economic Regulation and Property Relations in the Fuel-and-Energy complex of the Ministry of 

Energy of the Russian Federation

Gabriele Frea Head of the Department for Structured and International Financing at Enel

Aleksandr Sergeevich Yugov

Head of the Department of oil and gas industry and minerals organizations of the 
Administration of Infrastructural Industries and military industrial complex organizations of the 

Federal Agency for Public Property Management

* Job positions of the members of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 are specified as of the date of election.

The Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 elected on June 10, 2010

Full name Work place and job position *

Dominique Fache Chairman of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5

Enrico Viale Chief Operating Officer of ENEL in Russia

Vyacheslav Yurievich Artamonov
Deputy Chairman of the Executive Board – 

The Head of the Trading Block OJSC INTER RAO UES 

Marco Pierro Arcelli Head of the Business Development Department of International Division of Enel S.p.A.

Dmitry Sergeevich Akhanov
Independent Director, Director on Interaction with the Companies of USA and Canada of OJSC 

RUSNANO

Franceska Gostinelli
Director of the Business Development Department 

of International Division of Enel S.p.A.

Gerald Joseph Rohan  Independent Director, General Director of Rohan Global Consulting, RBC

Carlo Tamburi Managing Director of Enel S.p.A. International Division

Maria Gennadievna Tikhonova
Director of the Economic Regulation and Property Relations in the Fuel-and-Energy complex of 

the Ministry of Energy of the Russian Federation

Luigi Ferraris Enel S.p.A Finance Director 

Aleksandr Sergeevich Yugov
Deputy Head of the Administration of Infrastructural Industries and military industrial complex 

organizations of the Federal Agency for Public Property Management

* Job positions of the members of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 are specified as of the date of election.
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Dominique Fache 

born in 1949. Graduated from the High-

er School “Mines & Ecole Superieure 

Electricite” (Paris) majoring in 

engineering. From 1993 to 2003 worked as Vice President, 

General Director for Russia and CIS of Schlumberger. In 

various periods of time headed the Boards of Directors of 

Schlumberger Ukrgas Kiev, he was a member of the Board 

of Directors of SUEK. In 2007, was the General Secretary 

of European Energy House (France). From 2007 till Octo-

ber 2010 - the Head of the Representative Office of Enel 

Produzione S.p.A. in Russia, from February 2008 to March 

2009 - General Director of LLC ENEL RUS. Since March 

2008 has been the Chairman of the Board of Directors of 

OJSC Enel OGK-5. Since November 2010 - the President of 

OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Dominique Fache does not have any shares in the share 

capital of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Enrico Viale  

born in 1957. In 1982 he graduated from 

Polytechnic University of Turin in Civil En-

gineering; in 1986 – from University 

of Santa Clara – School of Business, USA, MBA degree; in 

1992 – from Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT), 

Sloan School of Business Polytechnic University of Milan, 

Consorzio MIP, MIT/MIP Executive Program. From 2003 to 

2008 he was Country Manager for South Eastern Europe 

and Chief Executive Officer of Enel Maritza East 3. From 

2008 he is Chief Operating Officer of Enel in Russia, and till 

2010 Deputy Chairman of the Board of Directors of OJSC 

OGK-5. From March to September of 2009 – General Direc-

tor of LLC Enel RUS. Since August 2010 he is General Direc-

tor of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Enrico Viale does not have any shares in the share capital of 

OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Vyacheslav Yurievich 
Artamonov 

born in 1957. In 1980 graduated from 

Moscow Power Engineering Institute 

(Technical University), PhD in 

technical sciences (Engineering). At the moment is the 

Deputy Chairman of the Executive Board – the Head of 

the Trading Block of OJSC “INTER RAO UES”. He was the 

member of the Board of Directors of the following compa-

nies: Open Joint Stock Company “Merchandise Exchange 

ARENA”, OJSC Bench-tester of Ivanovskaya GRES, CJSC In-

dustrial Energy Company, OJSC North-West Thermal Pow-

er Plant, CJSC INTER RAO UES Baltic as well as the member 

of the Executive Boards of the following companies: JSC 

OGK-1, TGR Energji, UAB Energijos Realizacijos Centras, 

RAO Nordic Oy. 

Vyacheslav Yurievich Artamonov does not have any shares 

in the share capital of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Marco Pierro  
Arcelli 

born in 1971. Graduated from University 

of Genoa, Italy in 1994. Currently holds 

the position of Executive Vice

 President of the “Gas” Division of Enel S.p.A. Before that, 

he was the General Director of Enel Slovénske Elektrárne, 

the President of Enel North America, the Head of the 

Business Development Department of the International 

Division of ENEL.

Marco Pierro Arcelli does not have any shares in the share 

capital of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Dmitry Sergeevich 
Akhanov 

born in 1975 in Rostov-on-Don. In 1999, 

graduated from the Russian University 

of People’s Friendship majoring in

 “Economy”, in 2000 – majoring in “Law”.  In 2003, worked 

Information on Members of the Board of Directors at position of the Head of the Strategy Department of 

OJSC RAO “UES of Russia”. Since 2005, has also been the 

Head of the Center for Implementation of Reform Projects 

of JSC-Energo of OJSC RAO UES of Russia. In 2007-2008, 

governed the Federal Agency for Energy (Rosenergo). 

In 2008-2010 occupied the position of the Chairman of 

the Board of Directors of Branan LLC. Since November 29, 

2010, acted as the Director for interaction with companies 

of USA and Canada of OJSC RUSNANO. 

At present he is an independent member of the Board of 

Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Akhanov Dmitry Sergeevich does not have any shares in 

the share capital of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Francesca Gostinelli  

born in 1973. Obtained a profession 

of an engineer majoring in natural 

resources in 1997, a Master degree

 in Management and Economy of Energy and Natural 

Resources in 1999. At the moment occupies the post 

of the Director for Business Development of Enel S.p.A. 

International Division. Since September 2007, she has 

been responsible for International regulation in Enel S.p.A. 

Before that, was the Head of the Department of climate 

regulation and changes of Endesa Italia.

Francesca Gostinelli does not have any shares in the share 

capital of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Gerald Joseph 
Rohan 

born in 1942. Graduated from Iona 

College in 1964 and obtained MBA 

degree in 1973. From 1993 till 2007, 

worked as Director of the Department of the fuel-and-

power enterprises of the Pricewaterhouse Coopers Russia 

B.V. Company. Since 2007, has been the General Director 

of Rohan Global Consulting, RBC. He is the member of 

the Energy Institute and the member of the Independent 

Directors Association. At present, is an independent 

member of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Gerald Joseph Rohan does not have any share in the share 

capital of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Carlo Tamburi  

born in 1959. Graduated from “La 

Sapienza” University in 1982. For many 

years worked at Citibank NA, Institute of 

Industrial Development, Ministry of Economy and Finance 

of Italy. Was a member of the Board of Directors of such 

companies as Finmeccanica, Alitalia, Wind and Enel. At 

present, is the Managing Director of the International 

Division of Enel S.p.A. Since July 2010, is the Deputy 

Chairman of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Carlo Tamburi does not have any shares in the share 

capital of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Maria Gennadiyevna Tikhonova 

was born in 1980. Graduated from Volgo-Viatskaya Acad-

emy of Public Administration majoring in Public and Mu-

nicipal Administration in 2002. From 2005 till 2008, was a 

leading specialist-expert, senior specialist-expert, Deputy 

Head of the Property Relations Department in the Fuel-

and-Energy complex of the Judicial Support Department 

and property relations in the Fuel-and-Energy Complex of 

the Federal Energy Agency. From August 2008 till March 

2010, was the Head of the Group, Deputy Director of the 

Department for Economic Regulation and Property Rela-

tions in the Fuel-and-Energy complex of the Ministry of 

Energy of the Russian Federation. Since March 2010, has 

been a Director of the Department for Economic Regula-

tion and Property Relations in the Fuel-and-Energy com-

plex of the Ministry of Energy of the Russian Federation. 

Maria Gennadiyevna Tikhonova does not have any shares 

in the share capital of OJSC Enel OGK-5.
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Luigi Ferraris  

born in 1962. Obtained a degree in 

Economics. At the moment, is Finance 

Director of Enel S.p.A. Started his work

 in Enel in 1999 as Finance Director of Eurogen, Elettrogen 

and Interpower. After that, he occupied the position of 

the Head of the Units of planning, control, management 

and maintenance of the functions of Infrastructure and 

Networks and Market; also worked as a Head of the 

Group, later as Vice-President for management, planning 

and control. 

Luigi Ferraris does not have any share in the share capital 

of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Aleksandr Sergeevich 
Yugov 

was born in 1981. Graduated from 

Krasnoyarsk State University majoring in 

Law in 2003. Since 2004, has  

worked for the Federal Agency for Public Property 

Management and at present holds the position of the 

Deputy Head of the Administration of Infrastructural 

Industries and military industrial complex organizations.

Aleksandr Sergeevich Yugov does not have any shares in 

the share capital of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Over 2010, 13 meetings of the Board of Directors of OJSC 

Enel OGK-5 were held (8 meetings in absentia-praesentia 

form and 5 meetings in the absentia form). 

The Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 within the 

framework of its competence considered 180 issues and 

adopted a number of solutions including the following: 

approval of the Company Budget for 2010 and the 

Business-plan of the Company for 2010-2014, approval of 

the charity program for 2010, consideration of the matters 

concerning preparation and holding the Annual General 

Shareholders’ Meeting, approval of the organizational 

structure of the executive office of the Company, election 

of the General Director, termination of the Contract with 

the Company Registrar – OJSC CMD and approval of a new 

registrar that is CJSC “Computershare Registrar”. 

The amount of remuneration to the members of the 

Board of Directors of the Company is determined in ac-

cordance with the “Regulations on payment to members 

of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 of remu-

nerations and compensations” approved by the Annual 

General Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company (Minutes 

No. 1 dated June 04, 2007) and is paid: for participation 

in meetings (basic component); for the value of net profit 

of the Company according to the data of annual financial 

statements approved by the General Shareholders’ Meet-

ing; in case of increase of market capitalization of the 

Company over the period of work of the Board of Direc-

tors (additional component).

In 2010, the total amount of remuneration paid to 

members of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 

amounted to RUR 3,342,253 (including, basic component 

- RUR 904,471, additional component – RUR 2 437 782).  

In 2010 remuneration was paid only to the independent 

members of the Board of Directors of the Company - D.S. 

Akhanov and G.J. Rohan. 

Committees of the board of 
directors
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel 

OGK-5 is acting by virtue of the Charter of the Company 

and the “Regulation on the Audit Committee of the Board 

of Directors of the Company”. The competence of the 

Audit Committee includes preliminary consideration,

Participation of members of the Board of Directors 

in meetings of the Board of Directors in 2010

(Information for the period from 10.06.2010 

(date of election of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel 

OGK-5 in the new membership) to 31.12.2010)

Full name Number of the meetings 

Dominique Fache 5

Enrico Viale 5 

Vyacheslav Yurievich Artamonov 4 

Marco Pierro Arcelli 5

Dmitry Sergeevich Akhanov 5

Franceska Gostinelli 5

Gerald Joseph Rohan 5

Carlo Tamburi 5

Maria Gennadievna Tikhonova 5

Luigi Ferraris 5

Aleksandr Sergeevich Yugov 5

analysis and generation of recommendations on certain 

matters of the competence of the Board of Directors (ap-

proval of the annual report of the Company, approval of 

the annual financial statements of the Company, etc.), 

development of recommendations to the Board of Direc-

tors on holding an annual independent audit of Financial 

statements of the Company, assessment of candidates to 

auditors of the Company, analysis of Financial Statements 

of the Company and results of external audit of financial 

statements of the Company, consideration of other mat-

ters at the request of the Board of Directors of the Com-

pany.

Committee for HR and Remuneration
The Committee for HR and Remuneration within the 

Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 is acting by virtue 

of the Charter of the Company and the “Regulations on 

the Committee for HR and Remuneration” within the 

Board of Directors of the Company.

Competence of the Committee for HR and Remuneration 

includes preliminary consideration, analysis and develop-

ment of recommendations on the following matters of 

the competence of the Board of Directors of the Company: 

election of the General Director of the Company and early 

termination of his powers, in particular, adoption of the 

decision on early termination of the labor contract with 

him; determination of the quantitative membership of 

the Executive Board of the Company, election of members 

of the Executive Board of the Company, early termination 

of their powers and establishment of remunerations and 

compensations for them, in particular, adoption of the de-

cision on early termination of labor contracts with them; 

submission for resolution by the General Shareholders’ 

Meeting of the Company of the matter on delegating 

powers of the sole executive body of the Company to the 

management organization and early termination of the 

powers of the management organization; approval of 

the terms and conditions of contracts entered into with 

the General Director of the Company, members of the 

Executive Board, management organization; other mat-

ters related to the above mentioned matters and other 

matters upon instruction of the Board of Directors of the 

Company.

Corporate secretariat

In 2006 the Company approved the “Regulations on 

the Corporate Secretary and Secretariat of the Board of 

Directors” (Minutes No.5 dated 30.03.2006) developed 

in accordance with the Federal Law “On Joint Stock 

Companies”, the Charter of the Company, internal 

documents of the Company and recommendations of 

the Code of Corporate Management, recommended by 

Federal Service for Financial Markets of Russia. 

The Corporate Secretary is obliged to ensure the following:

Composition of Committee for HR and Remuneration 

as of January 1, 2010

Full name Job Position

Dominique Fache 
(Chairman)

Chairman of the Board of 
Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5

Enrico Viale
Chief Operating Officer of ENEL 

in Russia 

Dmitry Sergeevich Akhanov Independent Director

Committee for HR and Remuneration elected 

on July 27, 2010

Full name Job Position

Dominique Fache 
(Chairman)  

Chairman of the Board of 
Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5

Luigi Ferraris Enel S.p.A Finance Director

Dmitry Sergeevich Akhanov Independent Director

Composition of the Audit Committee 

as of January 1, 2010

Full name Job Position

Gerald Joseph Rohan
(Chairman)

Independent Director, General 
Director of Rohan Global 

Consulting, RBC

Enrico Viale
Chief Operating Officer of 

ENEL in Russia 

Renato Mastroianni

Head of the Integration, 
Process Optimization 

and Security at Enel

Audit Committee elected on July 27, 2010 

Full name Job Position

Gerald Joseph Rohan
(Chairman)

Independent Director, General 
Director of Rohan 

Global Consulting, RBC

Arcelli Marco Pierro
Executive Vice-President of “Gas” 

Block of ENEL S.p.A. 

Francesca Gostinelli

Director of the Business 
Development Department of 

International Division of Enel S.p.A.
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> observance at the Company of the procedure for prepa-

ration and execution of the General Shareholders’

Meeting;

>  efficient activity of the Board of Directors and its 

committees;

>  the procedure for storage, disclosure and provision of 

information about the Company

The corporate secretary shall accomplish the functions of 

the secretary of the Board of Directors of the Company, 

the General Shareholders’ Meeting of the Company, 

Committees of the Board of Directors of the Company 

unless otherwise is provided for by decisions of the Board 

of Directors of the Company.

The Corporate Secretary of the Company shall be elected 

by the Board of Directors of the Company by majority of 

votes of its members attending the meeting. The position 

of the Corporate Secretary is elective.

The candidate of the Corporate Secretary is proposed by 

the Chairman of the Board of Directors or members of 

the Board of Directors if no Chairman of the Company is 

elected. The candidate for the position of the Corporate 

Secretary of the Company shall have the higher education 

in law or economics, shall have working experience in the 

area of corporate governance.

Since December 2009, the functions of the Corporate 

Secretary have been accomplished by Victor Valeriyevich 

Naboichenko – Corporate Director of OJSC Enel OGK-5 

(Minutes No. 16 of the Board of Directors dd. 18.12.2009). 

General Director and Executive 
board of the Company
Management of the current activity of OJSC Enel OGK-5 is 

carried out by the sole executive body – the General Direc-

tor and the collegial executive body – the Executive Board 

of the Company.

The General Director and Executive Board of the Company 

are subordinated to the General Shareholders’ Meeting 

and the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 and act on 

the basis of the Charter of the Company, Regulations on 

the Executive Board of the Company.

Formation of the Executive Board of the Company and 

appointment for the position of the General Director of 

the Company as well as early termination of powers of the 

members of the Executive Board and the General Director 

is exercised on the basis of the decision of the Board of 

Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

In 2010 the Executive Board of the Company carried out 

23 meetings in praesentia and meetings in absentia at 

which 66 issues were reviewed.

In 2010, the Executive Board of OJSC Enel OGK-5 ad-

dressed issues related to the Company's operation, includ-

ing reports of the structural units and industrial branches 

on financial results, matters of provision of corporate 

support and corporate assistance to improve the living 

conditions of the employees of the Company, feasibility 

and conditions of making contracts that are required in 

the process of business activities, review and approval of 

amendments in the internal documents of the Company.

Changes in the Composition of the 
Executive Board of the Company in 2010 
On January 14, 2010, by resolution of the Board of 

Directors, the powers of the member of the Executive 

Board A.A. Negomedzyanov were terminated (Minutes 

No. 17 dated January 18, 2010); on February 18, 2010, 

by resolution of the Board of Directors Thomas Bull, 

Investment & Capital Construction Director was elected 

to the Executive Board (Minutes No. 18 dated February 

24, 2010); on July 27, 2010, by resolution of the Board of 

Directors, the powers of the General Director and member 

of the Executive Board A.Ya. Kopsov were terminated in 

connection with expiry of the labor contract, the powers 

of the member of the Executive Board E.V. Chernyshev 

were terminated, Enrico Viale was elected as the General 

Director and became the member of the Executive Board, 

Commercial Director I.M. Lesnykh and the Procurement 

and Logistics Director Krassimir Nenov were elected to the 

Executive Board (Minutes No. 1/10 dated July 29, 2010); 

on October 14, 2010, by resolution of the Board 

Membership of the Executive Board 

of the Company as of January 1, 2010

Full name Job Position

Anatoly Yakovlevich 
Kopsov  

General Director of OJSC Enel OGK-5, 
Chairman of the Executive Board

Alexandr Alexandrovich 
Negomedzyanov 

Deputy Chairman of the Executive 
Board, First Deputy General Director – 

Executive Director 
of OJSC Enel OGK-5

Luca Sutera 
Deputy General Director – Finance 

Director of OJSC Enel OGK-5

Evgeny Vasilyevich 
Chernyshev 

First Deputy General Director – Chief 
Engineer of OJSC Enel OGK-5

of Directors, the composition of the Executive Board was 

extended to six persons, the First Deputy General Director 

– Generation Director G.Yu. Turanov was included to 

the Executive Board (Minutes No. 3/10 dated October 

15, 2010); on December 7, 2010, Krassimir Nenov was 

recognized withdrawn from the Executive Board and the 

composition of the Executive Board was reduced to five 

persons (Minutes No. 4/10 dated December 10, 2010). 

Thus, as of December 31, 2010, the following membership 

of the Executive Board of the Company was formed:

Enrico Viale — born in 1957. In 1982 he graduated 

from Polytechnic University of Turin in Civil Engineering; in 

1986 – from University of Santa Clara – School of Business, 

USA, MBA degree; in 1992 – from Massachusetts Institute 

of Technology (MIT), Sloan School of Business Polytech-

nic University of Milan, Consorzio MIP, MIT/MIP Executive 

Program. From 2003 to 2008 he was Country Manager for 

South Eastern Europe and Chief Executive Officer of Enel 

Maritza East 3. From 2008 he is Chief Operating Officer of 

Enel in Russia, and till 2010 Deputy Chairman of the Board 

of Directors of OJSC OGK-5. From March to September 

of 2009 – General Director of LLC Enel RUS. Since August 

2010 he is General Director of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Enrico Viale does not have any shares in the share capital 

of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Thomas Bull — born in 1964. He graduated from 

Voronezh State University in 1987, majoring in History, 

obtained a Master of Business Administration degree in 

Law from the Dresden International University, Germany 

in 2008. From 2005 to 2008, was the Vice President for 

Investment Project Management at E.ON Russia Power 

GmbH, since 2009, he has been the Investment & Capital 

Construction Director of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Thomas Bull does not have any shares in the share capital 

of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Igor Mikhailovich Lesnykh — born in 1968. 

He graduated from Novocherkassk Polytechnic Institute 

named after Sergo Ordzhonikidze in 1992. Since 2005, he 

held the positions of the Head of the Sales Group, Deputy 

Commercial Director - Head of the Sales Department of 

OJSC Enel OGK-5. Currently he occupies the post of the 

Deputy General Director - Commercial Director. 

Igor Mikhailovich Lesnykh does not have any shares in the 

share capital of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Luca Sutera — born in 1971. Obtained a Degree in 

Business Administration at Bocconi University, Milan in 

1997. From 2007 to 2008, was the Head of the Department 

for Integration of financial transactions in Russian of Enel 

S.p.A. International Division. Since 2008, has held the post 

of the Deputy General Director – Finance Director of OJSC 

Enel OGK-5.

Luca Sutera does not have any shares in the share capital 

of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Gennady Yurievich Turanov — born in 

1956. Graduated from Novosibirsk State Technical Univer-

sity in 1979. From 2001 to 2006, worked as the General Di-

rector at AES Ust'-Kamenogorskaya TETs OJSC, from 2006 

to 2010 – General Director at VostokEnergo LLC, Ukraine, 

since September 2010, has occupied the position of First 

Deputy General Director -Director for Generation of OJSC 

Enel OGK-5.

Gennady Yurievich Turanov does not have any shares in 

the share capital of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

In 2010, the total amount of remuneration paid to 

members of the Executive Board and General Director 

of OJSC Enel OGK-5 including salary, bonuses and other 

payments totaled RUR 63 585 874.

Full name Job Position

Enrico Viale 

General Director OJSC Enel OGK-5, 
Chairman of the Executive Board 

Chief Operating Officer of ENEL in 
Russia

Thomas Bull  

Deputy General Director – 
Investment & Capital Construction 

Director of OJSC Enel OGK-5

Igor Mikhailovich Lesnykh

Deputy General Director - 
Commercial Director of OJSC Enel 

OGK-5

Luca Sutera 
Deputy General Director – Finance 

Director of OJSC Enel OGK-5

Gennady Yurievich Turanov 

First Deputy General Director – 
Generation Director of OJSC Enel 

OGK-5



28 Enel   Annual report 2010 29

Internal Audit Commission elected 

on June 10, 2010

Full name Job Position

Pavel Nikolayevich Melnikov 

leading expert-specialist of the 
privatization and corporate 

affairs department of the 
Territorial Administration of 
the Federal Agency for State 

Property Management in 
Moscow

Francesco Marzullo 

Senior Manager of the 
Department of Internal Audit 

at Enel  

Carlo Palasciano Villamagna  
the Head of the Tax 
Department at Enel

Ernesto Di Giacomo  

Director of the Finance 
Department of Enel for Russia 

and CIS 

Gabriele Frea 

Head of the Structured 
and International Finance 

Department of Enel

Share of the members of the Internal Audit 

Commission in the authorized capital stock of the 

Company as of December 31, 2010:

Full name

Share of 
preferred 
shares, %

Share of 
ordinary 

shares, %

Pavel Nikolayevich Melnikov - 0

Ernesto Di Giacomo -  0

Gabriele Frea - 0

Francesco Marzullo - 0

Carlo Palasciano Villamagna  - 0

Payment of remunerations and compensations to mem-

bers of the Internal Audit Commission of the Company is 

made in accordance with the “Regulation on remunera-

tions and compensations to members of the Internal Au-

dit Commission” approved by the Board of Directors of 

OJSC RAO UES of Russia” (Minutes No. 200 dated July 29, 

2005) exercising the functions of the General Sharehold-

ers’ Meeting at OJSC Enel OGK-5.

The total amount of remuneration paid to the members 

of the Internal Audit Commission of OJSC Enel OGK-5 in 

2009 (for participation in audit) amounted to RUR 0.

Control Bodies of the 
Company

Internal Audit Commission of the 
Company
In accordance with Article 23 of the Charter of the Com-

pany for exercising control over financial and economic 

activities, the General Shareholders’ Meeting shall elect an 

Internal Audit Commission. 

The Internal Audit Commission of the Company is elected 

for the term until the next Annual General Shareholders’ 

Meeting. 

The Internal Audit Commission acts on the basis of the 

Charter, Regulation on the Internal Audit Commission of 

OJSC Enel OGK-5, Regulation on remunerations and com-

pensations to members of the Internal Audit Commission. 

The quantitative membership of the Internal Audit Com-

mission of the Company is 5 persons.

Information on availability of 
internal audit
The functions of the internal audit service of the Company 

are imposed on the internal audit organization unit – 

Internal Audit Group. 

Regulation on the internal control system (Minutes of 

the Board of Directors Meeting No. 2 dated February 20, 

2007), Regulations on Internal Audit Group (Minutes of 

the Board of Directors Meeting No. 1 dated February 2, 

2009) and the Procedure for interaction of the Internal 

Audit Group at OJSC Enel OGK-5 with the Audit Committee 

of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5, the Internal 

Audit Commission of OJSC Enel OGK-5, executive bodies 

of OJSC Enel OGK-5 (Minutes of the Board of Directors 

Meeting No. 23 dated May 28, 2010) were approved at 

the Company.

Main functions of the Internal Audit Group are as follows:

>  assessment of efficiency of the Company’s process con-

trol system, introduction of offers on corrective measures 

in accordance with detected risks;

>  holding audits aimed at checking:

-  effectiveness and profitability of the Company’s activi-

ties;

-  reliability and accuracy of accounting and management 

statements;

-  conformity of operational procedures to external and 

internal regulations, as well as to directives and manage-

ment principles of the Company;

>  determination of the necessary corrective measures for 

the Company management and for implementation of 

the plan of amendments introduction;

>  support of the Audit Committee and of other external 

control bodies;

> inspection of application and observation of Code of 

Ethics and Zero Tolerance towards Corruption Plan.

Information on availability of 
external audit
The auditor of the Company is Closed Joint Stock Com-

pany “KPMG” located at the following address: 123317, 

Russia, Moscow, Presnenskaya Naberezhnaya, 10, Block С, 

floor 31 and registered at the following address: 129110, 

Moscow, Olympic prospect, 18/1, office 3035. 

Procedure of electing the Company’s auditor 

By resolution of the Audit Committee of the Board of Direc-

tors of the Company (Minutes No. 7/10 dd. 18.03.2010), 

Closed Joint Stock Company “KPMG” was preliminarily ap-

proved. 

The Board of Directors of the Company made a decision 

on April 13, 2010 to propose at the Annual General Share-

holders’ Meeting of the Company to approve Closed Joint 

Stock Company “KPMG” as the Company’s auditor (Min-

utes No. 21 dd. April 15, 2010). 

Based on the voting results at the Annual General Share-

holders’ Meeting of the Company on item «Approval of 

the Company’s auditor», resolution was made «to approve 

Closed Joint Stock Company «KPMG” as the Company’s 

auditor» (License for audit operation No. 003330 dd. Jan-

uary 17, 2003, validity term of the license is extended to 

January 17, 2013)» (Minutes No. 1 dd. 11.06.2010). 

Internal Audit Commission elected 

on June 10, 2009 (operated till June 10, 2010)

Full name Job Position

Carlo Palasciano Villamagna   
the Head of the Tax 
Department at Enel 

Aleksey Vitaliyevich Komov 

Head of the Corporate and 
Legal Department of LLC ENEL 

RUS 

Francesco Marzullo 

Senior Manager of the 
Department of Internal Audit 

at Enel

Alexandr Victorovich Shevchyuk 
Expert of the Association for 

protection of investors’ rights

Ernesto Di Giacomo 

Director of the Finance 
Department of Enel for Russia 

and CIS
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Company securities
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Share capital 

As of the 31st of December 2010 the share capital of 

OJSC Enel OGK-5 amounted to 35,371,898,370 rubles 

and was divided into 35,371,898,370 ordinary shares 

with the nominal value of 1 ruble each. Over the entire 

period of operation since the moment of state registration 

of the Company (October 27, 2004) and until the 31st of 

December 2010 OJSC Enel OGK-5 did not exercise any 

issue of preferred shares.

As of 31 December 2010, the Russian Federation 

represented by the Federal Agency for Management of 

State Property owns 9,350,330,680 ordinary registered 

shares of OJSC Enel OGK-5 which constitutes 26.4343 % 

of the entire authorized capital stock of the Company. 

The amount of the contribution of the Russian Federation 

on the basis of the nominal value of ordinary share of 

OJSC Enel OGK-5 is equal to 9,350,330,680 rubles. 

The Russian Federation does not own any preferred shares 

in OJSC Enel OGK-5 since OJSC Enel OGK-5 did not exercise 

any issue of preferred shares.

The special right for participation of the Russian Federation, 

the Russian Federation constituent entities and municipal 

formations in management of OJSC Enel OGK-5 (“golden 

share”) is absent.

Issue history  

Main issue Additional issue Additional issue Additional issue Additional issue Additional issue

State registration number 
of the issue 1-01-50077-A 1-01-50077-A-001D 1-01-50077-A-002D 1-01-50077-A-003D 1-01-50077-A-004D 1-01-50077-A-005D

Date of state registration 
of the issue  24.12.2004  16.03.2006 16.03.2006 28.09.2006 07.08.2007 07.08.2007

Placed shares 29 407 170 459 4 105 388 231 69 5 100 000 000 600 000 400 000

Actually placed shares 29 407 170 459 864 514 976 69 5 100 000 000 168 061 44 805

Method of placement 
Acquisition of shares by the sole 

founder of the joint stock company 

Conversion of ordinary 
registered shares in 

OJSC Konakovskaya GRES attached 
to JSC OGK-5 into additional ordinary 

registered shares in JSC OGK-5 

Conversion of ordinary 
registered shares in OJSC 

Nevinnomysskaya GRES attached to 
JSC OGK-5 into additional ordinary 

registered shares in JSC OGK-5 Public subscription (IPO)

Conversion of ordinary 
registered non-documentary shares in OJSC “OGK-5 

Holding” into additional ordinary registered shares 
in JSC OGK-5.

Shares are placed at detachment of OJSC “OGK-
5 Holding” from OJSC RAO “UES of Russia” 

simultaneously with attachment of OJSC “OGK-5 
Holding” to JSC OGK-5 

Conversion of preferred registered 
non-documentary shares in OJSC “OGK-5 Holding” 

into additional ordinary registered shares in JSC 
OGK-5.

Shares are placed at detachment of OJSC “OGK-
5 Holding” from OJSC RAO “UES of Russia” 

simultaneously with attachment of OJSC “OGK-5 
Holding” to JSC OGK-5 

Date of commencement of 
placement 27.10.2004 01.04.2006 01.04.2006 01.11.2006 03.09.2007 03.09.2007

Date of termination of placement 27.10.2004 01.04.2006 01.04.2006 10.11.2006 03.09.2007 03.09.2007

Date of state registration of the 
report on results of issue / date of 
direction of the notice on results of 
the issue 24.12.2004 27.04.2006 27.04.2006 13.11.2006 11.10.2007 11.10.2007

Date of cancellation of the 
individual number (code) of the 
additional issue - 22.08.2006 17.08.2006 20.02.2007 15.01.2008 15.01.2008

Name of the registering body  The Federal Service for Financial Markets of Russia
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Turnover of the Company's Shares in the 
Organized Securities Market
Ordinary shares in the Company entered the organized 

securities market of Russia in 2005: since September 16, 

2005, these shares were included into the Section of off-

list securities of the List of Trade Systems NP SE RTS, OJSC 

SE RTS, since September 14, 2005 into CJSC SE MICEX, re-

spectively. On May 26, 2006, trade in shares in OJSC Enel 

OGK-5 commenced in the quotation list “B” of CJSC SE 

MICEX, on July 19, 2006 – in the quotation list “B” of NP 

“Stock Exchange RTS”. Since September 10, 2007, the or-

dinary shares have been included into the Morgan Stan-

ley Capital International (MSCI) index, since October 15, 

2007, the shares have been included into the base of cal-

culation of the “Index MICEX – power industry” (MICEX 

PWR). Securities of OJSC Enel OGK-5 were also included 

into the indices RTSI, RTS2, MICEX. On December 26, 2007, 

ordinary shares of OJSC Enel OGK-5 were included into the 

quotation list “А1” of RTS Exchange. 

In January 2008, securities of OJSC Enel OGK-5 (ordinary 

registered non-documentary shares of OJSC Enel OGK-

5 (the state registration number - 1-01-50077-A, code 

OGKE) were included into the quotation list “A1” of the 

stock exchange MICEX. In March 2008, ordinary shares 

were excluded from MSCI index. On May 12, 2009, ordi-

nary shares of OJSC Enel OGK-5 were transferred to the 

quotation list “А2” of RTS Exchange. Shares code is OGKE. 

Quote Dynamics on 

MICEX in 2010

Shares          MICEX:OGKE             MICEX:Power Sector

Share Trading Volumes 

on MICEX in 2010 (pcs.)

Quote Dynamics on RTS in 2010

    RTS:OGKE                   RTS Index

Share Trading Volumes 

on RTS in 2010

Dynamics of Stock Indices and Shares of OJSC Enel 

OGK-5 on MICEX and RTS

Shares          MICEX:OGKE             RTS:OGKE

Index                 MICEX: Composite               RTS Index

     S&P 500         FTSE Global Energy          

     MICEX:Power Sector

As of December 31, 2009, the market capitalization of 

the Company amounted to RUR 75,625,118,715. As of 

December 31, 2010, the market capitalization of the 

Company amounted to RUR 99,642,637,708.

Calculation of the market capitalization of the issuer was 

carried out on the basis of data of CJSC “SE MICEX” and is 

presented below.

Market capitalization of the issuer was calculated as the 

multiple of the number of shares of the relevant category 

(type) and the market price for one share*.

In 2006, the Company placed documentary non-convert-

ible interest-bearing bearer bonds with compulsory cen-

tralized custody in the amount of 5,000,000 bonds with 

the nominal value of RUR 1,000 each, the total nominal 

value of RUR 5,000,000,000, the state registration number 

is 4-01-50077-А dated August 17, 2006.

Bonds mature on the 1,820th day after the placement 

date, or September 29, 2011. Bonds redemption shall be 

exercised in monetary form in the currency of the Russian 

Federation on a non-cash basis. No options for the form of 

bonds redemption are granted to bondholders.

The coupon rate for the first, second, third, fourth, fifth

Market Capitalization

Bonds and Commercial Papers

Date of calculation
As of December 31, 2007

(December 28, 2007)
As of December 31, 

2008 
As of December 31, 

2009
As of December 31, 2010 

(December 30, 2010)

Number of transactions per 
month over 10 over 10 over 10 over 10

Number of shares, pcs. 35 371 898 370 35 371 898 370 35 371 898 370 35 371 898 370

Nominal value, rubles 1 1 1 1

Market value*, rubles 4,319 1,045 2,138 2,817

Capitalization, rubles 152 770 309 692 36 963 633 797 75 625 118 715 99 642 637 708

* — the market value calculated in accordance with the “Procedure for calculation of the market price of equity 

securities and investment shares in mutual investment funds admitted to circulation through trade arrangers” approved 

by Decree of the Federal Commission for the Securities Market of Russia dated December 24, 2003, No. 03-52/пс, at 

CJSC “SE MICEX”.

The main shareholders of OJSC Enel OGK-5 

the share of which in the authorized capital 

stock exceeds 5%

as of 31.12.2010.

Name
Number of 

shares, units

Share in the au-
thorized capital 

stock, %

ENEL Investment Holding B.V.  19 960 478 471  56,43

The Russian Federation  
represented by the Federal 
Agency for Management of 
State Property 9 350 330 680 26,4343

European Bank for 
Reconstruction and 
Development 1 831 509 560 5,1779

Renaissance Securities 
(Cyprus) 
Limited 1 887 054 076 5,33

Structure of the share capital of 

OJSC Enel OGK-5, %

As of January 01, 2010 .

RF 26,43%

Legal entities and nominee 
holders   71,71%  

Individuals 1,86% 

As of December 31, 2010.

RF 26,43%

Legal entities and nominee 
holders   71,85%  

Individuals 1,72% 
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and sixth coupon periods are 7.50% per annum. 

In 2010, coupon yield was paid on 7th and 8th coupons 

on April 1, 2009 and September 30, 2009 respectively in 

the amount of RUR 305,400,000.00 (on each coupon). The 

obligations were fulfilled timely.

Coupon rate for coupon periods 7, 8, 9, and 10 is 12.25% 

per annum. The rate was determined by the Company 

General Director Order No. 114 dated September 16, 

2009.

Bond yield payment schedule: 

Coupon 9 – March 31, 2011;

Coupon 10 – September 29, 2011.

Total interest payable on each coupon (7-10) is RUR 

305,400,000 (or RUR 61.08 per one bond).

The depository exercising compulsory centralized stor-

age of the bonds is the non-bank credit entity closed joint 

stock company “National Settlement Depository” (the 

universal legal successor of closed joint stock company 

“National Depository Center”), license 177-12042-000100 

dated February 19, 2009, issued by the Federal Commis-

sion for Securities Market of Russia without any limitation 

of the period of validity. 

On July 2, 2008, the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 

made the decision on placement of securities of the Com-

pany – documentary non-convertible interest-bearing 

bearer commercial papers with compulsory centralized 

storage of series БO-01 – БO-04, approved the decision 

on issue and Prospectus of securities of the Company. In 

2008, the volume of issue of 4 series of commercial papers 

of OJSC Enel OGK-5 was 8,000,000 (eight million) for the 

total value of RUR 8,000,000,000 (eight billion).  Maturity 

term – the 364th day upon the start date of placement.

On July 28, 2009, OJSC Enel OGK-5 placed commercial pa-

pers series БO-01 and БO -02 with the maturity term on 

the 364th day in the total amount of RUR 4 billion.

During 2010, the coupon payments were made for series 

БO-01 and БO-02 commercial papers (coupons 1 and 2) 

on January 26, 2010 and July 27, 2010 respectively, in the 

amount of RUR 121,660,000.00 (for each coupon). On 

July 27, 2010, series БO-01 and БO-02 commercial papers 

were redeemed. All obligations with respect to the said 

issues were fulfilled on time.

On September 23, 2009, the Board of Directors of the Com-

pany (Minutes No. 13) approved a resolution on changing 

the terms of placement of Series БO-03 – BO -04 commer-

cial papers. The main change relates to the increase of 

the securities’ term up to three years. These changes have 

been made possible due to changes in the federal legisla-

tion - namely, on December 30, 2008, amendments were 

introduced into the Federal Law On Securities Market, al-

lowing for an increase of the commercial papers’ maturity 

from one to three years after the date of their placement 

(Federal Law dated December 30, 2008 No. 320- FZ On 

Making Amendments to Article 27.5-2 of the Federal Law 

“On securities market”). 

On December 15, 2009, the Board of Directors of OJSC 

Enel OGK-5 approved a resolution to register securi-

ties of the Company - series БO-05 – БO-19 commercial 

papers, and also approved the resolution on the issue 

and the prospectus of the Company's securities. Volume 

of issue of 14 series of commercial papers of OJSC Enel 

OGK-5 is 50,000,000 (fifty million) for the total value of 

RUR 50,000,000,000 (fifty billion).  Papers mature on the 

1,092nd day after the start date of placement.

The depositary exercising compulsory centralized custody 

of the bonds is the non-bank credit entity closed joint 

stock company “National Settlement Depository” (the 

universal legal successor of closed joint stock company 

“National Depository Center”), license 177-12042-000100 

dated February 19, 2009, issued by the Federal Commis-

sion for Securities Market of Russia without any limitation 

of the period of validity. 

On December 30, 2009, series БO-05 – БO-19 commercial 

papers were admitted to trade at MICEX.

On June 22, 2010, the Company placed series БO-15 com-

mercial papers in the amount of 4,000,000 papers with 

the nominal value of RUR 1,000 each for the total value 

of RUR 4,000,000,000, identification number of the issue: 

4B02-15-50077-A dated December 30, 2009.

The coupon rate for the first, second, third, fourth coupon 

periods is 7.5 % per annum. 

During 2010, coupon yield on series БO-15 commercial 

papers was paid on December 21, 2010 for the amount of 

RUR 149,600,000.00. The obligations were fulfilled timely.

Dynamics of Bonds of OJSC Enel OGK-5 over 2010

Following the permit issued by the Federal Financial 

Markets Service of Russia in relation to the  circulation 

of the company’s ordinary shares abroad in the amount 

of not more than 7,074,537,100 shares, the company 

launched a GDR program under Regulation S (Reg S) 

for its shares. The ratio of GDR to ordinary shares of the 

Company is 1:50.

The purpose of opening of the Company’s GDR Program 

was improvement of liquidity of the company’s securities, 

ensuring growth of its shareholder value as well as ensuring 

protection of the rights and legal interests of holders 

of RAO “UES of Russia” ADRs and GDR. Holders of RAO 

“UES of Russia” DRs obtained the rights in relation to the 

securities of the Company in the course of reorganization 

of OJSC RAO “UES of Russia”, which was exercised by 

means of a spin-off of OJSC “OGK-5 Holding from OJSC 

RAO “UES of Russia” with simultaneous consolidation of 

the former to the Company. 

Depositary receipts

Program name Depository Bank
Quantity of depositary 
receipts  in circulation 

% receipts in 
circulation from 

the authorized 
capital stock

Name of the foreign 
trade arranger 

Sponsored*

GDR (ordinary shares)
The Bank of New York 

Mellon 

6 358 385 
(corresponds to  

317 919 250 ordinary 
shares of the Company) 0,90

Off-exchange market of 
securities 

* — As of December 2010. 
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Name Address Type of activity
Stake in share 

capital, %

OJSC “Sanatorium – preventorium 
“Energetik”

Stavropol Krai, 
City of Nevinnomyssk   

Provision of sanatorium 
services and medical care 99,99

LLC “OGK-5 Finance” Moscow 
Investment and financial 

activity 100

* — Information is provided on organizations where OJSC Enel OGK-5’s stake exceeds 5%.

OJSC Enel OGK-5 is also a member in a number of non-commercial organizations:

>  Non-state pension fund of power industry; 

>  All-Russian Industrial Association of Employers in the power industry;

>  Non-Commercial Partnership “Market Council”;

>  NP “Council of Producers of power industry”.

Company participation in 
other organizations

Position of Enel OGK-5 in 
industry

Competition
Since the power plants of OJSC Enel OGK-5 together with 

other power plants are incorporated into the unified 

energy system of Russia with unified networks, processes 

of generation and consumption of power, we can say that 

competitors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 are all thermal generating 

companies as well as Rosenergoatom and RusHydro 

as other participants of the wholesale power market 

of power. However, while performing a more detailed 

analysis of competition, it is necessary to note that the 

power plants of OJSC Enel OGK-5 are located within the 

first price zone, and also consider the factor of remoteness 

of a specific power supplier from the load centre, thus 

determining the degree of impact of each competitor on 

the market pricing in a region.  

Hydropower plants and nuclear power plants have 

lower power production costs as compared to thermal 

generators. Also, due to particularities of operation of their 

generating equipment (safety, environmental protection 

measures, use of natural resources as well as modes of 

operation) these types of plants are more competitive in 

the power market.  In their turn, hydropower plants and 

nuclear power plants, unlike thermal power plants, bear 

higher costs for maintaining availability of generation 

capacities for bearing load which makes heat power 

plants more competitive in the capacity market.

Thermal power plants using gas and fuel oil as fuels are in 

equal conditions from the point of view of competition. 

Taking into account a significant growth of prices 

for gas and fuel oil as well as forecasted dynamics of 

price growth for 2014-2015 (the Ministry of Economic 

Development and Trade of the Russian Federation) at 

rates significantly exceeding rates of coal price growth 

(the Ministry of Economic Development and Trade of the 

Russian Federation) coal-fired power plants will become 

more competitive. If compared to peers, the advantage of 

OJSC Enel OGK-5 lies in the fact that the fuel mix of the 

Company is characterized by a significant share of coal 

(45-55%). So, limitations in gas supplies and fuel oil price 

fluctuations have a lower impact on OJSC Enel OGK-5 if 

compared to its peers.

The main competitive advantages of the Company are as 

follows:

>  a leading position in the area of power sales;

>  plants’ location;

>  an optimal fuel mix;

>  a high degree of personnel's knowledge and skills.

Branch
Location of 

competitors Competitors

KGRES

UES of  Center 
(Central Federal 

District of the Russian 
Federation),

UES of  North - West  

Kostromskaya GRES – 3,600 MW (OGK-3)
HPP-26 – 1,410 MW (Mosenergo)

Smolenskaya NPP – 4,000 MW (Rosenergoatom)
Kalininskaya NPP – 3,000 MW (Rosenergoatom)

Leningradskaya NPP – 4,000 MW (Rosenergoatom)
Kirishskaya GRES – 2,097 MW (OGK-6)

Zagorskaya GAES – 1,200 MW (RusHydro)

NGRES UES of South 

Stavropolskaya GRES – 2,400 MW (OGK-2)
Novocherkasskaya GRES – 2,112 MW (OGK-6) 

Volgodonskaya NPP – 1,000 MW (Rosenergoatom)
Hydro plants of the UES of South (RusHydro)

RGRES 
and SUGRES UES of Urals

Beloyarskaya NPP – 600 MW (Rosenergoatom)
Verkhnetagilskaya GRES – 1,497 MW (OGK-1)

Novo-Sverdlovskaya HPP – 110 MW (TGK-9)
Nizhnevartovskaya GRES – 1,600 MW (OGK-1)

Permskaya GRES – 2,400 MW (OGK-1)
Surgutskaya GRES-1 – 3,280 MW (OGK-2)
Surgutskaya GRES-2 – 4,800 MW (OGK-4)
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The main factors which have a negative impact on the pro-

duction and, respectively, sales of power, are as follows:

>  fuel related limitations;

>  network limitations and UES modes.

Fuel Factor
The main type of fuel used at Konakovskaya GRES, Nevin-

nomysskaya GRES and Sredneuralskaya GRES branches is 

natural gas, while the reserve fuel is fuel oil. The fuel struc-

ture at these plants is as follows: 97-98% falls on natural 

gas and 2-3% falls on fuel oil.  The total amount of gas 

includes regulated gas sold at the tariff rate set by the 

Federal Tariff Service of Russia (amounting from 70% to 

100% the total gas structure) and market gas (amounts 

to   0% - 30%).

The main factors, influencing the volume of power gen-

eration are both the power demand and existence of 

contracts concluded with gas suppliers – OJSC Gasprom 

branches and independent suppliers.

Use of large volumes of fuel oil is inadvisable from the 

economic point of view due to high power production net 

cost. Fuel oil cost exceeds the tariff rate in the regulated 

sector by 2.5 times. Use of fuel oil is feasible in case of high 

power prices on the free market arising from the growing 

power demand. The cost of fuel oil is subject to material 

fluctuations depending on many factors (oil prices at the 

external market, demand, seasonal effects).

The volumes of power production and sale by the Com-

pany's power plants are influenced by operation modes 

being set in the Unified Energy System, namely:

> maintenance of network equipment of electrical substa-

tions and outgoing overhead power transmission lines;

> maintenance, start-ups, shut downs and modes of op-

eration of generating equipment of power plants.

Konakovskaya GRES
Taking into account the last tendencies for power demand 

in the UES of Center, influence of generation capacities of 

competing companies on the mode of operation of Kona-

kovskaya GRES is significant during the heating period 

and is associated with the increase of operation of the 

companies, the power facilities of which operate in the 

cogeneration mode. 

The maintenance of equipment of the following main 

overhead power transmission lines (OTL) and substations 

significantly influences the operation mode of Konakovs-

kaya GRES: overhead power transmission line of Kalinin-

skaya nuclear power plant (NPP) – Opytnaya, overhead 

power transmission line of Konakovskaya GRES – Chere-

povets, overhead power transmission line of the Kalinin-

skaya NPP - Belozerskaya, overhead power transmission 

line Ochakovo – HPP 26, overhead power transmission line 

of HPP 26 – Pakhra and substation Belozerskaya, Substa-

tion Opytnaya, Substation Vladimir.

Nevinnomysskaya GRES
Nevinnomysskaya GRES is situated in a complicated pow-

er hub of the UES of South. To ensure operation reliability 

of this power hub, the ODU of the South plans to provide 

increased load of generation capacities of Nevinnomyss-

kaya GRES except for the following: 

> operation of the power grid in maintenance schemes 

when limitation of load of the power plant is necessary;

> the flood period when limitation of the power plant's 

load is caused by increased output of capacity from the 

GES of the UES of South “locking” Nevinnomysskaya GRES 

due to grid peculiarities.

The advantage of Nevinnomysskaya GRES is its position in 

the power grid of South which ensures load and high in-

stalled capacity utilization factor. 

Reftinskaya GRES and Sredneuralskaya 
GRES
Loading of capacities of Reftinskaya GRES is conditioned 

by total power intensity of the Urals Region and low pow-

er generation cost and, as a consequence, by high com-

petitiveness.. Loading of capacities of Sredneuralskaya 

GRES, (considering low power generation cost) is condi-

tioned not only by the power demand of the UES of Urals 

but also by the heat demand by consumers of the follow-

ing cities: Yekaterinburg, V. Pyshma, and Sredneuralsk.

Change in shares of Generation of Power Plants 

of OJSC Enel OGK-5 in 2009 and 2010

Power plant 2009 2010 Change

KGRES share in the UES of the Center 3,4%  3,9% 0,5%

NGRES share in the UES of the South 7,9% 7,6% −0,3%

RGRES Share and SuGRES share in the 
UES of Urals 12,2% 12,2% 0,0%

Share of OJSC  Enel OGK-5 in the I Price 
Zone* 5,7% 5,9% 0,2%

I Price Zone* — the First Price Zone of the Wholesale Power (Capacity) 

Market (WPCM), including the European part of Russia and the Urals.

The increase of OJSC Enel OGK-5 generation share in the 

First Price Zone of WPCM is related to 23.1 % and 9.3% 

increase of Konakovskaya GRES and Reftinskaya GRES 

generation volumes correspondingly compared with the 

previous year.

Key Operating Results

Power Generation by the Company’s Power Plants for 2008-2010

Power plant Unit of measurement 2008 2009 2010

Konakovskaya GRES ths. MW*h  8 120 7 469 9 195

Nevinnomysskaya GRES ths. MW*h 6 225 5 515 5 739

Reftinskaya GRES ths. MW*h 20 966 21 147 23 100

Sredneuralskaya GRES ths. MW*h 7 694 7 208 7 084

OJSC Enel OGK-5 ths. MW*h 43 005 41 338 45 118

Power generation dymamics, thousand MW*h

Power generation dynamics, thousand MW*h
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In 2010, the power plants of OJSC Enel OGK-5 generated 

45,118 mln. KWh of power, 8.4% more than in 2009. 

Output of Konakovskaya GRES, Nevinnomysskaya GRES 

and Reftinskaya GRES increased by 18.8%, 3.9% and 

8.5% respectively. The output of Sredneuralskaya GRES 

decreased by 1.8%.
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Dynamics of the Net Power Output with Breakdown by Power Plants for 2008-2010

Item 
No. Power plant

Unit of 
measurement 2008 2009 2010

1 Konakovskaya GRES  ths. MW*h 7 770 7 157 8 836

2 Nevinnomysskaya GRES ths. MW*h 5 841 5 169 5 385

3 Reftinskaya GRES ths. MW*h 19 905 20 046 21 991

4 Sredneuralskaya GRES ths. MW*h 7 213 6 740 6 618

TOTAL OJSC Enel OGK-5 ths. MW*h 40 729 39 112 42 830

Dynamics of net power output ths. MW*h
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Power generation structure of OJSC ENEL OGK-5 branches in 2010

KGRES 20,4%

NGRES 12,7%  

RGRES 51,2% 

SUGRES 15,7%

Heat output 

Net Heat Output by the Company’s Power Plants in 2008-2010

Power plant Unit of measurement 2008 2009 2010

Konakovskaya GRES ths.Gcal  240 250 241

Nevinnomysskaya GRES ths.Gcal 1 801 1 706 1 688

Reftinskaya GRES ths.Gcal 462 434 448

Sredneuralskaya GRES ths.Gcal 4 316 4 376 4 144

OJSC Enel OGK-5 ths.Gcal 6 819 6 767 6 521

In 2010, OJSC Enel OGK-5 branches generated 6,521 ths. 

Gcal of heat, which is 3.6% less than in 2009. The heat 

generation of Konakovskaya GRES, Nevinnomysskaya 

GRES and Sredneuralskaya GRES decreased by 3.7%, 1.1% 

and 5.3% correspondingly and at Reftinskaya GRES it 

increased by 3.1%.

Dynamics of the net output of heat, ths. Gcal

Heat output structure of OJSC Enel OGK-5 branches in 2010

KGRES 3,7%

NGRES 25,9%  

RGRES 6,9% 

SUGRES 63,6%

Power Generation Structure, Load and Capacity Reserve per Branches

Konakovskaya GRES Branch

Power Generation Structure

Name Unit of measurement 2008 2009 2010

300 MW units ths. MW*h  8 120,0 7 469,1 9 195,2

Nevinnomysskaya GRES Branch

Power Generation Structure

Name Unit of measurement 2008 2009 2010

Cogeneration 
units ths. MW*h 661,2 636,0 642,9

150 MW units ths. MW*h 4 534,6 4 692,2 4 777,1

170 MW CCGT ths. MW*h 1 029,0 185,3 319,0

Total ths. MW*h 6 224,8 5 514,5 5 739,0

Reftinskaya GRES branch

Power Generation Structure

Name Unit of measurement 2008 2009 2010

300 MW units ths. MW*h  10 242,2 11 448,2 10 927,1 

500 MW units ths. MW*h 10 699,4 9 698,6 12 173,2

Total ths. MW*h 20 941,6 21 146,8 23 100,3

Sredneuralskaya GRES Branch

Power Generation Structure

Name Unit of measurement 2008 2009 2010

Non unit part  ths. MW*h  1 985,5 1 689,6 1 904,5 

Unit part ths. MW*h 5 705,1 5 517,9 5 179,0

Total ths. MW*h 7 690,6 7 207,5 7 083,5

Capacity Use in 2010

Load 53,1%

Reserve 38,2%  

Maintenance 8,6% 

Capacity Use in 2010

Load 61,4%

Reserve 24,8%  

Maintenance 13,8% 

Capacity Use in 2010

Load 73,2%

Reserve 5,8%  

Maintenance 21,0% 

Capacity Use in 2010

Load 78,9%

Reserve 2,8%  

Maintenance 18,3% 

7 000

6 000

5 000

4 000

3 000

2 000

1 000

0

2008            2009           2010 

KGRES                      NGRES                       RGRES                      SUGRES                      OGK-5



44 Enel   Annual report 2010 45

Mission and strategy of the 
Company in power sales
The Company sells power and capacity to the wholesale 

power (capacity) market (WPCM) in the First price zone in-

cluding the European part of the Russian Federation and 

the Urals.  

Main players in the wholesale 
power market 
The main players in the wholesale power market:

> Wholesale generating and territorial generating compa-

nies formed as a result of reforming of power industry – 

OGKs, TGKs, RusHydro;

> RosRosenergoatom”;

> Retail companies with the status of guarantee suppliers, 

large retail companies formed as a result of power indus-

try reform, as well as independent suppliers.

Regulatory authorities in the 
power area
> The Government of the Russian Federation, the Ministry 

of Economic Development of the Russian Federation, the 

Ministry of Industry and Trade, the Ministry of Energy of 

the Russian Federation perform the legal regulation of 

the power sector pursuant to federal laws of the Russian 

Federation on power industry; they define the main 

directions for the development of the power sector of the 

Russian Federation as well as develop the state policy in 

the field of fuel and energy complex.

>  Federal Antimonopoly Service of the Russian Federation 

(FAS of the RF) performs the state antimonopoly regulation 

and control, including the definition of unified regulations 

on access to the electric networks and services of power 

transmission in the territory of the Russian Federation.

> Federal Tariff Service of the Russian Federation (FTS 

of the RF) is an authority regulating the power industry 

subjects’ activity on the wholesale and retail power 

market in the field of approval of tariffs and scope of 

purchase/sales of power and the capacity, considering 

non-exceeding the limits of growth of the tariffs for end 

consumers, established by the Government of the Russian 

Federation for the forthcoming regulation period.

> JSC FGC UES  - organization which manages the unified 

national (all-Russian) power network.  It provides, on a 

paid contractual basis, the services of power transmission 

through the unified national (all-Russian) power network 

to the WPCM subjects, as well as to other entities, owing, 

by virtue of property right or any other basis provided by 

the federal laws, the power industry facilities, connected 

to the unified national (all-Russian) electric network 

according to the established procedure.

>  JSC SO CDU of UES – organization, being the subject of 

operating and dispatch control, which executes a complex 

of measures aimed at centralized control of operating 

modes of power industry facilities and power receiving 

installations of consumers within the Unified Power 

System of Russia and technologically isolated territorial 

power systems

>  JSC ATS  - infrastructural organization of WPCM, having 

the following main tasks: organization of wholesale power 

trade, verification of cross-obligations set-off between 

the trade  market participants; organization of wholesale 

market guarantees and settlements system, control of 

market regulations fulfillment.

> NP Market Council – infrastructural organization of 

WPCM, which has the following main tasks: provision of the 

WPCM commercial infrastructure functioning, provision 

of effective interconnection between the wholesale and 

retail markets, of competitiveness in the wholesale and 

retail market, maintenance of the balance of interests of 

power and capacity generators and purchasers,  covering 

of social needs for reliable and stable power supplies. 

Sales Company’s Position on the 
Market, Trends of Changes per 
Market Segments 
Main markets where the Company operates.

OJSC Enel OGK-5 carries out its activities selling power on 

the following wholesale market segments:

RC (regulated contracts)
In 2010, the power sale subject to regulated contracts (RD) 

entered into on wholesale power (capacity) market was 

carried out under the regulated prices approved by FTS of 

the Russian Federation. The RC portfolio volume is equal 

to the power and capacity supply balance of the FTS of 

the Russian Federation for 2007 (base volume) decreased 

by the liberalization share amount, approved by the De-

cree of the Government of the Russian Federation dated 

April 7, 2007, No. 205, with the consideration of specific 

features, defined by the Decree of the Government of the 

Russian Federation dated August 31, 2006, No. 529

Since January 1, 2010, the liberalization volume account-

ed to 40%, and since July 1, 2010, the liberalization vol-

ume accounted to 20 % of the forecasted balance for 

2007 accounting the peculiarities of the power volumes 

formation for population supply.

Day Ahead Market (DAM)
In the “day-ahead market” surplus (missing) volumes of 

power are traded for ensuring the portfolio of regulated 

contracts at free (marginal) prices obtained as a result of 

a competitive tender of price bids from participants of 

the wholesale market for purchase/sale of power. Trade 

in the DAM (day-ahead market) is organized and held by 

OJSC “ATS” (Open Joint Stock Company “Administrator of 

Trade System”). 

Balancing market (BM)
Trade in deviations of the actual production schedule 

from the scheduled one is exercised at the balancing mar-

ket at prices formed on the basis of a competitive tender 

upon the marginal principle of bids of participants of the 

balancing market (suppliers and consumers with regu-

lated load).

Capacity
A certain portion of available capacity is sold under 

regulated contracts (RC) according to the adjusted tar-

iff approved by the Federal Tariff Service of the Russian 

Federation taking into account the capacity volume for 

population supply as well as for power sales and supply 

companies located in the entities of the Russian Federa-

tion at the territory of which special conditions for whole-

sale power and capacity market operation during the 

transition period are determined.

Trade in liberalized, «free capacity» will be effected 

through mechanisms of competitive capacity take-off, ex-

ecution of free contracts (directly with the purchaser) and 

via exchange of power and capacity.

Sales of capacity under free contracts may take place 

through exchange trades on commodity exchanges and 

through the counter trade directly with a contracting par-

ty at the contractual price.

Calculation of the cost of supplied capacity shall be car-

ried out taking into account “capacity quality”. This market 

mechanism permits to stimulate suppliers to ensure avail-

ability of generating equipment.

To ensure demand for generating capacity in the free flow 

capacity zone (FFCZ) on the wholesale market, the System 

Operator of Unified Energy System carries out a competi-

tive capacity takeoff on the basis of volumes of generat-

ing capacities and consumption volumes accounted in the 

budgeted balance sheet for the relevant calendar year. 

Hence, in the 3rd quarter of 2010, the System Operator 

carried out a competitive capacity takeoff with beginning 

of capacity supply period on January 1, 2001.

Power and Capacity Sales for 2009-2010 

(according to the administrative reporting data)

Name period ths. MW*h % to previous year

OJSC Enel OGK-5
2009
2010

39 112
42 829

96,0
109,5

Konakovskaya GRES
2009
2010 

7 157
8 836

92,1
123,5

Nevinnomysskaya 
GRES

2009
2010

5 169
5 385

88,5
104,2

Reftinskaya GRES
2009
2010

20 046
21 991

100,7
109,7

Sredneuralskaya GRES
2009
2010

6 740
6 618

93,4
98,2

Power and capacity
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Revenue from power and capacity sales increased by 

25.9% mainly thanks to the growth of tariffs in the 

regulated sector and the rise of power (capacity) prices in 

the free sector of the wholesale market.

Heat Sales
Heat sales are carried out on the regional market, at the 

place of power plant location, according to the tariffs, 

approved by the relevant regional power commissions of 

the Russian Federation.

The aggregate installed heat capacity of the Company 

amounts to 2,412 Gcal/h.

Heat sales:

> Konakovskaya GRES branch (Tver Oblast, Konakovo);

> Nevinnomysskaya GRES branch (Stavropol Krai, 

Nevinnomyssk);

> Reftinskaya GRES branch (Sverdlovsk Oblast, Asbest, 

Reftinskiy settlement);

> Sredneuralskaya GRES branch (Sverdlovsk Oblast, 

Yekaterinburg, Verkhnyaya Pyshma, Sredneuralsk).

Name period ths. Gcal % to previous year

OJSC Enel OGK-5
2009
2010

6 767
6 521

99,2
96,4

Konakovskaya GRES
2009
2010 

250
241

104,2
96,3

Nevinnomysskaya GRES
2009
2010

1 706
1 688

94,8
98,9

Reftinskaya GRES
2009
2010

434
448

93,9
103,1

Sredneuralskaya GRES
2009
2010

4 376
4 144

101,4
94,7

Revenue from heat sales grew by 10% thanks to the 

growth of heat tariffs.

Heat

Dynamics of the income from heat sales, mln. RUR

2008            2009           2010 
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OJSC Enel OGK-5 positions itself as an industry leader 

providing successful raising of investments and able 

to effectively manage the raised funds for the purpose 

of strengthening the market position, increasing the 

Company’s value for shareholders, satisfying energy 

consumers’ demand and implementing a responsible 

social and environmental policy. OJSC Enel OGK-5 is 

a Russian Company with international standards of 

corporate governance that pays much attention to 

work with shareholders and investors, complies with all 

the requirements on information disclosure, which is 

confirmed by the highest corporate governance rating 

among similar companies and the highest level of 

transparency among generating companies according to 

the international rating agency Standard&Poor’s.

Implementation of the middle-term Company Strategy 

may be divided into the three following priority directions:

Increasing O&M efficiency:

Implementation of the 
Company investment 
program:

Optimization of the 
Company fixed costs

> Maintenance schedule optimization, shrinking of main-

tenance periods and higher effectiveness of maintenance 

processes

> Reduction of heat rate for power generation

> Competence improvement in the field of effective pow-

er sales management

> Diversification of fuel sources, primarily coal, and optimi-

zation of fuel logistics

> Commissioning of the two new CCGT units at Sredneu-

ralskaya GRES and Nevinnomysskaya GRES with the in-

stalled capacity of 410 MW each.

> Modernization and availability improvement of the ex-

isting units.

> Investments into environment and safety

> Optimization of the key procurement procedures.

> Introduction of a new enterprise management system 

(SAP/R3).

> Restructuring of the Company personnel

KGRES                      NGRES                       RGRES                      SUGRES                      OGK-5
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Basic risk factors of 
company activities

The Company is sticking to a proactive approach in risk 

management through continuous risk identification and 

taking risk mitigation measures. The Company under-

stands the risks to which it is exposed in the course of ful-

fillment of its activities and achievement of strategic, op-

erational, financial and other targets. The company pays 

great attention to risk management and continuously im-

proves the risk management system.

In 2010, there have been substantial improvements in the 

structure and approach to risk management at the level 

of Enel Group of companies, which OJSC Enel OGK-5 is a 

member of, for the purposes of positioning the risk man-

agement as one of the priority areas aimed at improving 

the corporate management. The Company heads for cre-

ating an integrated risk management model in order to 

consolidate the key risk management activities of its busi-

ness units and integrate the risk management system into 

the corporate culture.

The target model of the corporate risk management sys-

tem of OJSC Enel OGK-5 is being built as a set of functional 

elements and their interaction mechanisms at the level of 

organization, for developing, implementing, monitoring, 

analyzing and continuous improving the risk manage-

ment practice of the Company.

In 2010, a separate organization unit under the guidance 

of the Risk Management Director, being directly

subordinated to the General Director, was formed as one 

of the functional elements, also serving for the purpose 

of coordinating the activities of a the Risk Management 

Committee. 

In the reporting year, a complex integrated analysis of the 

key risks of the Company was carried out. The company 

goes on working at securing continuity of its operations 

and higher reliability of its equipment, managing fixed 

costs, analyzing a set of environmental risks. Commodity 

and credit risks methods and the financial risks manage-

ment strategy are being improved. In 2010, for the pur-

pose of strengthening the risk level monitoring and con-

trol, we started working on implementation of a system 

of limits.

Key risks connected with the Company’s operation are in-

dustry risks. Power industry is an infrastructure economic 

sector. The expected dynamics of the sector development 

is determined by general dynamics of social and economic 

development of all economic sectors of the Russian Fed-

eration, and, to some extent, by the climatic and weather 

conditions. Although being in its completion phase, the 

reform of the power industry is associated with a number 

of risks which may cause material influence both on busi-

ness and financial performance of the Company. One of 

the most significant events for the issuer in the power in-

dustry is creation and development of competitive whole-

sale power and capacity market. Activities of OJSC Enel 

OGK-5 are affected by the ever-changing industry regula-

tion. In case of preservation of the reforms promptness, 

in the course of reforming, industry risks will be reduced 

which will have a positive impact on the fair value of the 

Company. 

Risks related to regulation 
of tariffs for power and heat 
supply
Risk description: Slow-down of tariffs growth in the reg-

ulated power market may lead to loss of marginal profit 

and, as a consequence, limitation of possibilities of the 

Company to carry out the modernization of production 

capacities and commissioning of new capacities. 

Measures Taken by the Company:

OJSC Enel OGK-5 tries to gain the maximum possible ef-

fect under the given conditions by means of fulfillment of 

active work within the framework of the Market Council. 

The other key industry risks are the risk of absence of the 

mechanism for ensured payback of the investments into 

modernization, the risk of receiving an insufficient tariff 

for new capacity, as well as the risk of insufficient return 

on the fixed costs of the Company through the tariffs for 

the existing capacity due to implementation of pricing re-

strictions on the existing capacity.

Risk description: At present, the Company is implement-

ing a large-scale investment plan according to which 

more than 50% of funds will be assigned to the modern-

ization and refurbishment of the existing capacities. The 

long-term capacity market characteristics approved by the 

Government of the Russian Federation within the period 

from February to April 2010, stipulate fixed prices for new 

capacity calculated by a certain formula. The investment 

component of the price for new capacity is standard for 

all units of a certain type, and such price may below  the 

actual capital expenditures incurred in connection with 

the construction of a facility. Currently, no clearly defined
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defined rule concerning including the capital expendi-

tures into the tariffs is provided for investments into the 

modernization of existing facilities.

Measures Taken by the Company:

The Company is fostering inclusion of the capital ex-

penditures related to the modernization of the existing 

units, into capacity tariffs. Recently the state has officially 

stressed the need of creating a mechanism for reimburse-

ment of investments in modernization, which is a positive 

turn in resolving the said issue.

Further, according to an estimation made by the Company, 

the risks connected with production activities are still con-

siderable. The dependence on energy resources suppliers 

is estimated by the Company as one of the main produc-

tion risks. Three GRES out of four belonging to OJSC Enel 

OGK-5 are gas-fired. In conditions when gas prices on the 

world markets exceed domestic prices by a few times, gas 

export becomes a priority national strategy. At the same 

time, the domestic market faces a gas deficiency problem 

connected with admission of gas suppliers to the uniform 

gas transport system and carrying capacity limitations.

Risk description: Dependence of OJSC Enel OGK-5 on the 

monopoly gas supplier creates risks of taking advantage 

by the monopolist of its unique position in order to raise 

prices and to limit energy supplies.

Measures taken by the Company: the Company pays 

much attention to fuel supplies and ensuring fuel safety, 

and takes measures to prevent such risks by increasing op-

erational efficiency by means of implementing programs 

on the reduction of production costs and fuel saving at all 

power plants, execution of long-term agreements with in-

dependent suppliers and increase in their share in the to-

tal gas supplies volume. The Company expects additional 

competitive advantages to arise from the vertically inte-

grated structure of Enel Group, enabling to arrange direct 

gas supplies from enterprises included into the Group. 

Further, work is carried out on the improvement of fuel 

purchase planning and identification of optimal purchase 

timeframes.

The Company also considers a significant level of fixed as-

sets wear a sufficient risk factor.

Risk description: The main portion of generation capaci-

ties is worn out extensively. High maintenance costs and 

forced equipment outage may lead to considerable losses. 

Measures taken by the Company: In order to reduce the 

risk, the Company implements the investment program 

which stipulates construction of new capacities, and fulfils 

a maintenance plan Further, much attention is paid to re-

construction and technical refurbishment of fixed assets. 

The said programs implementation shall considerably in-

crease the reliability of the generating equipment.

Moreover, the Company transfers a part of the risk to third 

parties by procuring insurance of the fixed assets against 

breakdown and third parties’ civil liability. In order to en-

sure continuous production processes, the Company re-

plenishes fuel, spare parts and material stock regularly. 

Measures to improve energy system reliability are taken. 

And also, starting from 2009, the Company has introduced 

business interruption insurance for Reftinskaya GRES, the 

biggest power plant of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

Risk of negative consequences 
of delay in new generating 
equipment commissioning
Risk description: penalties imposed by state authori-

ties for delays in generating equipment commissioning 

at Nevinnomysskaya GRES and Sredneuralskaya GRES 

stipulated in the Contract on provision of capacity to the 

wholesale market dated April 18, 2008.

Measures taken by the Company: the Company entirely 

confirms invariability of its plans on new capacities con-

struction. The Company takes active steps in its effort to 

implement the investment program in time. However, the 

construction completion that, according to the schedule 

was planned to the 4th quarter of 2010, was postponed 

to the first half of 2011. The Company takes all reasonable 

steps to minimize the schedule delay.

Due to the present economic situation caused by the 

global financial crisis, the Company is exposed to eco-

nomic risks. Financial crisis already negatively affects the 

customer demand, which may influence the Company’s 

activities to a greater extent. Such negative factors as de-

crease in power demand may lead to loss of profit.

Presently, in its current activities, OJSC Enel OGK-5 also 

faces other considerable risks including:

> risks associated with the implementation of the Com-

pany’s strategy;

> financial risks associated with management, optimiza-

tion and control over financial resources and cash flows;

> legal risks associated with compliance with legislation 

and regulatory authorities’ requirements,  and the Com-

pany’s debt repayment liability;

>  environmental risks;

>  risks associated with terrorism;

>  and other risks, which may affect the Company’s activi-

ties.

The Company may face other risks, which are presently un-

known or minor, but which may potentially have adverse 

effect on the Company’s activities and financial results in 

future. The Company aims at identification of potential 

threats to the Company’s activities and takes adequate 

measures to control risks at early stages.
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Investment activities and 
procurement

Investment activities

According to the Investment program for 2011-2015 ap-

proved by the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5, the 

Company plans to spend 33.8 billion rubles for the invest-

ments including:

>  1.6 billion rubles for completion of the construction of 

the new 410 MW CCGTs of Nevinnomysskaya GRES and 

Sredneuralskaya GRES;

> 6.2 billion rubles for the program of revamping of 

300MW units at Reftinskaya GRES;

>  15.4 billion rubles for improvement of reliability and ef-

ficiency of existing capacities;

> 11.1 billion rubles of environmental investments, includ-

ing construction of dry ash removal system at Reftinskaya 

GRES, and other investments, inter alia labour safety in-

vestments and IT systems modernization (implementation 

of SAP/R3 enterprise management system).

Major Investment Projects of 
OJSC Enel OGK-5

New Capacities Construction
In 2011, the Company completes the construction of the 

two new units with the aggregate capacity of 820 MW at  

Nevinnomysskaya GRES and Sredneuralskaya GRES.  

The CCGT construction projects shall be carried out as 

part of the mandatory investment program of the Com-

pany and contemplate return of the greater part of the 

funds invested, through the mechanism of payments for 

the new capacity under the Capacity Delivery Contracts 

(DPM). In addition to that the CCGT to be commissioned 

will be characterized by less fuel consumption for power 

generation as compared with most of existing generating 

capacities of Russia that will result in obtaining good mar-

gins on power sales on the day-ahead market.

Revamping of 300 MW Units at 
Reftinskaya GRES

The Company implements its long-term program on 

reconstruction of the units with the installed capacity of 

300 MW (units No. 1 to 6) at its coal-fired power plant, 

Reftinskaya GRES. The first project under the program, 

reconstruction of Unit 5 is under implementation and is 

scheduled to be completed in the first half of 2012. The 

total cost of the Unit 5 revamping project is approximate-

ly 120 million Euro excluding VAT.

The project contemplates replacement of all main equip-

ment and a major part of auxiliary equipment as well as 

extension of the service life period of the unit for 30-40 

years, while the costs of approximately 400 euro per 1 

kW of the installed capacity are several times below the 

costs for the construction of new coal-fired units. Re-

vamping will enable to increase the installed capacity of 

the unit from 300 MW to 325 MW, increase equipment 

reliability and availability, while specific fuel consumption 

will be reduced by 7-10%. In addition to that, the project 

for the reconstruction will result in considerable reduc-

tion of environmental impact, in particular, emissions of 

nitrogen oxides into the atmosphere will be reduced by 

more than two times.

Facility
Installed 
capacity

Year of com-
missioning

Project value 
(excluding 

VAT), million 
euro

Sredneuralskaya CCGT 410 МW 2011 ~350 

Nevinnomysskaya CCGT 410 МW 2011 ~400

Construction of Dry Ash 
Removal System at Reftinskaya 
GRES

OJSC Enel OGK-5 implements the first project in Russia for 

the construction of a dry ash removal system at its coal-

fired power plant, Reftinskaya GRES. The project implies 

transition from the outdated hydraulic ash removal to dry 

ash removal. The total cost of the project is approximately 

250 million Euro, VAT excluded. Commissioning of the 

new system is expected for the middle of 2012. 

In addition to a considerable environmental effect, the 

project will enable to sell dry ash to construction compa-

nies. In July, 2010, a Cooperation Agreement was entered 

into between the Government of the Sverdlovsk Oblast 

and OJSC Enel OGK-5, which is aimed at economic growth 

acceleration in the region through common efforts on 

implementation of the project on use of coal generation 

by-products,. According to the Agreement signed, OJSC 

Enel OGK-5 undertakes to carry out a feasibility study in 

respect of the new innovative use of fly ash, and submit 

the results of such study to the local research institutes 

of the region. In turn, the Government of the Sverdlovsk 

Oblast expresses its readiness to render state support to 

participants of investment activities that wish to use fly 

ash in technological processes. 

Procurement activities

During the year of 2010 procurement activities of OJSC 

Enel OGK-5 were conducted in full compliance with the 

Rules of Procedure for Regulated Procurement of Goods, 

Works and Services for the Needs of OJSC Enel OGK-5. 

The majority of purchases, carried out in the framework 

of implementation of the maintenance and investment 

programs of OJSC Enel OGK-5, met the targets set forth by 

the Zenith project. Contracts were  concluded for equip-

ment supply and execution of construction works for Unit 

5 revamping at Reftinskaya GRES, Dry ash removal system 

construction at Reftinskaya GRES.

Overall saving vs. budget amounted to RUR 1 749 mln. or 

7%.

The majority of the purchases, namely 821 for the amount 

of RUR 8 744 mln., were carried out as competitive pro-

curement procedures. Whereas 1,5% of the supply con-

tracts concluded during 2010 were awarded to the agents.

The number of contracts with agents is to be reduced dur-

ing year 2011 by implementing the supplier qualification 

system and concluding framework agreements with man-

ufactures and official distributors of the main categories 

of equipment.

Structure of Capital Investments by Activities Areas in 2010, thousand RUR*

Name

Core facilities: 
Technical 

refurbishment 
and 

reconstruction

Equipment 
not included 

in construction 
cost estimates

Design and 
exploration 

work for 
construction for 

future years
New 

construction

Other 
financial 

investments Total

Nevinnomysskaya GRES 826 152 10 417 2 535 8 259 260 0 9 098 364

Konakovskaya GRES 635 375 4 442 2 499 0 30 642 346

Sredneuralskaya GRES 461 618 5 832 11 344 5 629 700 105 6 108 599

Reftinskaya GRES 878 597 63 972 1 225 583 275 0 1 527 069

HQ 0 47 631 0 0 0 47 631

Total by OGK-5 2 801 742 132 294 17 603 14 472 235 135 17 424 009

* — concerning application of the funds.
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Innovations and 
IT- technologies

In 2010, IT Directorate continued improving the service-

oriented approach aimed at ensuring the needs of 

business in the area of IT. The catalog of services functions 

and develops, and its structure is continuously optimized 

based on the needs of business and efficiency of the 

IT investments. The Heads of each business line of the 

Company are provided with the information concerning 

the Company’s costs for rendering IT services, on a 

monthly basis, and the need of each business unit as to 

change/increase in IT services to be rendered, is discussed 

on a regular basis. Centralized IT departments having 

the integrated base, quickly and properly respond to any 

problems and satisfy any needs of users at any branch of 

the Company.

Management Automation

In 2010, a project integrating OJSC Enel OGK-5 and Enel in 

the field of personnel management, was introduced. The 

project has improved the processes of human resources 

management, SAP HR system was configured, and staff 

training in the system operation in OJSC Enel OGK-5 was 

carried out.

Last year the unified corporate personnel management 

system (based on 1C Salary and Personnel Administration) 

integrated with SAP HR, was introduced. The system func-

tions simultaneously ensuring the necessary level of local-

ization of the functions that are specific for the Russian 

Federation. This relates to the human resources records 

management, accounting of time worked and calculation 

functions.

By December 31, 2010 the work related to the configu-

ration of the SAP WISE ERP system in order to ensure its 

full compliance with the requirements of the business, 

was finished. SAP WISE ERP system will be commissioned 

on January 1, 2011. This system will be the new corporate 

system for making transactions. All the remaining systems 

that were used previously, will be closed for the data input 

starting from 2011. All financial reporting shall be submit-

ted from SAP WISE ERP system.

Implementation of these projects was provided in close 

contact with specialists of other business units of Enel.

In 2010, an important stage of the project for creating 

the global system entitled “Production Control Center” 

aimed at providing competitive advantages on the free 

market of power through the use of advanced informa-

tion technologies in terms of data collection and transfer 

management in the systems of commercial and process 

accounting, information exchange with the system op-

erator and market regulator. In 2010, the base subsystem 

of data collection and transfer system was started up for 

trial operation. This base subsystem is to provide the main 

business functions of the Company with the high quality 

information necessary for satisfying the requirements aris-

ing in connection with the ongoing liberalization of the 

power, capacity and system services market. Further de-

velopment of “Production Control Center” is scheduled for 

2011 and subsequent years. The system is designed and 

implemented on a stage-by-stage basis, optimally ensur-

ing information support for introduction of the market 

products of the Company.

Further, in 2010, the basis for successful implementation 

in 2011 and further development was created. It is expect-

ed to continue the work on implementation of the cor-

porate data warehouse systems, decision-making support 

systems and performance forecast system on the power 

market, corporate system for calculation of the technical 

and economic performance.

IT-Infrastructure 

During 2010, a number of projects related to improv-

ing quality and reliability of IT services, was introduced. 

The projects included completion of creating the unified 

reliable network for data transfer with guaranteed pa-

rameters for rendering services, jointly with the Federal 

Operator OJSC Rostelecom, creation of the up-to-date IT 

infrastructure of the new office of the Company, located 

at Pavlovskaya Street, the first stage of deployment of the 

IP telephony facilities at the HQ and at the production 

branches, start-up of the unified call center aimed at im-

proving quality of user service and located at Sredneural-

skaya GRES. 

Construction of standby data processing center was start-

ed at Konakovskaya GRES. This project also provides for 

arrangement for the reserve workplaces at Konakovskaya 

GRES for the key employees of the HQ.

Implementation of these measures will allow ensuring di-

saster recovery and continuity of the Company’s business 

in case of force majeure affecting the HQ. 

In 2010, a great number of efforts was aimed at reduction 

in operating costs related to information technologies. 

They included beginning of the project for creating alter-

native provider’s data network, transfer of the services of 

printing to outsourcers (implemented in the HQ), equip-

ment and software procurement optimization. 

The above measures allowed further advancing of the 

strategic partnership between IT and business that is in 

rendering high quality IT services using optimal technical, 

finance and human resources.
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HR Policy

HR Strategy and 
Policy 
HR policy of the Company is determined by the Compa-

ny’s business strategy and is the instrument for its imple-

mentation.

It is possible to achieve and maintain a leading position 

on the market, ensure consolidation and integration pro-

cesses, high performance indicators, finance stability and 

innovations implementation only if there is the team of 

high-class specialists united by the idea of corporate citi-

zenship, in the Company.

The Company carries out the targeted and consistent ac-

tivities on improving HR policy pursuant to its develop-

ment strategy and applies only best international practic-

es implementing the innovation technologies in the area 

of staff assessment and development.

Organizational 
Structure and Business 
Processes
In 2010, the work on organizational structure optimiza-

tion based on the principle of separation of powers for the 

functional areas, lean-management and the best practices 

for corporate management, was continued: 

- the structure of the Generation Directorate with the clear 

division of the functions on the following areas, was ap-

proved:

> operation and maintenance; 

> technical support; 

> technical and economic performance planning and con-

trol; 

> environment; 

- the First Deputy General Director – Generation Director 

began to exercise centralized operating control over pro-

duction branches; 

new functions directly subordinated to the General Direc-

tor were created:

> Risk Management Function,

> Corporate Relations Function. 

the General Issues Directorate was closed.   

Furthermore, in 2010, the active work on increasing trans-

parency of the management system by means of business 

processes unification and standardization was conducted. 

The work conducted was aimed at ensuring fulfillment of 

the obligations undertaken by the Company in the area of 

social responsibility including industrial safety, health and 

environment.

In April, 2010, according to the implementation schedule, 

the SAP HR Global information system that enables form-

ing the day-to-day reporting pursuant to Enel’s standards, 

was started up.

Implementation of the project on reorganizing technical 

units at the production branches was continued in order 

to implement the five-year plan for personnel reorgani-

zation. The relevant structures of the remaining produc-

tion branches were developed considering experience of 

implementation of the pilot project at KGRES. The imple-

mentation is scheduled for 2011. 

In 2010, the second stage of the non-technical functions 

reorganization was initiated. 

Measures taken are aimed at increase in management sys-

tem efficiency and cost reduction.

Personnel 
Development and 
Training 
There is no doubt that the human capital is considered to 

be the most valuable component in the value chain of the 

Company. Therefore, the personnel development mea-

sures implementation is the most profitable and efficient 

investment in the Company’s future, and such investment 

reliably ensures the Company’s competitive ability on the 

market.

In 2010, we enhanced the implementation of the staff as-

sessment project launched in 2009. 579 employees that 

work at different levels in the Company and are managers 

and specialists, were assessed (in 2009 only 40 managers 

were assessed). Additional assessment of the employees’ 

professional knowledge and skills was carried out in a 

separate functional direction, Finance. The result of the 

assessment is forming 2011 Training Plan for further in-

creasing the employees’ skill level.

In 2010, 10 employees of the Company were permitted to 

obtain international experience in Enel Group companies 

in different professional areas through the “International 

Mobility”. The main objectives of the program:

> Sharing Enel Group’s values and culture

> Cross-cultural interaction

> Exchange of knowledge and experience within the 

Group

> Professional development of employees through acqui-

sition of international experience

> Motivation increase.

The Company enables its employees to learn foreign lan-

guages. In 2010, 114 employees underwent language 

training.

At the end of 2010, the Company revised its staff training 

policy representing and reflecting the main objectives and 

principles of creating efficient training system based on 

analysis of business needs, key requirements in the area 

of occupational safety and increase in quality of training 

programs.
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Professional atructure, persons

Top managers Managers Specialists Workers Total, persons

HQ 13 56 196 5 270

Konakovskaya GRES 1 129 210 455 795

Nevinnomysskaya GRES 1 59 217 382 659

Reftinskaya GRES 1 173 280 904 1358

Sredneuralskaya GRES 1 113 203 401 718

OJSC Enel OGK-5 17 530 1106 2 147 3 800

Personnel Structure

Top 
managers

Manag-
ers

Special-
ists Workers Total

OJSC Enel OGK-5, % 0,45 14 29 57 100

Top 
managers

Manag-
ers

Special-
ists Workers Total

Nevinnomysskaya 
GRES, % 0,15 9 33 58 100

Top 
managers

Manag-
ers

Special-
ists Workers Total

Sredneuralskaya 
GRES, % 0,14 16 28 56 100

Top 
managers

Manag-
ers

Special-
ists Workers Total

HQ, % 5 21 73 2 100

Top 
managers

Manag-
ers

Special-
ists Workers Total

Konakovskaya GRES, % 0,13 16 26 57 100

Top 
managers

Manag-
ers

Special-
ists Workers Total

Reftinskaya GRES, % 0,07 13 21 67 100

Top managers

Managers

Specialists

Workers

Top managers

Managers

Specialists

Workers

Top managers

Managers

Specialists

Workers

Top managers

Managers

Specialists

Workers

Top managers

Managers

Specialists

Workers

Top managers

Managers

Specialists

Workers



60 Enel   Annual report 2010 61

Level of education, %

Basic vocational 
education

Secondary and 
junior secondary 

education
Vocational 
education

Higher 
education

2 and more 
higher educa-

tions, МВА, 
scientific degree Total

HQ 0,4 1 3 81 15 100

Konakovskaya GRES 5 14 35 43 5 100

Nevinnomysskaya GRES 7 6 20 61 6 100

Reftinskaya GRES 12 20 37 30 0,4 100

Sredneuralskaya GRES 9 13 35 42 2 100

OJSC Enel OGK-5 7 11 26 51 6 100

Basic 
vocational 
education

Secondary 
and junior 
secondary 
education

Vocational 
education

Higher 
education

2 and more 
higher educa-

tions, МВА, 
scientific 

degree Total

Konakovskaya 
GRES, % 0,4 14 35 43 5 100

Basic 
vocational 
education

Secondary 
and junior 
secondary 
education

Vocational 
education

Higher 
education

2 and more 
higher 
educa-

tions, МВА, 
scientific 

degree Total

OJSC Enel 
OGK-5, % 7 11 26 51 6 100

Basic 
vocational 
education

Secondary 
and junior 
secondary 
education

Vocational 
education

Higher 
education

2 and more 
higher educa-

tions, МВА, 
scientific 

degree Total

HQ, % 0,4 1 3 81 15 100

Basic 
vocational 
education

Secondary 
and junior 
secondary 
education

Vocational 
education

Higher 
education

2 and more 
higher educa-

tions, МВА, 
scientific 

degree Total

Nevinnomysskaya 
GRES, % 7 6 20 61 6 100

Basic 
vocational 
education

Secondary 
and junior 
secondary 
education

Vocational 
education

Higher 
education

2 and more 
higher 

educations, 
МВА, scien-
tific degree Total

Reftinskaya 
GRES, % 12 20 37 30 0 100

Basic 
vocational 
education

Secondary 
and junior 
secondary 
education

Vocational 
education

Higher 
education

2 and more 
higher 

educations, 
МВА, scien-
tific degree Total

Sredneuralskaya 
GRES, % 9 13 35 42 2 100

Age structure, %

up to 30 31-40 41-50 
51 – to 

pension age 
Working 

pensioners Total

HQ 39 35 17 6 3 100

Konakovskaya GRES 16 30 31 21 2 100

Nevinnomysskaya GRES 15 34 31 17 3 100

Reftinskaya GRES 21 31 28 18 1 100

Sredneuralskaya GRES 22 28 31 14 5 100

OJSC Enel OGK-5 23 32 28 15 3 100

Basic vocational 
education

Secondary and 
junior secondary 
education

Basic vocational 
education

Secondary and 
junior secondary 
education

Basic vocational 
education

Secondary and 
junior secondary 
education

Basic vocational 
education

Secondary and 
junior secondary 
education

Higher 
education

Higher 
education

Higher 
education

Higher 
education

Vocational 
education

Vocational 
education

Vocational 
education

Vocational 
education

2 and more higher 
educations, МВА, 
scientific degree

2 and more higher 
educations, МВА, 
scientific degree

2 and more higher 
educations, МВА, 
scientific degree

2 and more higher 
educations, МВА, 
scientific degree

Basic vocational 
education

Secondary and 
junior secondary 
education

Basic vocational 
education

Secondary and 
junior secondary 
education

Higher 
education

Higher 
education

Vocational 
education

Vocational 
education

2 and more higher 
educations, МВА, 
scientific degree

2 and more higher 
educations, МВА, 
scientific degree
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Labor Turnover

OJSC Enel OGK-5 Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4 
Total for 
the year 

by resignation  20 25 20 20 85

by retirement  7 11 17 20 55

by agreement between the parties 14 7 25 9 55

by staff reduction 1 - - - 1

other 11 7 11 54 83

up to 
30 31-40 41-50 

51 – to 
pension age

Working 
pensioners Total

Nevinnomyss-
kaya GRES, % 15 34 31 17 3 100

up to 
30 31-40 41-50

51 – to 
pension age

Working 
pensioners Total

Reftinskaya 
GRES, % 211 31 28 18 1 100

up to 30 31-40 41-50 
51 – to 

pension age
Working 

pensioners Total

Sredneurals-
kaya GRES, % 22 28 31 14 5 100

up to 30 31-40 41-50 
51 – to 

pension age
Working 

pensioners Total

OJSC Enel 
OGK-5, % 23 32 28 15 3 100

up to 30 31-40 41-50 
51 – to 

pension age 
Working 

pensioners Total

HQ, % 39 35 17 6 3 100

0

5
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20

25

30

35

—

up to 
30 31-40 41-50 

51 – to 
pension age

Working 
pensioners Total

Konakovskaya 
GRES, % 16 30 31 21 2 100
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by resignation 30%

by retirement 20%

by agreement between the parties  20%

by staff reduction 1%

other 30%

up to 30
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up to 30

31-40

41-50

up to 30

31-40

41-50

up to 30

31-40

41-50

up to 30

31-40

41-50

up to 30

31-40

41-50

51 – to 
pension age 

Working 
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51 – to 
pension age 

Working 
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51 – to 
pension age 

Working 
pensioners

51 – to 
pension age 

Working 
pensioners

51 – to 
pension age 

Working 
pensioners

51 – to 
pension age 

Working 
pensioners
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by resignation  45%

by retirement  19%

by agreement between the 
parties 15%

by staff reduction 0%

other 21%

Konakovskaya GRES Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Total for 
the year

by resignation  7 4 9 3 23

by retirement  1 4 2 3 10

by agreement between the parties 4 3 1 - 8

by staff reduction - - - - -

other 1 - 2 8 11

HQ Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Total for 
the year 

by resignation  3 4 3 4 14

by retirement  - - - - -

by agreement between the parties 7 2 21 7 37

by staff reduction - - - - -

other - - 3 1 4

by resignation  25%

by retirement 0%

by agreement between the 
parties 68%

by staff reduction 0%

other 7%

Nevinnomysskaya GRES  Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Total for 
the year

by resignation  7 8 3 5 23

by retirement  2 1 2 2 7

by agreement between the parties - - 1 - 1

by staff reduction - - - - -

other - - - 2 2

Reftinskaya GRES   Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Total for 
the year

by resignation  2 8 2 7 19

by retirement  4 5 10 13 32

by agreement between the parties 2 1 - - 3

by staff reduction - - - - -

other 10 6 3 42 61

by resignation  70%

by retirement  21%

by agreement between the 
parties 3%

by staff reduction 0%

other 6%

by resignation  17%

by retirement  28%

by agreement between the 
parties 3%

by staff reduction 0%

other 52%

by resignation

by retirement

by agreement 
between the parties

by staff reduction

other

by resignation

by retirement

by agreement 
between the parties

by staff reduction

other

by resignation

by retirement

by agreement 
between the parties

by staff reduction

other

by resignation

by retirement

by agreement 
between the parties

by staff reduction

other
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Average salary of employees, RUR

Recruiting
The process of recruitment was carried out in strict 

accordance with the Code of Ethics requirements. 

In 2010, the vacancies available from time to time, were 

mainly filled by the Company’s employees, and only if it 

was impossible, an external competition was announced.

Compensation and 
Benefits System 
During 2010, the main priorities of the Company as to 

motivation of the employees were in improving the ex-

isting compensation system as well as analysis of existing 

instruments and creating new motivation instruments for 

employees’.

In particular, in the fourth quarter 2010, the project activi-

ties motivation program of Zenith was implemented. The 

program covers all the employees of the Company and fa-

cilitates achieving the Company’s objectives in the area of 

optimization and implementation of the measures aimed 

at increasing production efficiency. 

In 2010, the MBO annual bonus program for managers 

and top managers was further developed. The approach-

es to determination the maximum amount of annual bo-

nus for the employees of different levels of management, 

were standardized. Specific measurable tasks on optimi-

zation and implementation of measures aimed at increas-

ing efficiency were included in the annual objectives of 

the top and line managers.

In 2010, as well as in 2009, the value of the minimum 

monthly tariff rate of the first grade worker determined in 

accordance with the Collective Agreements of the produc-

tion branches was higher than the value of the minimum 

monthly tariff rate determined by the Industrial Salary rate 

agreement in the power industry of the Russian Federa-

tion for 2009-2011. 

The average wage and salary growth rate in respect of the 

Company’s employees’ exceeded the average rate in the 

industry.

Branch
Manag-

ers
Special-

ists Workers Total

Konakovskaya GRES 66 863 39 937 34 833 41 209

Nevinnomysskaya GRES 98 290 39 746 28 210 38 124

Reftinskaya GRES 78 728 42 991 33 363 40 827

Sredneuralskaya GRES 84 395 41 485 36 401 45 650

HQ 302 509 128 421 63 314 153 903

Total 101 187 56 369 33 449 49 053

120 000

100 000

80 000

60 000

40 000

20 000

-

Managers                                         Specialists                                        Workers

2009            2010 

91 839

48 089

56 369

30 876

33 449

101 187

Sredneuralskaya GRES  Quarter 1 Quarter 2 Quarter 3 Quarter 4
Total for 
the year

by resignation  1 1 3 1 6

by retirement  - 1 3 2 6

by agreement between the parties  1 1 2 2 6

by staff reduction 1 - - - 1

other - 1 3 1 5

by resignation  25%

by retirement  25%

by agreement between the 
parties  25%

by staff reduction 4%

other 21%

by resignation

by retirement

by agreement 
between the parties
by staff reduction

other
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Social Partnership and 
Interaction with Trade 
Union Organizations 
In 2010, the terms and conditions of Collective Agree-

ments of the Company’s branches were satisfied in full 

amount. 

According to the results of 2010, Collective Agreements of 

the branches of Nevinnomysskaya GRES and Reftinskaya 

GRES were pronounced the winners of the territorial com-

petitions of the power industry conducted by All-Russian 

“Electroprofsoyuz”. 

The year of 2010 was dedicated to preparation of proj-

ects and signing Collective Agreements of the production 

branches for the next three years. Considering that the 

production branches have established standards for reg-

ulation of social and labor relations, and such standards 

are based on the principles of the preceding versions of 

Collective Agreement, the parties of the social partner-

ship, when preparing new documents, proceeded from 

the need to preserve succession of the preceding versions 

of Collective Agreements and improving their content by 

means of evolution mainly. The work started in 2008 and 

was aimed at unifying the content of the Collective Agree-

ment, in particular, as to benefits and compensations, in 

accordance with the further application of the principle 

of “one company – one level of benefits and compensa-

tions to be provided for an employee, regardless of the 

branch location”. The production branches’ Collective 

Agreements for 2011-2013 signed in December 2010 and 

aimed at ensuring and maintaining the standard work en-

vironment in the Company, were the results of the nego-

tiations.

Social Policy
Pursuing deliberate and responsible social policy became 

a constant tradition of the Company.

In 2010, a safety culture and internal climate survey was 

carried out for the purpose of further increasing the safety 

culture and involving the Company’s employees in the 

processes occurring in the Company.

In addition to the benefits provided for by the law, the 

Company’s employees are provided with the social pack-

age that includes voluntary health insurance, accident in-

surance, financial assistance in connection with different 

events, including vacation payments, increased sick leave 

payment, compensation for part of expenses incurred by 

the parents in connection with acquisition of vouchers 

to children health camps and sanatoriums. During the 

reporting year, the Company continued to adhere to the 

program for corporate support and improving living con-

ditions of the Company’s employees.

The Company’s social policy is not restricted to employees 

that currently work, but also implies responsibility for the 

life conditions of ex-workers. One of the most important 

social guarantees is the corporate pension provision made 

through the Nongovernmental Pension Fund of Power In-

dustry.

Social responsibility
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Environmental 
Protection and 
Industrial Safety 
Solution of environmental problems is one of the most 

important priorities in work of OJSC Enel OGK-5. In the 

course of its work, the Company is committed to princi-

ples stated in the Environmental policy approved by the 

Board of Directors of the Company (Minutes No. 16 dated 

December 15, 2009) in 2009. The Environmental policy is 

based on the principles of environmental safety and ra-

tional use of natural resources and expresses intentions 

of the Company to continuously improve environmental 

indicators of production branches operation, to observe 

fulfillment of federal and international standards.

In 2010, the main efforts of the Company in the area of 

environmental protection were aimed at changing struc-

ture of control over environmental protection processes in 

the Company’s branches, and bringing the environmental 

management system in compliance with requirements of 

the international environmental management standard 

ISO 14001:2004. In order to achieve the objectives set and 

fulfill the obligations undertaken before the EBRD under 

the Loan Agreement No. 38016 dated May 7, 2008, the 

Shareholder Agreement between Enel and EBRD, section 

“Environmental Protection Actions Plan”, the following ac-

tions were taken:

> Integrated Management System procedures (occupa-

tional safety and environmental protection) adjusted pur-

suant to the changed organizational documents of the 

Company, were approved;

> trainings in respect of the internal audit procedure were 

delivered to employees of Production Branches and the 

HQ

> 12 specialists working in the area of environmental 

protection were given instructions as to requirements of 

standard ISO 14001:2004, as part of the course “Auditor / 

Leading auditor”;

> Production Branches’ operating personnel training in 

respect of principles of standard ISO 14001:2004 was car-

ried out;

> the first and the second level internal audits as to com-

pliance of the Environmental Management System with 

the requirements of standard ISO 14001:2004, were car-

ried out at all Production Branches of the Company. Dis-

crepancy Elimination Plans were prepared and are in the 

process of execution for each discrepancy discovered;

> work on revising organizational procedures and inte-

grated management system administration was contin-

ued.

As part of the project implementation of the International 

Division on environmental risks control, assessment was 

carried out to evaluate environmental risks of the branch-

es of Konakovskaya GRES, Nevinnomysskaya GRES, Reft-

inskaya GRES and the HQ. According to the results of the 

assessment carried out, a risk map was prepared. This risk 

map that made it possible to allocate environmental risks 

both within the individual branch and within the Com-

pany in the whole, and start the work on elimination and 

minimization of the most significant risks.

The following environmental actions for protection of air 

and water basins, protection and rational use of lands, de-

crease of physical factors’ influence on the environment 

have been implemented at the branches in 2009: 

Konakovskaya GRES
>  Technical refurbishment of unit No. 8;

>  Development of the project on fish protection complex 

of river bank pump station No.1 (FPC BNS-1);

>  The first stage of evaluation of effectiveness of the FPC 

BNS-2;

>  Cleaning of the sludge pits in order to reclaim the waste 

disposal site.

Nevinnomysskaya GRES
>  Reconstruction of water piping No. 1 with installation of 

cooling water commercial metering complex;

>  Implementation of frequency regulation system of the 

chemical shop’s pumps; 

> Setup of the complex work of environmental monitor-

ing of harmful emissions content in exhaust gases of boil-

ers No. 9, 10 and 11 (instrument inspection of nitrogen 

oxides, carbon oxides and sulphur oxides).

Reftinskaya GRES
> Project on reconstruction of the ash removal system of 

Reftinskaya GRES with transition to the dry ash removal 

system (DARS). Positive findings of the State expert review 

as to the project, were obtained. The objectives of the 

project implementation are:

- reduction in ash emission onto the atmosphere (by ~175 

t/year) by means of decrease of the area of “dusting” 

beaches,

- reduction in irrevocable water consumption at RGRES (by 

~16 million.m3/year);

- decrease of the wet section filtration of the ash disposal 

area No. 2 (due to reduction of its area from 95 hectares 

to ~300 hectares);

- increase of the volumes of using ash and sludge wastes 

by means of their selling to consumers;

> Risk assessment in respect of waste storage and integ-

rity of asphaltic coat of the flush water pit bottom and 

slopes, for soil and ground water contamination. For this 

purpose, a network of observation wells was arranged 

and monitoring showed that there is no contamination of 

the underground water by substances contained in the pit 

bottom deposits and flush water, was carried out. 

Thus, at present there is no fact confirming that the wa-

terproofing asphaltic coat of the flush water pit bottom 

and slopes is disturbed, so the question of the RGRES flush 

water pit liquidation is not a priority at the moment and it 

will be considered after the primary tasks are solved.

>  Expert examination of the project of sanitary protection 

zone of Reftinskaya GRES. In-situ measurements in respect 

of the factors of physical and chemical effect on the atmo-

spheric air, as part of the Expert assessment of the project. 

Obtaining expert assessment as to the project.

Sredneuralskaya GRES
> Reconstruction of Isetsky hydraulic power system;

> Maintenance of waste disposal site dams;

> Replacement of chemical desalination sludge pipeline 

and waste treatment facilities for common sludge pipe-

line of reinforced polyethylene;

> Works for reduction of organic pollution of the Isetsky 

reservoir, with use of floating biofilters;

 

State-of-the-art environmentally-friendly technologies 

and know-how’s for power and heat production are also 

implemented at the company level within the framework 

of the construction of the two CCGT units Nevinnomys-

skaya GRES and Sredneuralskaya GRES, bringing the pol-

lutants’ concentration in flue gases in line with the inter-

national standards.

For the purpose of ensuring environmental protection, 

the Company is exercising constant control over air, water 

and land pollution levels, with the collection and process-

ing of data on: 

> level of total air emissions;

> volume and quality of waste water discharged into wa-

ter basins;

> volumes of other production waste.

Konakovskaya GRES

In 2010, air emissions increased by 25% in comparison 

with the previous year, stemming from a 23% increase of 

power generation volumes, and increase of fuel oil share 

in the fuel mix from 0.3% to 0.6%. At the same time, nitro-

gen oxides emissions increased by 22%, at a level below 

the production volumes’ growth, thanks to boiler upgrade 

carried out in 2009, while sulphur oxides and fuel oil ash 

emissions increased at the rate equal to the increase of 

fuel oil consumption.  

Dynamics of air emissions and fuel consumption structure 

are shown in Diagram 1 (Table 1) and in Table 2, respec-

tively.

Dynamics of Total Air Emissions 

at Konakovskaya GRES

Name of the emission
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

fuel oil ash tons 0,646 1,665

sulfur dioxide tons 209 528

carbon oxide tons 630 734

nitrogen oxides tons 7 936 9 710

Total emissions tons 8 776 10 974
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Water Intake and Discharge Volumes 

at Nevinnomysskaya GRES

Name
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

Aggregate water intake ths. m3 433 709 441 146

Aggregate amount of 
discharge ths. m3 393 433 409 780

2,628.048 tons of waste were generated at Nevinnomys-

skaya GRES in 2010, 476.554 t more than in 2009. Higher 

waste generation volumes stem from an increase of the 

formation of iron and steel scrap by 602.857 tons.

Waste Generation at Nevinnomysskaya GRES

Item
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

Total waste tons 2 152 2 628

Within the framework of the Environmental Action Plan 

for 2010, 466,064 thousand RUR was spent at Nevinno-

mysskaya GRES on environmental activities during the 

year, less by 155,554 thousand RUR than the 2009 level

2010 costs breakdown is the following:

>  air protection costs - 684.122 ths. rubles, 

>  water protection and sustainable use costs – 458,176.107 

ths. rubles, 

> land protection and sustainable use costs – 7,203.437 

ths. rubles.

The main mid-term objectives for Nevinnomysskaya GRES 

branch for the next three years are as follows: 

For air basin protection: 

> modernization of electric feeder pump for units No. 6, 

No. 9 with regulated drive installation (2011-2012);

> purchase of 6 flow meters for automated emission con-

trol systems (ASPK-EKOMER) at units No. 9, 10, 11; 

>purchase and commissioning of ASPK-EKOMER complex-

es for units No. 6, 7, 8, boilers 4, 5, 5а, 1, 2, 3, 3а (2010-

2011);

For water basin protection:

> reconstruction of the water treatment plant (VPU Ob-

HVO) – stage 2, (2011-2012); 

> design and installation of a fish protection system on the 

Barsuchkovsky water intake (2011-2013);

> acquisition and use of sorbents of STRG type CJSC Gaz-

turbo. S-Verad (2011-2012); 

For land resources protection

> cleaning of trestle troughs of fuel oil drain MN No.1 with 

dismounting of metal part of the troughs, cleaning of re-

inforced concrete troughs with their further filling (2012); 

> cleaning of the fuel oil storage tank MH No. 3 from bot-

tom deposits.

Reftinskaya GRES
In 2010, the volume of power generation at Reftinskaya 

increased by 9% in comparison with the previous year. 

At the same time, air emissions increased by 24%. Signifi-

cant growth of the pollutants emissions is due to the fuel 

consumption structure. In 2009, the share of Kuznetsk 

low-ash coal in the fuel balance of Reftinskaya GRES was 

16.5% while, in 2010, Kuznetsk coal was not virtually fired 

on economic grounds.

Air emissions and fuel consumption structure are present-

ed in Diagram 3 (Table 9), and Table 10. 

Effluent waters of Konakovskaya GRES branch are subdi-

vided in terms of quality into clean (99.8%) and purified 

waters (0.2%). The Service Water supply system is of direct 

flow type. The volume of water consumption from the sur-

face water source in comparison with 2009 has increased 

by 194,867 ths. m3, amounting to 1,244,744 ths. m3. In-

crease of water consumption (+19%) comes from the in-

crease of total power generation by 23%, but is below the 

production growth rate due to implementation of a set of 

measures aimed at reduction of water consumption. Con-

centration of pollutants in wastewater does not exceed 

the maximum allowed levels. 

Water Intake and Discharge Volumes 

at Konakovskaya GRES

Name
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

Aggregate amount of 
water intake ths. m3 1 049 877 1 244 744

Aggregate amount of 
discharge  ths. m3 1 023 981 1 216 724

98% of wastes formed at Konakovskaya GRES belong 

to hazard category IV and V: scrap of ferrous metals, in-

sulation wastes, household debris, construction wastes, 

worked-out filtering materials, etc. Waste generation 

dynamics depend on the scope of annual maintenance 

works. In 2010, waste generation levels increased due to 

more maintenance works and modernization of unit 

No. 8.

Formation of Wastes at Konakovskaya GRES

Item
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

Total waste tons 1 643 2 790

Within the framework of the Environmental Action Plan 

for 2010, 506,127 thousand RUR was spent at Konakovs-

kaya GRES on environmental activities.

Following environmental protection legislation require-

ments and aiming at the rational use of natural resources, 

Konakovskaya GRES sticks to the following priority envi-

ronmental objectives:

> Installation of the metering system unit for water con-

sumption from the Volga river by units No. 1, No. 2, and 

reduction of water costs by 1.25% (2011);

> Development of a fish protection system project at the 

BNS-1 pumping station (2011) with subsequent construc-

tion and commissioning (2012);

> Technical refurbishment of the water treatment plant 

with its conversion to water consumption from the (2011-

2012);

> Technical refurbishment of wastewater neutralization 

and treatment facility, development of a soil reclamation 

project, removing waste disposal site from service (2012-

2013);

>  Development of the project on the refurbishment of the 

industrial effluent treatment complex (IETC) (2012);

>  Examination and development of the project on the re-

furbishment of the chemical shop (2012);

>  Technical refurbishment of the fuel oil tank No. 13, de-

velopment of the fuel oil  monitoring system (2012)

>  Revision of the project on maximum allowed air emis-

sion levels (2012)

>  Development of the project and arrangement of the site 

for metal scrap storage (2012).

Nevinnomysskaya GRES
At Nevinnomysskaya GRES, air emissions in 2010 slightly 

increased in comparison with the previous year. The fuel 

oil ash emission decreased by ~80% due to decrease of 

the share of fuel oil in the fuel mix from 0.7% to 0.15%, 

and nitrogen oxides omissions increased from 3,000 t in 

2009 to 3,753 t in 2010 (by 25%). The increase stems from 

higher power generation (+4%), and a greater number of 

hours in operation for the 170 MW CCGT unit character-

ized by high emissions (from 1,110 hours in 2009 to 2,001 

hours in 2010). 

Air emissions and fuel consumption structure are present-

ed in Diagram 2 (Table 5), and Table 6, respectively.

Fuel Consumption Structure at Konakovskaya GRES

Item
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

Gas ths. m3 2 032 776 2 510 728

Fuel oil tons 5 216 13 241

Share of fuel oil in the 
fuel mix % 0,3 0,6

Dynamics of Total Air Emissions at 

Nevinnomysskaya GRES

Name of the emission
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

fuel oil ash tons 1,700 0,286

sulfur dioxide tons 421 88

carbon oxide tons 0 0

nitrogen oxides tons 3 000 3 753

Total emissions tons 3 926 4 091

Fuel Consumption Structure 

at Nevinnomysskaya GRES

Item
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

Gas ths. m3 1 706 958 1 784 266

Fuel oil tons 12 513 2 346

Share of fuel oil in the 
fuel mix % 0,7 0,15
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Effluent waters of Sredneuralskaya GRES are subdivided 

in terms of quality into clean and treated waters. Waste 

water discharge in 2010 volumes broke down as follows:

> clean - 861 ths. m3

> treated -  1,731 ths. m3.

Water Intake and Discharge 

Volumes at Sredneuralskaya GRES

Name
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

Aggregate water intake* ths. m3 2 543 2 304

Aggregate amount of 
discharge ths. m3 2 654 2 617

* — not including the Volchikhinskoye reservoir.

In comparison with 2009, the amount of waste formed in-

creased by 151.137 tons due to increase in scope of main-

tenance works:

Waste Generation at Sredneuralskaya GRES

Item
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

Total waste tons 889 1 040

Within the framework of the Environmental Action Plan 

for 2010, 12,066 thousand RUR was spent at Sredneurals-

kaya GRES on environmental activities during the year.

The priority objectives for Sredneuralskaya GRES branch 

for the next three years: 

> Development and approval of MPE, NDS, PNOOLR stan-

dards for the new 410 MW CCGT to be put into operation; 

> Air quality control in the plant area;

> On-site observation of the estimated sanitary protection 

zone of the power plant;

> Improving quality of the Isetskoye reservoir water using 

a floating biomodule.The volume of water taken from Reftinskoye water basin 

decreased by 25.9% in comparison with 2009. Significant 

reduction in water consumption volume is due to the 

need to decrease the level of ash disposal area filling in 

order to comply with the requirements of Safety rules for 

hydraulic structures of liquid waste collectors dated Janu-

ary 28, 2002 No. 03-438-02.

In 2010, the total quantity of discharged waste water 

f remained practically unchanged in comparison with the 

previous year. 

Water Intake and Discharge 

Volumes at Reftinskaya GRES

Name 
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

Aggregate water intake ths. m3 29 395,5 21 774,2

Aggregate amount of 
discharge ths. m3 29 050,3 28 661,5

For the reporting period, 5,364,773.47 tons of waste was 

generated at the power plant, which is 24.5 % more than 

in 2009. The waste is mostly formed by Hazard Category 

V waste (≈ 99%), which is ash from Ekibastuz coal firing. 

Dynamics of ash generation and disposal are presented in 

Table 12.. 

In 2010, increase in ash generation, and, consequently, 

disposal was influenced by a higher amount of fuel con-

sumed and higher average ash content in coal.

Ash Generation and 

Disposal at Reftinskaya GRES

Item
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

Generation tons 4 292 718,0 5 351 377,9

Disposal tons 4 199 134,25 5 215 915,4

Within the framework of the Environmental Action Plan 

for 2010, 1,622,828 thousand RUR was spent at Reftinskay 

GRES on environmental activities during the year.

The priority objectives for Reftinskaya GRES branch for the 

next three years are as follows: 

> Revamping of unit No. 5;

> Replacement of electrostatic precipitators at unit No. 5;

> Reconstruction of the coal pulverization system of the 

boiler of unit 5 with replacement of the burners with low-

emission ones;

> Maintenance and adjustment of electrostatic precipita-

tors of unit No. 4;

> Reconstruction of the equipment of electrostatic pre-

cipitators of unit No.7;

> Complex of structures for decrease irretrievable filtration 

loss at ash disposal area No. 2;

> Reconstruction of the ash removal system at Reftinskaya 

GRES, with use of the environmentally acceptable, techno-

logically reliable and economically feasible technologies 

> Upgrade of unit burners 

> Construction of a fish protection system at Reftinskaya 

GRES water intake. 

Sredneuralskaya GRES
In 2010, total emissions at Sredneuralskaya GRES branch 

amounted to 7,458,538 tons, which is 1.1% less than in 

2009. That was caused by decrease in power and heat 

generation and a decrease in the amount of fuel con-

sumption. NOx emissions decreased by 2.5 %, while  SOx 

and fuel oil ash emissions increased driven by a higher 

amount of fuel oil consumed. Dynamics of air emissions 

and fuel consumption structure are presented in Diagram 

4 (Table 13) and Table 14.

Dynamics of Air Emissions 

at Reftinskaya GRES

Name of the emission
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

Solid fuel ash tons 119 825 147 644

sulfur dioxide tons 122 714 146 438

carbon oxide tons 0,868 0,906

nitrogen oxides tons 74 838,0 99 050,2

Total emissions, tons tons 119 825 147 644

Fuel Consumption Structure at Reftinskaya GRES

Item
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

Ekibastuz coal tons 10 239 150 13 220 657

Kuznetsk coal tons 1 243 462 171 024

Fuel oil tons 38 920 25 863

Dynamics of Air Emissions 

at Sredneuralskaya GRES

Name of the emissions
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

fuel oil ash tons 0,700 0,925

sulfur dioxide tons 172 238

carbon oxide tons 156 152

nitrogen oxides tons 6 202 6 075

Total emissions tons 7 544 7 459

Fuel Consumption Structure at Sredneuralskaya GRES

Item
Measure-

ment unit 2009 2010

Gas ths. m3 2 403 295 2 386 037

Fuel oil tons 3 990 8 438

Share of fuel oil in the 
fuel mix % 0,21 0,49
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Charity and 
Sponsorship

In order to support the social sphere in regions of its pres-

ence, OJSC Enel OGK-5, in cooperation with state and mu-

nicipal authorities, public and charitable organizations, 

participates in the projects aimed at support of such areas 

as health care, education, culture, child sport, social sup-

port to aged citizens and veterans. 

To react with maximum responsiveness to the needs and 

problems of people in regions of our presence, our power 

plants have nominated coordinators of corporate chari-

table foundation who work on a non-repayable basis. 

The charity program for 2010, approved by the Board of 

Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5, included the blocks of ac-

tions aimed at support of education institutions, child 

and youth communities, veteran organizations, sick and 

disabled persons, as well as support of measures aimed at 

formation of favorable social environment.

Special attention in the reporting period was paid to sup-

port of veterans; amount of funds allocated for veterans’ 

healthcare and other support totaled 14,2 mln. rubles. 

Total amount of funds, allocated by the Company for char-

ity, amounted to 30.7 million rubles.

Employees of the Company also take part in voluntary 

charity projects for raising of funds and clothing for or-

phan asylums, recreation centers and patients of hospital 

children’s service, specialized charity institutions, people 

requiring aid. Thus, traditionally aid is provided to the 

Centre for social assistance to family and children of Ref-

tinsky, children undergoing treatment in the infectious 

disease  department of Sredneuralsk hospital, municipal 

institution «Local teenagers community” in Sredneuralsk, 

correction boarding school № 23 in Nevinnomyssk, “Ga-

van” Centre, Konakovo specialized child-care centre, citi-

zens aggrieved from fires and other natural disasters.

Engineers of the Company give lessons at schools and oth-

er educational institutions to teach the growing genera-

tion the power consumption culture, explain how to take 

care about local towns’ environment. 

Socially responsible business is one of the cornerstones for 

the development of OJSC Enel OGK-5.

The recipients of assistance according to the charity program

Charity program of Central Office

Charitable Association “Maria”

NP “Council of Veterans of  Power engineering”

RBOO “Chernobyl cleanup veteran of Mintopenergo”

ANO “International Programs Directorate”

Charity program of Konakovskaya GRES

Municipal Educational Institution for disabled students Special (correction) Comprehensive Secondary School VIII of Type No.4

Municipal Educational Institution “Gymnasium No. 5”

Town Social Organization of Veterans (Retired Employees) of Konakovskaya GRES branch

Konakovo Town Public Association “Parents of Handicapped Children”

Municipal Institution Child and Youth Center “Novaya Korcheva”

Charity program of Nevinnomysskaya GRES

Orphanage by the Church of Intercession of the Holy Virgin

State Education Institution Specialized (Corrective) Board School No. 23 for Orphans and Children without Care of Parents, 
with deflections of Type VIII

Town Social Organization of Veterans (Retired Employees) of Nevinnomysskaya GRES

Charity program of Reftinskaya GRES

State Education Institution of Sverdlovsk Oblast for  Orphans and Children without Care of Parents “Asbest Child House”

Administration of the urban district of Reftinsky

Municipal Social Organization of Veterans (Retired Employees) of Reftinskaya GRES

Charity program of Sredneuralskaya GRES

State Educational Social Institution Center of Social Support for Children and Families “Solnyshko”

Yu.P. Gavrin, veteran 

A.M. Melker, veteran

Town Social Organization of Veterans (Retired Employees) of Sredneuralskaya GRES

Health Care Institution Verkhnyaya Pyshma Central Town Hospital, Srendeuralsk branch

Charity program on educational support

Ivanovo State Energy University 

State education Institution  Konakovo Energy College

Nevinnomyssk Energy Technical School

Yekaterinburg Energy Technical School

Ural Federal University

Moscow Power Engineering University

Non-state Educational Institution “Management Institute”
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Consumption of 
energy resources

Information about 
the amount of energy 
resources consumed by 
the Company 

in 2010

Type of energy resource Unit Physical volume
Cost, thous. rubles, 

VT exclusive

Natural gas* mln. cubic meters 6 680,17 17 921 935,24

Coal* thous. tons 13 654,06 11 300 458,39

Fuel oil* thous. tons 49,89 337 553,29

Power 
(for balance-of-plant needs) thous. kWh 2 069,78 1 327,64

Diesel fuel**
tons
liter

2 257,95
109 706,96

41 130,90
1 879,32

Automobile gasoline** liter 446 612,38 8 715,71

* — taking indirect cost into account. 

** — as FLM.
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Financial statements 
with appendices

ASSETS Line сode
At beginning of 

reporting period
At end of 

reporting period

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Intangible assets 110 342 322

Property, plant and equipment 120 32 864 422 35 992 539

Construction in progress 130 14 802 937 26 124 885

Long-term financial investments 140 101 471 24 758

Deferred tax assets 145 132 551 227 863

Other non-current assets 150 12 508 536 6 836 443

SECTION I TOTAL 190 60 410 259 69 206 810

CURRENT ASSETS 

Inventories 210 3 632 072 4 493 961

including: 
raw materials and other inventories 211 2 471 457 3 002 127

rearers and fatteners  212 48 0

finished products and goods for resale 214 4 651 1 916

expenses related to future periods 216 1 155 916 1 489 918

VAT on purchased goods 220 48 858 324 602

Accounts receivable (payments expected beyond 12 
months after the reporting date) 230 2 207 487 832 169

Accounts receivable (payments expected within 12 
months after the reporting date) 240 7 354 948 8 103 485

including buyers and customers 241 3 152 379 3 335 138

Short-term financial investments 250 882 517 146 829

Cash 260 85 893 102 801

Other current assets 280 561 13 410

SECTION II TOTAL 290 14 212 336 14 017 257

TOTAL ASSETS 300 74 622 595 83 224 067

Balance sheet (Form No. 1)
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LIABILITIES Line сode
At beginning of 

reporting period
At end of 

reporting period

EQUITY AND RESERVES

Share capital 410 35 371 898 35 371 898

Additional capital 420 7 307 769 7 307 769

Reserve capital 430 418 565 547 125

including 
reserves formed in accordance with law 431 418 565 547 125

Retained earnings (uncovered loss) 470 6 292 229 11 989 610

SECTION III TOTAL 490 49 390 461 55 216 402

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Loans and credits 510 15 069 800 15 750 728

Deferred tax liabilities 515 1 371 859 1 952 954

Other non-current liabilities 520  835 690

SECTION IV TOTAL  590 16 442 494 17 704 372

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Loans and credits 610  4 208 560  5 656 903

Accounts payable 620 4 576 579 4 641 958

including: 
suppliers and contractors 621 3 115 462 3 095 520

salaries payable 622 338 1 397

state non-budgetary fund liabilities 623 15 40

tax liabilities 624 790 633 335 796

other creditors 625 670 131 1 209 205

Payables to participants (founders) in respect of income 
payment 630 4 482 4 368

Deferred income 640  19    64

SECTION V TOTAL 690 8 789 640 10 303 293

BALANCE 700 74 622 595 83 224 067

Off-balance sheet items 

Rented assets 910 4 267 156 2 907 201

leasing 911 0 -

Goods and materials accepted in custody 920 578 758 450 349

Indebtedness of insolvent debtors written off to losses 940 211 897 210 490

Security of liabilities and payments received 950 5 603 558 5 251 885

Securities of liabilities  and payments issued 960 - -

Depreciation of PP&E 991 1 123 1 418

Registered high-security forms  992 9 14

PP&E in operational management 993 76 747 76 747

Item Line code For reporting period
For the same period of the 

previous year

Profit (loss) on ordinary activities 

Net revenue from sales of goods, products, work and 
services (excluding VAT, excise tax and other similar 
mandatory payments) 010 57 020 561 43 594 973

Cost of products, goods, work and services sold 020 (47 710 564) (37 500 344)

Gross profit 029 9 309 997 6 094 629

Commercial expenses 030 (726 775) (737 975)

Profit (loss) on sales   050  8 583 222   5 356 654

Other income (expenses) 

Interest income 060 63 540 97 775

Interest payable 070 (1 049 200) (700 680)

Income from investments in other entities 080 -  437 

Other income 090  3 370 377 1 505 394

Other expenses  100 (4 228 330) (2 150 317)

Profit (loss) before taxes 140 6 739 609 4 109 263

Deferred tax assets  141  (37 986)  (79 255)

Deferred tax liabilities 142 (588 081) (423 947)

Other similar compulsory payments 146 601 677 (421 206)

Current income tax  150 (1 023 032) (613 654)

Recalculation of deferred tax assests 
for previous periods 152 133 754 -

Net profit (loss) for reporting period 190 5 825 941 2 571 201

REFERENCE 
Fixed tax liabilities (assets) 200 301 177 295 004

Earnings (loss) per share (in RUB) 201  0,1647    0,0727   

Item Code profit loss profit loss

Fines and penalties recognized or in respect of which 
there are court (arbitration) judgements on their 
recovery 210  37 473  690   90 873  3 999 

Profit (loss) of prior years 220  1 557  127 964   102   18 447  

Compensation for losses incurred by non-fulfillment of 
improper fulfillment of obligations 230 - -  106  1 138

Forex exchange differences for transactions in foreign 
currency 240  2 460 233  1 641 931  1 107 494    1 005 798   

Allowances 250  205 425  1 021 853  -  310 235

Written off past due accounts receivable and accounts 
payable with expired limitation period  260   20 593     898  1 820 -

Income statement (Form No. 2)

Breakdown of some profit and loss 

For reporting period
For the same period 
of the previous year
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Item 
Line 

сode 
Share 

Capital
Additional 

Capital
Reserve 
Capital

Retained 
profit (loss) Total

Balance as of December 31 of year preceding 
previous year 010  35 371 898   7 307 769   340 425  3 651 944  46 672 036

2009 (previous year)  

Recalulation results of the derefrred tax 
liabilities and assets 011 х х х 147 224 147 224

Balance as of January 1 of previous year 020  35 371 898  7 307 769  340 425 3 799 168  46 819 260 

Exchange rate difference 023 х - х х -

Net profit  025  х   х х 2 571 201 2 571 201

Dividends 026 - - - (0) (0)

Allocations to reserves 030 х х 78 140 (78 140) -

Increase of capital due to: 
additional shares issue 041 - - х (0) -

reorganization of legal entity 043 -  - х - -

other 044  - х - - -

Decrease of capital due to:
eorganization of legal entity  053 - х х - -

Balance as of December 31 of previous year 060  35 371 898   7 307 769  418 565 6 292 229  49 390 461

2010 (reporting year) 

Balance as of January 1 of reporting year 100  35 371 898  7 307 769   418 565  6 292 229  49 390 461

Exchange rate differences 103 х - х х -

Net profit 105 х х х  5 825 941  5 825 941 

Dividends 106 х х х - -

Allocations to reserve fund 110 х х 128 560 (128 560) -

Increase in capital by: 
additional share issue 121 - - х - -

reorganisation of legal entity 123  -    -   х - -

other 124 -   х   -   -   -   

Decrease in capital by:
reorganisation of legal entity  133 - х х - -

Balance as of December 31 of reporting year 140  35 371 898  7 307 769   547 125  11 989 610  55 216 402 

Statement on changes in equity (Form No. 3)

Changes in equity Name
Line 

сode Balance Received Used Balance

Reserves formed in accordance with law:     

Reserve Fund (name of reserve) 

previous year 151  340 425  78 140 -  418 565 

reporting year 152   418 565   128 560   -  547 125   

Valuation reserves: 

Allowance for doubtful debts  (name of reserve)    

previous year 171  136 765  167 691 (4 721)  299 735

reporting year 172  299 735 939 716 (12 894)  1 226 557 

Reserve under depreciation of financial investments 
(name of reserve)

previous year 173 - 123 287 0  123 287

reporting year 174  123 287  (123 287) 0 -

Provisions for liabilities and charges

reserve for year-end remuneration
(name of reserve)   

previous year 181 - - (-) -

reporting year 182  - -   (0)  -

Reserve for PP&E repairs
(name of reserve)

previous year 183 - - - -

reporting year 184 - - - -

Name
Line 

сode Balance Received Used Balance

1) Net assets 200   49 390 480  55 216 466

From budget
From non-

budgetary funds

 for reporting 
year

 for previous 
year 

for reporting 
year

  for previous 
year  

2) Received for: 
expenses on ordinary activities - total 210   0  2 355   - -

including: 
payments to Chernobyl cleanup veterans and support 
of citizens exposed to radiation 211 - - - -

payment of loan interest pursuant to Decree no. 481 
of Russian Government  212  0  2 355 - -

Reserves

For reference only
Balance at begining of reporting Balance at end of reporting period
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Item code For reporting period
for the same period 
of the previous year

Balance at the beginning of the year 010 85 827  52 651  

Cash flow from operating activities  

Trade cash  020 66 927 020 50 556 035

Other cash receipts 110  1 591 893  2 841 001

Cash used for (59 391 675) (49 816 521)

purchasing of goods, works, services, raw materials 
and other current assets   150  (50 511 424)   (39 425 180)

salaries 160 (2 151 093) (2 115 863)

dividents and interest payments  170 (1 859 965) (882 483)

taxes  180 (3 356 495) (3 902 863)

other expenses  190 (1 512 698) (3 490 132)

Net cash from operating activities  200  9 127 238 3 580 515

Cash flows from investing   

Proceeds from sales of PP&E and other 
non-current assets  210  0   7

Proceeds from sales of securities and other 
financial investments  220 312 292 526 75 729 715

Dividends received  230  0  437  

Interests received  240 60 051 97 591

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, income 
bearing investments into tangible and intangible 
assets  290 (12 777 363) (15 489 640)

Purchase of securities and other financial investments 300 (311 430 082) (75 747 919)

Loans to other entities  310 (5 001) (  )

Net cash from investing  340 (11 859 869) (15 409 809)

Cash flow from financing activities         

Proceeds from loans and credits issued to other 
entities 360 7 014 357   21 021 197   

Repayment of loans and credits (net of interest) 390 (4 264 752) (9 158 661)

Net cash from financial activities 430  2 749 605  11 862 536  

Net increase (decrease) of cash or cash equivalents 440 16 974 33 242

Cash at the end of the reporting period 450 102 801 85 893

Ruble exchange rate difference   460 (104 955) 1 341

Cash flow statement (Form No. 4) Annex to balance sheet (Form No. 5)

Name Code 

Availability at 
beginning of 

reporting year Additions Disposals

Availability at 
end of reporting 

period

Items of intellectual property (exclusive rights to items 
of intellectual property)  010  342 - (20) 322

including: 
copyright holder of software, databases 012  342 - (20) 322

Name Code 

Availability at 
beginning of 

reporting year Additions Disposals

Availability at 
end of reporting 

period

Buildings  070  12 799 838 404 392 (9 962) 13 194 268

Structures and transfer mechanisms  075  7 003 374 1 601 202 (23 146) 8 581 430

Machinery and equipment 080  23 111 728  4 492 442 (58 460)  27 545 710 

Transport 085   162 627   1 388  (4 711) 159 304  

Production and work appliances 090 67 838 21 876 (8 242) 81 472

Other PP&E 110 62 786 4 071 (48 430) 18 427

Plots of land and objects of environmental 
management 115  95 411  43 924 -  139 335

Total 130  43 303 602 6 569 295 (152 951)  49 719 946 

Name Code At beginning of reporting year At end of reporting period

Depreciation of PP&E - total 140  10 439 180 13 727 407

including: 
buildings and structures 141  3 126 285 3 905 812

machinery, equipment, transport 142  7 257 225  9 768 004

other  143   55 670   53 591  

Leased PP&E - total   150 372 711 595 324

including: 
buildings     151 235 714 293 682

other 153  136 997  301 642

Rented PP&E - total  160  4 267 156 2 907 201

including: 
buildings and structures 161 34 069 22 019

machinery, equipment, transport 162 0 4 841 

land 163   4 225 814   2 880 341

other 164 7 273 -

Immovable assets accepted for operation and 
undergoing state registration 164 - 23 865

For reference only code At beginning of reporting year At end of reporting period

Change of price of PPE objects after modernization, 
reconstruction, or partial dismantling 170  2 701 856 4 305 104

Intangible assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
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Type of activity Code

Availability at 
beginning of 

reporting year Additions Disposals

Availability at 
end of reporting 

period

Total 310  - 0 (0) 0

including:    (  )

Research of power generating units 311  -  - (0)  0 

Analysis of burning modes 312   -   -  (  ) -  

Other 313 - - (0) -

For reference only Code  
At beginning of 

reporting year
At end of 

reporting year

Total expenses on incomplete research, development 
and engineering 320  -  -

Name Code 
At beginning of 

reporting year
At end of 

reporting period
At beginning of 

reporting year
At end of 

reporting period

Investments into share capitals of other entities - total 510 101 471 24 758 - -

including affiliates and dependent companies 511 101 471 19 841 - -

State and municipal securities 515  -  - -  - 

Securities of other entities - total 520   -   -  - -  

including debt securities (bonds, bills of exchange) 521 - - - -

Loans issued 525 - - -  62 654 

Deposits  530 -  -  882 517  84 175

Total 540 101 471 24 758  882 517 146 829

Share of financial investments having current 
market value  

Investments into share capitals of other entities - total 550 - - - -

including affiliates and dependent companies 551 - - - -

Total 570 - - - -

For reference only

For financial investments having current market value 
- change in value as a result of evaluation adjustment 580 - - - -

Expenses on research, development and engineering

Financial Investments 
Long-term Short-term

Name Code Reporting period
For the same period 

of previous year

Budget funds received in the reporting year - total 910 0  2 355

including: 
payments to Chernobyl cleanup veterans and support 
of citizens exposed to radiation 911  - -

payment of loan interest pursuant to 
Decree no. 481 of Russian Government 912 0  2 355   

Government assistance

Name Code
Balance at beginning 

of reporting year
Balance at end of 

reporting year

Accounts receivable: 
short-term - total  610  7 354 948  8 103 485

including: 
payments to suppliers and contractors  611  3 152 379  3 335 138

advance payments issued  612  1 272 279   1 264 267

other 613   2 930 290    3 504 080    

long-term - total  620 2 207 487  832 169 

including:  
advance payments given 622 166 291   550 176  

other  623  2 041 196   281 993  

Total    9 562 435  8 935 654   

Accounts payable: 
short-term - total 640 8 785 139  10 298 861   

including:  
payments to suppliers and contractors 641 3 115 462  3 095 520   

advance payments received  642   33 265    71 097   

tax liabilities  643 790 648  335 836   

credits 644  4 208 560    5 656 903   

other 646 637 204  1 139 505 

long-term - total 650  15 070 635  15 751 418   

including: 
loans 652 15 069 800  15 750 728   

other 653 835  690   

Total 23 855 774  26 050 279  

Name Code For reporting period
For the same period 

of previous year

Tangible costs  710  37 424 729  28 274 803

Wages and salaries  720  2 309 079 2 350 020

Social expenses 730 361 776   378 657

Depreciation 740   3 359 160    2 972 578    

Other expenses 750 4 982 595  4 262 262

Total expenses 760 48 437 339  38 238 320  

Balance change (increase +, decrease -) 

work in progress   765  -  -   

future period expenses 766 334 002  680 191   

provisions for liabilities and charges 767 0  (0)   

Name Code 
Balance at beginning 

of reporting year
Balance at end 

of reporting period

Received total: 810  5 603 558  5 251 885

including: 
bills of exchange 811  0 0

Property in pledge 820 -   

including: 
bills of exchange 821   -    -    

Accounts receivable and payable 

Provisions 

Ordinary expenses (by type)
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Audit report

Auditors’ report

To the shareholders of the Open Joint Stock Company Enel OGK-5.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Open Joint Stock Company Enel 

OGK-5 (hereinafter the “Company”) for the 2010 reporting year.

The financial statements, set on 51 pages, comprise:

>  the balance sheet as at 31 December 2010;

>  the income statement for 2010;

>  the appendices to the balance sheet and the income statement including:

>  the statement of changes in equity for 2010;

>  the cash flow statement for 2010;

>  the attachments to the balance sheet;

>  the explanatory notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and reliability of the financial 

statements in accordance with the requirements of the Russian reporting legislation and for the 

system of internal control necessary for the preparation of the financial statements which are free 

from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements in all material respects based 

on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Federal Standards on Auditing. These 

standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements and planning and perform-

ing the audit in order to obtain sufficient assurance as to whether the financial statements are free 

from material misstatements.

The audit included performing procedures to obtain audit evidence confirming the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. The selection of the procedures is a matter of our judgment, 

which is based on the assessment of risk of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In 

the process of  risk assessment we considered the system of  internal control relevant to the prepa-

ration and reliability of the financial statements in order to select appropriate audit procedures, but 

not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control.

The audit also included an assessment of the appropriateness of the Company’s accounting policy 

and the reasonableness of the estimates made by management, as well as the evaluation of the 

overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our opinion on the reliability of the financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present reliably, in all material respects, the 

financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2010 and its financial performance and cash 

flows for the 2010 reporting year in accordance with the requirements of  the Russian reporting 

legislation.OJSC ENEL OGK-5 

Auditors’ report 

on the financial statements for 2010

Sloutsky Evgeny

18 April 2011

Director of CJSC KPMG,

(power of attorney dated 1 October 2010       

No. 49/10)
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Report of internal audit 
commission

CONCLUSION (ACT)
of the internal audit commission based 
on results of audit of financial and 
economic activity of OJSC Enel OGK-5 
in 2010

In accordance with the resolution of the OJSC Enel OGK-5 Internal Audit Commission (Minutes of  

23.09.2010 Issue №3 and Minutes of 02.12.2010 Issue №1), composed of the following members: 

> Chairman of internal audit commission of OJSC Enel OGK-5: Gabriele Frea, Head of Department 

of Country Risk Management  at Enel; 

> Secretary of Internal Audit Commission of OJSC Enel OGK-5: Francesco Marzullo, Senior Manager 

of Enel’s Internal Audit Department

> Committee members: Palasciano Villamagna Carlo, Head of Enel Tax Group;

Di Giacomo Ernesto, Head of Accounting, Finance and Control for Russia;

Melnikov Pavel Nikolaevich - Senior Expert, Department of Privatization and  Corporate Relations in 

the Federal Property Management Agency in Moscow

 

The Internal Audit Commission of  the OJSC Enel OGK-5 performed the audit of financial and eco-

nomic activity of OJSC Enel OGK-5 related to the year 2010.

A specific audit activity was conducted during the period

from 15.01.2011 till 01.04.2011 according to the approved program of audit (minute of February 

3rd, 2011) with the knowledge and participation of officials responsible for financial and economic 

activity in OJSC Enel OGK-5 and also with assistance provided by experts of the executive body. 

While performing audit of financial and economic activities of the Company, method of sampling 

has been applied to check primary accounting and financial deeds, reports, analytical and other 

documents. 

In addition it is worth to be mentioned that following a specific request to the chairman of the BoD 

issued on 22.11.2010 (Document № 2), a member of the IAC, customarily the Chairman, has been 

regularly invited to attend the Board of Directors meetings starting from December 2010, conse-

quently easing the acknowledge of activities of the Company. 

The following persons were responsible for financial and economic activity during the audited pe-

riod:

> Enrico Viale, General Director, during the period from August 01, 2010 till present;

> Luca Sutera, Deputy General Director - Chief Financial Officer, during the period from August 22, 

2008 till March 14, 2011

> Igor Molibog started to be in charge as Deputy General Director - CFO in March 15, 2011

Based on audit’s results, it has been established that the Company Financial Statement and Annual 

Report for 2010 have been generated according to the current legislation of the Russian Federation 

and pursuant to Regulation on accounting policy in OJSC Enel OGK-5, approved by the Order of the 

General Director of OJSC Enel OGK-5, dated of December 31, 2009 № 181.

Internal Audit Commission managed the activity provided by law through documents acquisition, 

meetings with management and bodies of the Company and through specific audit activities, Spe-

cifically during the course of the audit activities:

We were informed about main events occurred in the company during 2010. The Company dis-

closed information in a form of announcements of significant events in accordance with the Regu-

lation on information disclosure by securities issuers № 06-117/pz-n ratified on Federal Financial 

Market Services of the Russian Federation on 10.10.2006. No breaches of this Regulation have been 

revealed. 

> We were acknowledged about corporate governance and organizational structure of the Com-

pany. Internal Audit Commission considers both appropriate to support current strategic develop-

ment of the Company and coherent with control requirements, some improvements have been 

introduced comparing to previous year.

> Following the recommendation of Standard&Poor’s the Company made improving steps during 

2010: actions were undertaken for the improvement and transparency of management incentives 

system. 

> Control over the implementation of the resolutions of the Company’s management resides with 

the Board of Directors and other people appointed by the Board of Directors. 

Committees within the Board of Directors have been established with the aim to support the Board 

of Directors in its relevant competence and decisions. Committees acting according to relevant 

regulations are the following (as per resolution of the Board of Directors of February the 24th 2011, 

Reliability Committee and Committee for Strategy, Development, Business Planning and Corporate 

Governance have been formally liquidated) : 

- HR and Remuneration Committee;

- Audit Committee. 

> We have collected information of the results and relevant action plan of the ICFR Internal Control 

on Financial Reporting) activity, whose aim is the analysis of the major financial processes and re-

lated Internal Control System in order to assess their alignment to the best practice and standards 

in order to ensure either compliance with the local and international legislation or reliability of 

financial statements. In 2010 the scope of the activity was widened including additional controls.

> Enel OGK-5 Company prepared 2010 Financial statements according to Russian Federation ac-

counting rules and reporting, in particular the Federal Law of November 21, 1996 №129-FZ “on 

accounting” and Regulations on Accounting and Reporting in the Russian Federation dated
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29 July 1998 №34n, as well as other legislation, members of the regulatory accounting and report-

ing organization in the Russian Federation;

> The auditor of the Company, CJSC KPMG approved by the Annual General Shareholders meeting 

of OJSC Enel OGK-5 (June 10, 2009) performed audit of the Company’s financial statements for 

2010 (Audit report dated April 18, 2011). In the opinion of the auditor, the Financial statements of 

the Company, credibly reflects in every material respect its financial condition as of December 31, 

2010 and the result of its financial and economic activity for the period are in accordance with the 

accounting requirements of  Russian legislation. 

The Internal Audit Commission also collected the summary of the activities performed by Internal 

Audit Department of the Company during 2010. 

Internal Audit activity was performed according to the Audit Plan including either specific audit 

activities on significant areas of the Company or support in specific projects of the Company regard-

ing internal control system and procedures. 

No significant issues emerged from the audit. The Company is continuing in structuring and 

strengthening main processes and relevant internal control system. As a consequence some formal 

and substantial weaknesses have been still identified as well as areas of improvement in the inter-

nal control system. In order to fix issues identified, main outcomes and relevant action plans have 

been already discussed with Enel OGK-5 management for future implementation.

In 2010 the revenue of the Company from sales of products and services totaled 57 020 Mln. Rur. 

The cost of products, goods, work and services totaled 47 711 Mln. Rur with profit from sales for the 

period amounting to 8 583 Mln. Rur. Other expenses (including interests) for an amount of 

1 843 Mln. Rur.

In 2010 Company’s net profit was 5 826 Mln. Rur.

The book value of the Company’s assets as of December 31, 2010 added up to 83 224 Mln.  

Rur. The net assets value at the same date amounted to 55 216 Mln. Rur.

 

The Company’s solvency and liquidity as of 31.12.2010  are characterized by the following 

data:

> Equity ratio: 0,667 (0.66 the previous year)

> Current ratio 1,36 (1,62 the previous year)

As of 31.12.2010 the total sum of short term financial investments (represented by short term de-

posit) amounted to 147 Mln. Rur much lower compared to the amount as of 31.12.2009 (883 Mln. 

Rur)

As of 31.12.2010 the total amount of accounts receivable is 8 936 Mln. Rur including:

> long-term accounts receivable for 832 Mln. Rur (2 208 Mln Rur in 2009)

>  short-term accounts receivable for 8 104 Mln. Rur (7 355 Mln Rur in 2009)

As of 31.12.2010, the total sum of accounts payable amounted to 4 642 Mln.Rur (4 577 Mln. Rur in 

2009), including among the others:

> suppliers and contractors for 3 095,5 Mln. Rur (3 115,5 Mln. Rur in 2009),

> tax liabilities for 336 Mln. Rur (791 Mln. Rur in 2009)

> salaries for 1,4 Mln. Rur (0,3  Mln. Rur in 2009)

> other creditors 1 209 Mln. Rur (670 Mln. Rur in 2009)

On the basis of the audit and taking into account the opinion of the Company’s auditor (CJSC 

KPMG Audit report dated April 18, 2011), the Internal Audit Commission has substantial grounds 

to acknowledge the reliability of data provided in the annual report and in the annual Financial 

Statements of the Company.

Moscow, 19th April  2011                   Internal Audit Commission members

G. Frea

F. Marzullo        

C. Palasciano         

E. Di Giacomo       

P. Melnikov
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Information on 
observance of 
corporate conduct 
code

Information is provided in accordance with the Procedural 

Guidelines on the composition and form of presentation 

of data on observance of the code of corporate conduct 

in annual reports of joint stock companies (approved by 

instruction of the Federal Service for Financial Markets 

dated of April 30, 2003, No. 03-849/r).

Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct
Observed or not 

observed Note

Notification of shareholders on holding of the General 
Shareholders’ Meeting not later than 30 days prior to 
the date of holding thereof notwithstanding the issues 
included in its agenda unless a longer period is provided 
for by the legislation Observed

clause 11.7 of article 11 and clause 12.6 of article 12 
of the Charter of the Company

Availability of the possibility for shareholders to 
familiarize themselves with the list of persons entitled to 
attend the General Shareholders’ Meeting, beginning 
from the date of notification about holding of the 
General Shareholders’ Meeting and until closure of the 
intramural General Shareholders’ Meeting, and in case of 
an extramural General Shareholders’ Meeting – until the 
date of termination of acceptance of voting bulletins Observed 

Clause 25.6. of article 25 of the Charter of the 
Company

Sub-clause 4.4.5. of the Regulations on the 
information policy of the Company

«Provide for review a list of persons having the right 
to attend the General Meeting, and copies made at 
the request of the person (s) included in the list and 
having not less than 1 percent of votes on any item 

of the agenda of the General Meeting, in the manner 
prescribed by these Regulations for provision of 

information (materials) in preparation for the General 
Meeting»

Availability of the possibility for shareholders to 
familiarize themselves with information (materials) to 
be submitted within the framework of preparation for 
holding of the General Shareholders’ Meeting by means 
of electronic communications including Internet Observed

clause 11.9 and clause 11.14 of article 11 of the 
Charter of the Company

Availability of the possibility for shareholders to 
put forward issues into the agenda of the General 
Shareholders’ Meeting or to demand convocation of the 
General Shareholders’ Meeting without provision of an 
extract from the register of shareholders if accounting 
of its rights for shares is exercised in the system of 
maintenance of the register of shareholders, and if 
his rights for shares are accounted for on the custody 
account, the statement of the custody account will be 
sufficient for execution of the above mentioned rights Observed

The Charter of the Company as well as other internal 
documents of the Company do not provide for that 

the shareholder who introduced an issue into the 
agenda of the General Shareholders’ Meeting or 

demanded convocation of the General Shareholders’ 
Meeting, shall be obliged to submit an extract from 

the shareholders’ register in such cases

Availability in the Charter or internal documents of the 
joint stock company of the requirement for compulsory 
presence at the General Shareholders’ Meeting of the 
General Director, members of the Executive Board, 
members of the Board of Directors, members of the 
Internal Audit Commission and the Auditor of the joint 
stock company Partially observed

In accordance with clause 10.11. of article 10 of the 
Charter of the Company the Chairman of the Board 

of Directors (or Deputy Chairman of the Board of 
Directors or any member of the Board of Directors) 

may chair the General Meeting.

In accordance with subclause 6.2.2. of clause 6.2. of 
article 6 of the Code of Corporate Conduct of OJSC 

OGK-5 the Company shall ensure presence at the 
General Shareholders’ Meeting of members of the 

Board of Directors, executive bodies, the Internal 
Audit Commission and the Auditor of the Company 
and shall authorize them to respond to questions of 

the shareholders

Compulsory presence of candidates within the 
framework of consideration at the General Shareholders’ 
Meeting of issues on elections of members of the Board 
of Directors, General Director, members of the Executive 
Board, members of the Internal Audit Commission as 
well as on the issue on approval of the auditor of the 
joint stock company Not observed

The specified requirements are not indicated in the 
Charter or any internal documents of the Company

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the procedure for registration of members 
of the General Shareholders’ Meeting Observed

This norm is stipulated in clause 3.1 of the 
Regulations on the procedure for preparation and 

holding of the general meeting of OJSC OGK-5

General Shareholders’ Meeting
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Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct
Observed or not 

observed Note

Availability in the Charter of the joint stock company of 
the power of the Board of Directors for annual approval 
of the financial and economic plan of the joint stock 
company Observed

In accordance with sub-clause 15.2.36 of clause 15.1. of 
article 15 of the Charter of the Company the Board of 

Directors shall annually approve the business plan of the 
Company and the report on results of fulfillment thereof

Availability of the risk management procedure at the 
joint stock company approved by the Board of Directors Not observed 

Availability in the Charter of the joint stock company of 
the right of the Board of Directors to take the decision 
on suspension of the powers of the General Director 
appointed by the General Shareholders’ Meeting Not applicable

Under sub-clause 15.2.9 of clause 15.2. of Article 15 of 
the Company’s Charter, the matter of election of General 

Director of the Company and early termination of his 
powers, including decisions on the determination of the 

terms of a labor agreement with the General Director 
and early termination thereof shall be the responsibility 

of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5

Availability in the Charter of the joint stock company 
of the right of the Board of Directors to establish 
requirements to qualification and the amount of 
Remuneration of the General Director, members of 
the Executive Board, heads of the main structural 
subdivisions of the joint stock company Partially observed 

Under sub-clause 15.2.9 of clause 15.2. of Article 15 
of the Company’s Charter, making decisions on the 

determination of the terms of a labor agreement with 
the General Director and early termination thereof shall 

be the responsibility of the Board of Directors of OJSC 
Enel OGK-5.

Under sub-clause 15.2.10 of clause 15.2. of Article 
15 of the Company’s Charter, the Board of Directors’ 

competence shall include determination of quantitative 
composition of the Executive Board, election of Executive 

Board members, payment of remuneration and/or 
compensation to them, termination of their powers, 

including making decisions on early termination of 
labor agreements with them, making decisions on 

bringing members of the Executive Board to disciplinary 
responsibility and making decisions on motivation of 

members of the Executive Board in accordance with the 
labor laws of the Russian Federation; 

Under paragraph 3 of clause 20.5. of Article 20 of the 
Company’s Charter, the terms of the labor agreement 

with General Director and members of the Executive 
Board, including term of their office, shall be determined 

by the Board of Directors

Availability in the Charter of the joint stock company of 
the right of the Board of Directors to approve terms and 
conditions of contracts with the General Director and 
members of the Executive Board Observed

Pursuant to paragraph 3 of clause 20.5. of Article 
20 of the Company’s Charter, the terms of the labor 

agreement with General Director and members of the 
Executive Board, including term of their office, shall be 

determined by the Board of Directors

Availability in the Charter or internal documents of the 
joint stock company of the requirements providing that 
at approval of the terms and conditions of contracts 
with the General Director (management organization, 
manager) and members of the Executive Board votes of 
members of the Board of Directors being the General 
Director and members of the Executive Board shall not 
be taken into account in counting of votes Not observed

Availability in the Board of Directors of the joint stock 
company at least 3 independent directors meeting 
requirements of the Code of corporate conduct Not observed

The Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 elected in 
accordance with the decision of the Annual General 

Shareholders’ Meeting of OJSC Enel OGK-5 (Minutes No. 
1 dd. 10.06.2010) shall include the following directors 

who meet the requirements of independence: Akhanov 
Dmitry Sergeevich, Gerald Joseph Rohan

Board of Directors
Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct

Observed or not 
observed Note

Absence in the membership of the Board of Directors 
of the joint stock company of persons who have been 
recognized guilty in commission of crimes in the area 
of economic activity or crimes against state authority, 
interests of state service and service in local authorities 
or who have been subject to any administrative 
punishments for legal infringements in the area of 
entrepreneurial activity or in the area of finance, taxes 
and duties, securities market Observed There are no such persons

Absence in the membership of the Board of Directors 
of the joint stock company of persons who are a 
member, General Director (manager), member of 
the management body or employee of a legal entity 
competing with the joint stock company Not observed 

Charter of the Company has no requirement on 
prohibition to the members of the Board of Directors 

of the Company to occupy the position of Director 
(manager), member of the management body or 
employee of the legal entity competing with the 

Company

Availability in the Charter of the joint stock company 
of the request on election of the Board of Directors by 
means of cumulative voting Observed

Clause 10.9 of article 10 of the 
Charter of the Company 

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the obligation of the Board of Directors not 
to execute actions which will lead or potentially may 
lead to occurrence of any conflict between their interests 
and interests of the joint stock company and in case of 
occurrence of such a conflict – the obligation for the 
Board of Directors  to disclose information about this 
conflict Observed 

Code of Ethics (approved by the Board of 
Directors on July 27, 2010) and Zero Tolerance towards 
Corruption Plan (approved by the Board of Directors on 

July 25, 2008)

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the obligation of members of the Board 
of Directors to notify the Board of Directors in writing 
on the intention to execute transactions with securities 
of the joint stock company, members of the Board of 
Directors in which they act or its subsidiaries (affiliates) as 
well as to disclose information on transactions with such 
securities executed by them Partially observed

In accordance with article 4 of the Regulations on 
Insider Information of OJSC OGK-5 approved by the 

Board of Directors of OJSC OGK-5 (Minutes No.14 dated 
September 23, 2005) members of the Board of Directors 

of the Company, members of the Executive Board and 
the General Director are obliged to disclose information 

on holding of securities of the Company to the Audit 
Committee under the Board of Directors. Then the Audit 

Committee under the Board of Directors of the Company 
shall submit the Report on transactions with securities 

of the Company and its subsidiaries and affiliates to the 
Board of Directors of the Company 

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the requirement on holding of meetings of 
the Board of Directors at least once per every six weeks Partially observed

According to clause 18.2 of article 18 of the Charter of 
the Company meetings of the Board of Directors shall be 

held when necessary but no less than once per quarter

Holding of meetings of the Board of Directors of the joint 
stock company within the year over which the annual 
report of the joint stock company is executed at least 
once per every six weeks Observed

In 2010, 13 meetings of the Board of Directors of OJSC 
Enel OGK-5 took place

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the procedure for holding of meetings of 
the Board of Directors Observed

The procedure for holding of meetings of the Board of 
Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 shall be regulated by the 

Charter of the Company (article 18) and the Regulations 
on the procedure for convocation and holding of 

meetings of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the provision on the necessity for approval 
by the Board of Directors of transactions of the joint 
stock company at the amount of 10 and more percents 
of the value of assets of the company except for 
transactions executed in the course of ordinary economic 
activity Observed Clause 15.2. of Article 15 of the Company’s Charter
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Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct
Observed or not 

observed Note

Availability in internal documents of the company of 
the right of the member of the Board of Directors for 
receipt from executive bodies and managers of the main 
structural subdivisions of the joint stock company of 
information required for accomplishment of its functions 
as well as responsibility for non-provision of such 
information Observed

Article 3 of the Regulations on the procedure for 
convocation and holding of meetings of the Board of 

Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5

Availability of the committee for strategic planning 
under the Board of Directors or imposition of the 
functions of the above mentioned committee on another 
committee (except for the audit committee and the 
committee for HR and remunerations) Partially observed 

The Committee for strategy, development, business 
planning and corporate governance under the Board of 
Directors of OJSC OGK-5 has been created at OJSC OGK-

5 (Minutes No.22 dated of December 23, 2005).
This Committee was liquidated on February 24, 2011 

(Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Directors 
No.2/11 dated of February 25, 2011)

Availability of the committee of the Board of Directors 
(audit committee) which shall recommend to the Board 
of Directors of the auditor of the joint stock company 
and interacts therewith and with the internal audit 
commission of the joint stock company Observed

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of 
OJSC Enel OGK-5 was created and is operated at OJSC 

OGK-5 (Minutes of the Executive Board No.22 dated of 
December 23, 2005) 

Availability in the membership of the audit committee 
of only independent and non-executive directors Observed 

These requirements are prescribed in clause 6.5 of article 
6 of the Regulations on the Audit Committee of the 

Board of Directors of OJSC OGK-5

Execution of management of the audit committee 
by an independent director Observed

Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board of 
Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 is Independent Director – 

G.J. Rohan 

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the right of access of all the members of 
the audit committee to any documents and information 
of the joint stock company subject to non-disclosure of 
confidential information by them Observed

Clause 11.3 of article 11 and clause 12.1 of article 12 of 
the Regulations on the Audit Committee of the Board of 

Directors of OJSC OGK-5

Creation of the committee of the Board of Directors 
(committee for HR and remunerations) the function of 
which consists in determination of criteria of selection 
of candidates to members of the Board of Directors and 
development of the Remuneration policy of the joint 
stock company Observed

The Committee for HR and remunerations of the Board 
of Directors of OJSC OGK-5 has been created and is 

operated at OJSC OGK-5 (Minutes of the Executive Board 
No.22 dated of December 23, 2005)

Execution of management of the committee for 
HR and remunerations by an independent director Not observed

The Chairman of the Committee for HR and 
remunerations of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel 

OGK-5 is Dominique Fache, 
Chairman of the Board of Directors 

Absence of officials of the joint stock 
company in the membership of the 
committee for HR and remunerations Observed

No officials of the Company are included into the 
current membership of the Committee for HR and 

remunerations of the Board of 
Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5

Creation of the risk management committee under the 
Board of Directors or imposition of the functions of the 
above mentioned committee on another committee 
(except for the audit committee and the committee for 
HR and remunerations) Not observed

The Risk Management Council at the Executive Board 
of the Company had operated at OJSC Enel OGK-5 till 

February 28, 2011. 
Risk Management Committee for General Director of the 

Company was created on February 28, 2011

Creation of the committee of the Board of Directors for 
settlement of corporate conflicts or imposition of the 
functions of the above mentioned committee on another 
committee (except for the audit committee and the 
committee for HR and remunerations) Not observed

This is not provided for by the 
Charter and internal documents

Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct
Observed or not 

observed Note

Absence of officials of the joint stock company in 
the membership of the committee for settlement of 
corporate conflicts Not applicable

Execution of management of the committee for 
settlement of corporate conflicts by an independent 
director Not applicable 

Availability of internal documents of the joint stock 
company approved by the Board of Directors providing 
for the procedure for formation and work of committees 
of the Board of Directors Observed

The Board of Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 approved: 
Regulations on HR and Remuneration Committee 

(Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Directors No. 
1 dd. 15.01.2008); Regulations on Strategy, Business 

Planning and Corporate Governance Committee* 
(Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Directors No. 
22 dd. 20.12.2005); Regulations on Audit Committee 

(Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Directors No. 2 
dd. 04.02.2008);

Regulations on Reliability Committee* (Minutes of 
the Meeting of the Board of Directors No. 22 dd. 

20.12.2005).
* Strategy, Business Planning and Corporate Governance 

Committee and Reliability Committee were liquidated on 
February 24, 2011 (Minutes of the Meeting of the Board 

of Directors No.2/11 dated of February 25, 2011) 

Availability in the Charter of the joint stock company 
of the procedure for determination of the quorum of 
the Board of Directors permitting to ensure compulsory 
participation of independent directors at the meetings of 
the Board of Directors Not observed

According to clause 18.15 of article 18 of the Charter of 
the Company the quorum for a meeting of the Board 
of Directors shall constitute not less than a half of the 

elected members of the Board of Directors

Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct
Observed or not 

observed Note

Availability of the collegial executive body (Executive 
Board) of the joint stock company Observed

The Executive Board of the Company has been created 
and operates at OJSC Enel OGK-5.

According to clause 20.1 of article 20 of the Charter of 
the Company creation of a collegial executive body – the 

Executive Board of the Company is provided for 

Availability in the Charter or internal documents of the 
joint stock company of the provision on the necessity of 
approval by the executive Board of transactions with real 
estate, obtainment of credits by the joint stock company 
unless the above mentioned transactions relate to major 
transactions and if execution thereof does not relate to 
ordinary business activity of the joint stock company Partially observed 

Under sub-clause 21.2.5. of the Charter of the Company 
«…resolution of other issues of the Company’s current 

activity management related by decisions of the General 
Shareholders’ Meeting and the Board of Directors to the 

competence of the Executive Board»

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the procedure for agreement upon 
transactions going beyond the limits of the financial and 
economic plan of he joint stock company  Partially observed 

In accordance with the Charter of the Company 
the competence of the Board of Directors includes 
consideration approval of any amendments to the 

financial and economic plan of the Company

Absence in the membership of the executive bodies of 
persons who are a member, General Director (manager), 
member of the management body or employee of a 
legal entity competing with the joint stock company Observed There are no such persons

Executive Bodies
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Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct
Observed or not 

observed Note

Absence in the membership of the executive bodies 
of the joint stock company of persons who have been 
recognized guilty in commission of crimes in the area 
of economic activity or crimes against state authority, 
interests of state service and service in local authorities 
or who have been subject to any administrative 
punishments for legal infringements in the area of 
entrepreneurial activity or in the area of finance, taxes 
and duties, securities market. If the functions of the sole 
executive body are accomplished by a management 
organization or a manager – compliance of the 
General Director, members of the Executive Board of 
the management organization or the manager with 
requirements submitted to the General Director and 
the members of the Executive Board of the joint stock 
company Observed There are no such persons 

Availability in the Charter or internal documents of 
the joint stock company of the restriction against the 
management organization (manager) to accomplish 
similar functions at a competing company and to be 
in any property relations with the joint stock company 
except for provision of services of the management 
organization (manager) Not observed 

This is not provided for by the 
Charter and internal documents

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the obligation of the executive bodies not 
to execute actions which will lead or potentially may 
lead to occurrence of any conflict between their interests 
and interests of the joint stock company and in case of 
occurrence of such a conflict – the obligation to disclose 
information about such conflict to the Board of Directors Observed

According to clause 20.13 of article 20 of the Charter 
of the Company the General Director and members 

of the Executive Board of the Company within the 
framework of execution of their rights and fulfillment 
of their obligations shall act according to interests of 
the Company, to exercise their rights and fulfill their 
obligations in relation to the Company on a fair and 

reasonable basis. Regulation of this matter is also carried 
out in accordance with clause 4.3 of article 4 of the 

Regulations on the Executive Board of OJSC Enel OGK-5 
and Code of Ethics of OJSC Enel OGK-5

Availability in the Charter or internal documents of 
the joint stock company of criteria of selection of the 
management organization (manager) Not observed 

These criteria are not provided for by the 
Charter and internal documents

Submission by the executive bodies of the joint stock 
company of monthly reports on their work to the Board 
of Directors Partially observed

In accordance with sub-clause 30 of clause 15.2 of article 
15 of the Charter of the Company the competence 
of the Board of Directors of the Company includes 

consideration of reports of the General Director on 
activity of the Company, including fulfillment of his 

duties by him.
Pursuant to clause 20.2 the General Director and the 

Executive Board of the Company are subordinated to 
the General Shareholders’ Meeting and the Board of 

Directors of the Company

Establishment in contracts concluded by the joint stock 
company with the General Director (management 
organization, manager) and members of the executive 
Board of liability for violation of provisions on use of 
confidential and service information Observed

Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct
Observed or not 

observed Note

Availability at the joint stock company of a special official 
(secretary of the company) the task of whom consists 
in ensuring of observance by bodies and officials of 
the joint stock company of procedural requirements 
guaranteeing realization of rights and legal interests of 
shareholders of the company Observed

OJSC Enel OGK-5 approved the Regulations on the 
Corporate Secretary and the Secretariat of the Board of 

Directors of OJSC OGK-5 
(Minutes No.5 dated March 30, 2006)  

Availability in the Charter or internal documents of the 
joint stock company of the procedure for appointment 
(election) of the secretary of the company and duties of 
the company’s secretary Observed

Article 15.2.24 of the Company’s Charter determined 
the procedure for electing the Corporate Secretary. 

Procedure for appointment is detailed in Article 3 of the 
Regulations on Corporate Secretary and Secretariat of 

the Board of Directors of the Company.

Availability in the Charter of the joint stock company 
of requirements to the candidate of the company’s 
secretary Not observed

This provision is not prescribed by the 
Charter of the Company 

Secretary of the Company

Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct
Observed or not 

observed Note

Availability in the Charter or internal documents of the 
joint stock company of the requirements on approval of 
a major transaction before execution thereof Partially observed

Under clause 15.2. of Article 15 of the Company’s 
Charter, the competence of the Board of Directors 

shall include approval of major transactions in cases 
stipulated by Article 10 of the Federal Law “On Joint 

Stock Companies” 

Compulsory engagement of an independent appraiser 
for appraisal of the market value of property being the 
subject of the major transaction Partially observed 

According to sub-clause 31 of clause 15.2 of article 15 
of the Charter of the Company the competence of the 

Board of Directors includes approval of the candidate of 
an independent appraiser for determination of the value 

of shares, property and other assets of the Company 
in cases prescribed by the Federal Law “On Joint Stock 

Companies”, the Charter of the Company as well as 
separate resolutions of the Board of Directors of the 

Company

Availability in the Charter of the joint stock company 
of the restriction of acceptance within the framework 
of acquisition of large stock of shares in the joint stock 
company (acquisition)of any actions aimed at protection 
of interests of the executive bodies (members of such 
bodies) and members of the Board of Directors of the 
joint stock company as well as actions affecting position 
of shareholders in comparison with the existing position 
(in particular, restriction of adoption by the Board of 
Directors before termination of the proposed term 
of acquisition of shares of the resolution on issue of 
additional shares, on issue of securities convertible into 
shares or securities providing the right for acquisition of 
shares in the company even if the right for adoption of 
such resolution is granted thereto by the Charter) Not observed 

These provisions are not fixed in the 
Charter and other internal 

documents of the Company 

Availability in the Charter of the joint stock company 
of the requirement for compulsory engagement of 
an independent appraiser for appraisal of the current 
market value of shares and probable change in the 
market value thereof as a result of the statutory merger Partially observed 

According to sub-clause 31 of clause 15.2 of article 15 
of the Charter of the Company the competence of the 

Board of Directors includes approval of the candidate of 
an independent appraiser for determination of the value 

of shares, property and other assets of the Company 
in cases prescribed by the Federal Law “On Joint Stock 

Companies”, the Charter of the Company as well as 
separate resolutions of the Board of Directors of the 

Company

Essential corporate actions
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Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct
Observed or not 

observed Note

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the requirement on disclosure of 
information about all the transactions which may 
influence the market value of shares of the joint stock 
company Observed

In accordance with sub-clause 4.7.1 of clause 4.7 
of article 4 of the Regulations on the Information 

Policy of OJSC OGK-5 the Company discloses within 
the framework of the quarterly report of the issuer 

all relevant information which may cause significant 
influence on assessment of the Company by 

shareholders and potential investors 

Availability of an internal document approved by the 
Board of Directors for use of essential information about 
activity of the joint stock company, shares and other 
securities of the company and transactions therewith 
which is not public and disclosure of which may 
significantly influence the market value of shares and 
other securities of the joint stock company Observed 

The Board of Directors of the Company approved the 
Regulations on insider information of OJSC OGK-5 

(Minutes No.14 dated of September 23, 2005)

Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct
Observed or not 

observed Note

Availability of the internal document approved by the 
Board of Directors determining rules and approaches 
of the joint stock company to disclosure of information 
(Regulations on the information policy) Observed

The Board of Directors of the Company approved the 
Regulations on information policy of OJSC Enel OGK-5 

(Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Directors No.14 
dated of September 23, 2005) which is being effective 

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the requirements for disclosure of 
information on purposes of placement of shares, on 
persons intending to acquire placed shares including a 
large stock of shares, and whether Managers of the joint 
stock company will participate in acquisition of placed 
shares of the company Partially observed 

Disclosure of this information is exercised in accordance 
with the Regulations on Insider Information of the 
Company and requirements of Russian legislation

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the list of information, documents and 
materials to be submitted to shareholders for resolution 
of issues submitted to the General Shareholders’ 
Meeting Observed

In accordance with sub-clause 4.4.2 of clause 4.4 of 
article 4 of the Regulations on information policy of OJSC 

OGK-5 the list of information, documents and materials 
to be provided to shareholders within the framework of 

preparation of General Meetings of Shareholders shall 
be approved by the Board of Directors while taking the 

decision on convocation of the General Shareholders’ 
Meeting. Sub-clause 4.4.3 of clause 4.4 of article 4 of 
these Regulations determines the approximate list of 

information (materials) to be submitted to the Annual 
General Shareholders’ Meeting 

Availability at the joint stock company of a web site in 
Internet and regular disclosure of information about the 
joint stock company on that web site Observed 

OJSC Enel OGK-5 carries out operative and regular 
disclosure of information on the corporate web site of 

the Company in Internet: http://www.ogk-5.com

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the requirement on disclosure of 
information about transactions of the joint stock 
company with persons related in accordance with 
the Charter to Managers of the joint stock company 
as well as on transactions of the joint stock company 
with organizations where Managers of the joint stock 
company hold directly or indirectly 20 and more 
percents of the authorized capital stock of the joint 
stock company of which may be otherwise significantly 
influenced by such persons Observed

In accordance with sub-clause 4.7.1 of clause 4.7 of 
article 4 of the Regulations on the Information Policy 
of OJSC OGK-5 this information shall be additionally 

disclosed by the Company within the framework of the 
quarterly report of the issuer

Disclosure of information

Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct
Observed or not 

observed Note

Absence in the Charter of the joint stock company of the 
exemption of the acquirer from the obligation to offer to 
shareholders to sell their ordinary shares of the company 
(equity securities convertible into ordinary shares) in case 
of merger Observed  

Availability in the Charter or internal documents 
of the joint stock company of the requirement on 
compulsory engagement of an independent appraiser 
for determination of shares conversion ratio in case of 
reorganization Partially observed 

According to sub-clause 31 of clause 15.2 of article 15 
of the Charter of the Company the competence of the 

Board of Directors includes approval of the candidate of 
an independent appraiser for determination of the value 

of shares, property and other assets of the Company 
in cases prescribed by the Federal Law “On Joint Stock 

Companies”, the Charter of the Company as well as 
separate resolutions of the Board of Directors of the 

Company

Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct
Observed or not 

observed Note

Availability of procedures approved by the Board of 
Directors regarding internal control over financial and 
economic activity of the joint stock company Observed

OJSC Enel OGK-5 has approved and operates a number 
of internal documents regulating the procedure for 

internal control over financial and business activity of 
the Company. Such internal documents of the Company 

include the following: the Regulations on the internal 
control system; the Regulations on the Audit Committee; 

the Regulations on the Internal Audit Commission; 
the Regulations on interaction of the internal audit 

subdivision with the audit committee, the Internal Audit 
Commission; as well as the Regulations on the Internal 

Audit Department 

Availability of a special subdivision of the joint stock 
company ensuring observance of internal control 
procedures (control and audit service) Observed

Internal Audit Directorate of OJSC Enel OGK-5 was 
formed and is operating in the Company

Availability in the internal documents of the Company of 
demands for determining the structure and membership 
of the control and audit service of the joint-stock 
company by the Board of Directors Not observed

In accordance with clause 9.1. and clause 9.2. of article 
9 of the Regulations on the internal audit department 

of OJSC OGK-5 the internal audit department is 
administratively subordinated to the General Director of 

the Company and is accountable to the Audit Committee 
of the Board of Directors of the Company. The Audit 

Director is appointed to and removed from this position 
by the General Director of the Company taking into 

account recommendations of the Audit Committee of 
the Board of Directors of the Company

Absence in the membership of the control and audit 
service of the joint stock company of persons who 
have been recognized guilty in commission of crimes 
in the area of economic activity or crimes against 
state authority, interests of state service and service 
in local authorities or who have been subject to any 
administrative punishments for legal infringements 
in the area of entrepreneurial activity or in the area of 
finance, taxes and duties, securities market Observed No such persons

Control over financial and economic activity
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Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct
Observed or not 

observed Note

Availability of an internal document approved by the 
Board of Directors guiding the Board of Directors within 
the framework of adoption of recommendations on 
amount of dividends (Regulations on the dividend policy) Observed

The Board of Directors of OJSC OGK-5 has approved the 
Standard of the dividend policy of OJSC OGK-5 (Minutes 

of the Meeting of the Board of Directors  No.2 dated of 
February 27, 2006) 

Availability in the Regulations on the dividend policy 
of the procedure for determination of the minimum 
share of net profit of the joint stock company directed at 
payment of dividends and conditions at which dividends 
shall not be paid or shall not be paid in full on preferred 
shares, amount of dividends on which is determined in 
the Charter of the joint stock company Observed 

The mentioned provisions are fixed in the Procedure for 
calculation of dividends of OJSC OGK-5 (annex 1 to the 

Methodological Instructions on Calculation of Dividends 
of OJSC OGK-5).

Over the period of its activity since the moment of state 
registration on December 31, 2010 the Company has not 
exercised any issue of preferred shares. In this connection 

internal documents of the Company does not contain 
provisions on preferred shares, in particular, the Charter 

of the Company does not determine the amount of 
dividends on such shares    

Publication of data on the dividend policy of the 
company and amendments made thereto in a periodical 
publication prescribed by the Charter of the joint stock 
company for publication of notices on holding of 
General Meetings of Shareholders as well as placement 
of such data in the web site of the joint stock company 
in Internet Partially observed

Data on the dividend policy and dividend history of the 
Company are published on the corporate web site in 

Internet: http://www.ogk-5.com  

Dividends
Provision of the Code of Corporate Conduct

Observed or not 
observed Note

Absence in the membership of the control and audit 
service of persons being members if executive bodies 
of the joint stock company as well as persons who are 
a member, General Director (manager), member of 
the management body or employee of a legal entity 
competing with the joint stock company Observed No such persons 

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the term for submission to the control and 
audit service of documents and materials for assessment 
of the financial and economic transaction executed as 
well as responsibility of officials and employees of the 
joint stock company for failure to submit the same within 
the stipulated term Not observed

These provisions are not stipulated in 
internal documents of the Company

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the obligation of the control and audit 
service to inform on revealed violations the audit 
committee and in case of the absence thereof – to the 
Board of Directors of the joint stock company Observed 

According to clause 10.8. of article 10 of the Regulation 
on the internal audit department of the Company 

the Internal audit department provides to the Audit 
Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company 
the report with the results of the audit activities on a 

quarterly basis

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the requirement for preliminary assessment 
by the control and audit service of advisability of 
execution of transactions not prescribed by the financial 
and economic plan of the joint stock company (non-
standard transactions) Not observed 

This provision is not indicated in 
the Charter of the Company

Availability in internal documents of the joint stock 
company of the procedure for agreement upon a non-
standard transaction with the Board of Directors Not observed

These provisions are not stipulated 
in internal documents of the Company

Availability of an internal document approved by the 
Board of Directors determining the procedure for execu-
tion of audits of financial and economic activity of the 
joint stock company by the Internal Audit Commission Partially observed

In 2005 the General Shareholders’ Meeting of OJSC 
OGK-5 approved the Regulations on the Internal Audit 

Commission of OJSC OGK-5

Execution by the audit committee of assessment of the 
audit report before submission thereof to shareholders 
at the General Shareholders’ Meeting Observed

Pursuant to sub-clause 5 of clause 3.1 of article 3 of the 
Regulations on the Audit Committee of the Board of 

Directors of OJSC Enel OGK-5 the Audit Committee shall 
carry out assessment of the audit report



108 Enel   Annual report 2010 109

Information about 
major transactions 
and related party 
transactions 
executed by 
company in 2010

Name
The management body 

taking the decision The related party 

Power Sale and Purchase Agreements (Free 
bilateral agreement for power sale) between 
LLC Rusenergosbyt and OJSC Enel OGK-5, as 
related party transactions

General Shareholders’ Meeting 
(June 10, 2009, June 10, 2010) Enel Investment Holding B.V. 

EPCM Agreement between OJSC Enel OGK-5 
and Enel Ingegneria e Innovazione SpA for 
reconstruction of ash and sludge removal 
system at Reftinskaya GRES, as a related party 
transaction

Board of Directors 
(May 26, 2010) Enel Investment Holding B.V.

Videoconference Equipment Sale and Purchase 
Agreement between OJSC Enel OGK-5 and LLC 
ENEL RUS, as a related party transaction

Board of Directors
(May 26, 2010) Enel Investment Holding B.V. 

Project Service Agreement for continuation 
of work in relation to the integration project 
and its implementation between OJSC Enel 
OGK-5 and LLC ENEL RUS, as a related party 
transaction

Board of Directors
(May 26, 2010) Enel Investment Holding B.V.

Service Agreement between OJSC Enel 
OGK-5 and Enel Servizi S.r.L. for staff training 
of the branches of Konakovskaya GRES and 
Reftinskaya GRES, as a related party transaction

Board of Directors
(April 13, 2010) Enel Investment Holding B.V.

Agreement between ENEL Servizi S.r.L.  and 
OJSC Enel OGK-5 for development of the new 
ICT integration platform to support “Global In 
Enel” project, as a related party transaction

Board of Directors
(February 18, 2010) Enel Investment Holding B.V.

Agency Agreement between OJSC Enel 
OGK-5 and Enel Servizi S.r.l., as a related party 
transaction

Board of Directors
(April 13, 2010) Enel Investment Holding B.V.

EPCM Agreement between OJSC Enel OGK-5 
and Enel Ingegneria e Innovazione SpA for 
reconstruction of unit No. 5 at Reftinskaya 
GRES, as a related party transaction

Board of Directors
(October 14, 2010) Enel Investment Holding B.V.

Contract on temporary secondment of staff 
between Enel Maritza East 3 and OJSC Enel 
OGK-5 as a related party transaction

Board of Directors 
(December 7, 2010) Enel Investment Holding B.V.
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Name
The management body 

taking the decision The related party 

Additional agreement to the contract on 
temporary secondment of staff between OJSC 
Enel OGK-5 and Enel Produzione S.p.A., as a 
related party transaction  

Board of Directors 
(December 7, 2010) Enel Investment Holding B.V. 

Additional agreement to the contract on 
temporary secondment of staff between OJSC 
Enel OGK-5 and Enel S.p.A., as a related party 
transaction 

Board of Directors 
(December 7, 2010) Enel Investment Holding B.V.

Additional agreement to the contract on 
temporary secondment of staff between Enel 
Servizi S.r.l. and OJSC Enel OGK-5, as a related 
party transaction 

Board of Directors 
(December 7, 2010) Enel Investment Holding B.V. 

Additional agreement to the contract on 
temporary secondment of staff between OJSC 
Enel OGK-5 and Enel Trade S.p.A., as a related 
party transaction 

Board of Directors 
(December 7, 2010) Enel Investment Holding B.V.

IT Service Agreement between OJSC Enel 
OGK-5 and Enel Servizi S.r.L., as a related party 
transaction

Board of Directors 
(September 16, 2010) Enel Investment Holding B.V.

Agreement between OJSC Enel OGK-5 
and ENEL Produzione S.p.A. for fulfilling 
quantitative and qualitative analysis for 
asbestos fibers content in the air at OJSC 
Enel OGK-5 power plants, as a related party 
transaction

Board of Directors 
(October 14, 2010) Enel Investment Holding B.V.

Exchange Power and Capacity Sale and 
Purchase Contracts between OJSC Enel OGK-5 
and OJSC OGK-6, as related party transactions

Board of Directors 
(February 18, 2010)

Member of the Board of Directors of OJSC Enel 
OGK-5 M.G. Tikhonova is simultaneously a 

member of the Board of 
Directors of OJSC OGK-6

Contract for supply and transportation of 
the natural gas for needs of the branch 
Sredneuralskaya GRES between OJSC Enel 
OGK-5, CJSC “Uralsevergaz”(supplier) and OJSC 
“Sverdlovskoblgaz” (transporter) as a major 
transaction

Board of Directors 
(September 16, 2010) -

Generating 
facilities

At Konakovskaya GRES, there are four 325MW units (1-3, 

8), which have been upgraded from 300MW in 2008-9 

for Units 1, 2 and 3, and in 2010 for Unit 8 respectively 

and four units (№4-7) with the capacity of 300 MW each. 

Installed capacity of Konakovskaya GRES at the end of the 

year is 2,500 MW.

At the power plant, 12 turbine units and 14 boilers are 

installed, including 6 units with  К-150-130 turbines and a 

170 MW CCGT unit. Installed capacity of Nevinnomysskaya 

GRES is 1,260MW for power and 749 Gcal/h for heat.

Main equipment at Konakovskaya GRES  

Main equipment of Nevinnomysskaya GRES   

Unit No. Capacity, MW Turbine Boiler Generator
Year of com-

missioning

1 325 К-300-240-7МР  ПП-950-255-ГМ (ПК-41) ТВВ-350-2 1964

2 325 К-300-240-7МР ПП-950-255-ГМ (ПК-41) ТВВ-350-2 1965

3 325 К-300-240-7МР  ПП-950-255-ГМ (ПК-41) ТВВ-350-2 1965

4 300 К-300-240 ПП-950-255-ГМ (ПК-41) ТВВ-320-2 1966

5 300 К-300-240 ПП-950-255-ГМ (ПК-41) ТВВ-320-2 1967

6 300 К-300-240 ПП-950-255-ГМ (ПК-41) ТВВ-320-2 1968

7 300 К-300-240 ПП-950-255-ГМ (ПК-41) ТВВ-320-2 1968

8 325 К-300-240-7МР ПП-950-255-ГМ (ПК-41) ТВВ-320-2 1969

Unit No. Capacity, MW Turbine Boiler Generator
Year of com-

missioning

1 25 ПТ-30/35-90/10    - JISALT 255 2009

2 25 ПТ-25/30-90/10 - ТВС-30  1960

3 80 ПТ-80/100-130/12  - Т3ФП-110-2УЗн 2006

4 50 Р-50-130-1 - ТВФ - 60 -2 1968

Turbines  
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Unit No. Capacity, MW Turbine Boiler Generator
Year of com-

missioning

1 - -   ТП-15 - 1960

2 - - ТП-15 - 1960

3 - -  ТП-15 - 1962

3А - - ТП-15 - 1965

4 - - ТГМ-96 - 1968

5 - - ТГМ-96 - 1972

5А - - ТГМ-96 - 1974

Unit No. Capacity, MW Turbine Boiler Generator
Year of com-

missioning

6 150 К-150-130   ТГМ-94 ТВВ-165-2 1964

7 150 К-150-130 ТГМ-94 ТВВ-165-2 1964

8 150 К-150-130  ТГМ-94 ТВВ-165-2 1965

9 150 К-150-130 ТГМ-94 ТВВ-165-2 1966

10 150 К-150-130 ТГМ-94 ТВВ-165-2 1967

11 160 К-160-130 ТГМ-94 ТВВ-165-2 1970

Unit No. Capacity, MW Turbine Boiler Generator
Year of com-

missioning

12 145 К-145-130   ВПГ450-140  ТВВ-165-2 1972

25 ГТ-25-710   ТВФ-60-2 

Boilers  

Units  

CCGT  

At GRES, 10 units are installed, 6 units with the capacity of 

300 MW each with and 4 units with the capacity of 500 

MW. Installed capacity of the plant is 3,800 MW.

Main equipment of Reftinskaya GRES  

Unit No. Capacity, MW Turbine Boiler Generator
Year of com-

missioning

1 300 К-300-240   ПК-39-2  ТГВ-300 1970

2 300 К-300-240  ПК-39-2  ТГВ-300 1971

3 300 К-300-240  ПК-39-2  ТГВ-300 1971

4 300 К-300-240 ПК-39-2  ТГВ-300 1972

5 300 К-300-240 ПК-39-2  ТГВ-300 1974

6 300 К-300-240 ПК-39-2  ТГВ-300 1975

7 500 К-300-240-2 ПК-57-2  ТГВ-500 1977

8 500 К-300-240-2 ПК-57-2  ТГВ-500 1978

9 500 К-300-240-2 ПК-57-3 ТГВ-500 1979

10 500 К-300-240-2 ПК-57-3 ТГВ-500-2 1980

Unit No. Capacity, MW Turbine Boiler Generator
Year of com-

missioning

1 16 Р-16-29/8,5  - Т-4376/142 1933

2 46 ПР-46-29/8,5/0,25  - Т-4376/142  1937

3 16 Р-16-29/1,2   - ТВС-30 1949

4 100 Т-100-130  - ТВФ-100-2  1965

5 100 Т-100-130 - ТВФ-100-2 1966

6 38 Р-38-130/34 - ТВФ-60-2 1966

Unit No. Capacity, MW Turbine Boiler Generator
Year of com-

missioning

2 - -   ТВВ - 1936

3 - - ОГВС - 1937

4 - -  ОГВС - 1937

5 - - ОГВС - 1939

6 - - ТВВ - 1943

9 - - ТГМ-96 - 1964

10 - - ТГМ-96 - 1965

11 - - ТГМ-96 - 1966

Unit No. Capacity, MW Turbine Boiler Generator
Year of com-

missioning

9 300 К-300-240-1    ТГМП-114   ТВВ-320-2 1969

10 277 Т-277-240-1   ТГМП-114 ТВВ-320-2  2004

11 277 Т-277-240-1 ТГМП-114 ТВВ-320-2 1993

Turbines

  

Boilers  

Units  

At the power plant, 9 turbine units and 11 boilers are 

installed, including 1 unit with the К-300-240 turbine and 

2 units with Т-277-240-1 turbines. Installed capacity of 

Sredneuralskaya GRES is 1,181.5 MW for power and 1,193 

Gcal/h for heat.

Main equipment of Sredneuralskaya GRES   
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VL 

>  High voltage power transmission line.

TEK 

>  Fuel and energy complex.

*CCGT 

>  Combined cycle gas turbine unit.

*KPI 
>  Key performance indicator.

* ASUTP 
>  Automated process control system.

* GSHU 
>  Main control room.

* RUSN  
>  BOP (balance-of-plant) switchgear.

* HVO 
>  Chemical water treatment.

GKPZ
>  Annual complex procurement program.

GSM 

>  General Shareholders’ Meeting.

AGSM
>  Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting.

EGSM 

>  Extraordinary General Shareholders’ Meeting.

Code of Corporate Conduct 
>  Code of Corporate Conduct recommended by FCSM 

Decree No. 421/r of 04/04/02.

Measurement units:

kW/h (Kilowatt/hour) 
>  generated power measurement unit

kW (kilowatt) 
>  capacity measurement unit

MW (megawatt) 
>  capacity measurement unit

Gcal (gigacalorie) 
>  heat measurement unit

Gcal/ h (gigacalorie/hour) 
>  heat output measurement unit

Glossary
Company (OJSC Enel OGK-5) 
>  Open Joint-Stock Company Enel OGK-5.

Annual Report 
>  Annual Report of Open Joint-Stock Company Enel 

OGK-5.

Central Office (HQ)  
>  OJSC Enel OGK-5 Central Office Branch.

Konakovskaya GRES (KGRES) 
>  OJSC Enel OGK-5 Konakovskaya GRES Branch.

Nevinnomysskaya GRES (NGRES) 
>  OJSC Enel OGK-5 Nevinnomysskaya GRES Branch.

Reftinskaya GRES (RGRES) 
>  OJSC Enel OGK-5 Reftinskaya GRES Branch.

Sredneuralskaya GRES (SUGRES) 
>  OJSC Enel OGK-5 Sredneuralskaya GRES Branch.

FTS (Federal Tariff Service of Russian Federation)   
> An authority controlling operation of power industry 

entities at the wholesale and retail power markets 

with regard to approval of rates and volumes of power 

and capacity purchase/sales taking into consideration 

maximum allowed growth level of end-users' rates, 

determined by the Government of the Russian Federation 

for the forthcoming control period.

JSC FGC UES (Federal Grid Company) 
>  Unified national (all-Russia) power grid controlling 

organization, it provides paid power transmission services 

to Wholesale Power Market participants and other 

entities owning power facilities (under proprietary right 

or on the other grounds prescribed by the federal laws) 

technologically connected to the unified national (all-

Russia) power grid under established procedure.

JSC SO CDU of UES (System Operator - Central 
Dispatching Unit of Unified Energy System) 
>  Means an operational dispatch management 

organization implementing a range of measures to 

ensure centralized management of technological modes 

of customers’ power facilities and power receivers 

within the range of Unified Russian Power Grid and 

technologically isolated regional power systems.

NP ATS (Non-Profit Partnership Administrator 
of Trade System) 
>  Infrastructural organization of the Wholesale Power 

Market, the primary tasks of which include the following: 

arrangement of wholesale power trading, performance 

of verification and set-offs of traders’ mutual cross-

obligations; organization of warranty and settlement 

system at the wholesale market, market regulations 

compliance control. 

WPCM 

> Wholesale power and capacity market.

UES of Russia
>  Unified energy system of Russia.

GRES 

>  State District Power Plant.

CHPP
>   Combined heat and power plant.
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Contact 
information

Company

Full name: Open Joint Stock Company Enel OGK-5

Abbreviated name: OJSC Enel OGK-5

Company address: 38 pr. Lenina, 620219 Yekaterinburg, 

Sverdlovsk Oblast, Russia 

Address of the permanent executive body of the Company: 7 

Pavlovskaya Street, building 1, 115093 Moscow, Russia

Telephone: (495) 539-31-31

Fax: (495) 539-31-49

E-mail: office@enel.com

Web site (web-sites) where information about the Company is 

presented: www.ogk-5.com

Depository Bank

Name: The bank of New York Mellon

Address: one Wall Street, New York, New York 10286, USA

Web site: www.bankofny.com

Registrar

Till January 21, 2011:

Full name: Open Joint Stock Company “Central Moscow 

Depository”

Abbreviated name: JSC CMD

Since January 22, 2011:

Full name: Closed Joint Stock Company “Computershare 

Registar”

Abbreviated name: CJSC Computershare Registar

Address:  8, Ivan Franko Street, 121108 Moscow

Telephone: (495) 926-81-60

Fax: (495) 926-81-78

Web site: http://www.nrcreg.ru/

Auditor

Full firm name: Closed Joint Stock Company KPMG

Abbreviated firm name: CJSC KPMG

Legal address: 18/1 Olimpyisky prospect, office 3035, 

129110 Moscow, Russia 

Postal address: 10 Presnenskaya Naberezhnaya, block Ñ, 

31st floor, 123317 Moscow, Russia

Telephone and fax numbers: tel. (495) 937-44-77, 

fax (495) 937-44-99

E-mail: moscow@kpmg.ru

Web site: www.kpmg.ru
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